
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, June 4, 2013 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    
 

5:00 pm URA Board of Directors-Work Session 
 

6:00 pm City Council Work Session 
 
 

7:00 pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 
 

URA Board of Directors-Regular Meeting 

 (Following the regular City Council meeting) 

 



  

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
5:00PM URA BOARD WORK SESSION 
 
A. Community Center Design Development 

 
6:00PM COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION  JOINT  
WORK SESSION 
 
A. Sherwood Town Center Plan 
B. Capacity Allocation  Program 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT 

 
A. Approval of May 21, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2013-024 Certifying the Provision of Certain Municipal Services in Order to 

Qualify the City to Receive State Revenues 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Eagle Scout Recognition  

B. Recognition of 2013 Sherwood Robin Hood Festival Maid Marian Court 

C. Metro Presentation – Southwest Corridor Project 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2013-025 Adopting the Capital Improvement Project Plan for Fiscal Year 2014 
(Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor) 
 

B. Resolution 2013-026 Transferring Budget Expenditure Appropriations between Categories 
for Fiscal Year 2012-13 (Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor) 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Resolution 2013-027 Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State Revenues 

(Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor) 
 

B. Resolution 2013-028 Adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the City Zoning and 
Community Development Code, establishing fees for miscellaneous City services and 
establishing an effective date (Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor) 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
June 4, 2013 

 
5:00pm URA Board Work Session 

 
6:00pm City Council/Planning 

Commission Joint Work session 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

URA Board Regular Meeting 
 (Following the City Council Mtg.) 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



  

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

 
C. Resolution 2013-029 Adopting the FY2013-14 Budget of the City Of Sherwood, making 

Appropriations, Imposing and Categorizing Taxes, and Authorizing the City Manager to 
take such Action necessary to carry out the Adopted Budget (Craig Gibons, Finance Director) 

 
8. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
11. ADJOURN TO URA BOARD MEETING 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council 
meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at 
Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to 
appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 26 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

May 21, 2013 
 

WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   Council President Linda Henderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Dave Grant, Matt Langer, 

and Bill Butterfield. Councilor Robyn Folsom and Krisanna Clark arrived at 6:05 pm. Mayor Bill 

Middleton was absent. 

 
3. STAFF PRESENT: Joseph Gall City Manager, Tom Pessemier Assistant City Manager, Julia Hajduk 

Community Development Director, Craig Gibons Finance Director, Craig Sheldon Public Works 

Director, Kristen Switzer Community Services Director, Brad Kilby Planning Manager,  Julie Blums 

Accounting Supervisor,  Colleen Resch Administrative Assistant, and Sylvia Murphy City Recorder. 

 
4. TOPICS DISCUSSED: 

 
A. Fee Schedule & Development Fees: 

 

Tom Pessemier briefed the Council with a power point presentation (see record, Exhibit A), recapped 

the purpose of the discussion and informed the Council that the proposed Fee Schedule is scheduled 

to come before the Council for adoption on June 4th. Tom explained the differences between System 

Development Charges (SDC) and Fees. He explained how SDC’s are developed, calculated and who 

pays SDC’s. Tom briefed the Council on SDC’s in comparison to other cities based on LOC (League 

of Oregon Cities) information. Tom explained residential and commercial fees. 

 

Tom explained staff’s recommendation and processes with proceeding forward. The Council 

discussed the Parks Advisory Board and their role and discussed Washington County TDT. The 

Council discussed reaching a consensus to move forward with a methodology. 

 

Julia Hajduk explained fees for site plan, variance fees and conditional use fees. Discussion followed 

regarding code amendments.  

 

Tom stated proposed fee changes will come before the Council on June 4th.  

 

B. Council Summer Meeting Calendar: 

 

The Council discussed their summer meeting schedule and availability of Council members. The 

Council conceded to cancel the July 2nd, 2013 meeting, depending on whether or not staff has 

materials to present.  

 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 26 

5. ADJOURN: 
 
Council President Linda Henderson adjourned the work session at 7:05 pm and convened to a 

regular meeting. 

 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   Council President Linda Henderson called the meeting to order at 7:15 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
3. ROLL CALL: 

 
4. COUNCIL PRESENT: Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Dave Grant, Robyn Folsom, 

Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer and Krisanna Clark. Mayor Bill Middleton was absent. 

 
5. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Tom Pessemier Assistant 

City Manager, Julia Hajduk Community Development Director, Craig Gibons Finance Director, Craig 

Sheldon Public Works Director, Kristen Switzer Community Services Director, Mark Daniel Police 

Captain, Brad Kilby Planning Manager, Michelle Miller Senior Planner, Ashley Graff Intern, 

Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Chris Crean. 

 
Council President Henderson addressed the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion. 
 

6. CONSENT: 

 

A. Approval of May 7, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2013-022 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into an intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) with Washington County for the 2013 Slurry Seal Program 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KRISANNA CLARK, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT 
MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR (MAYOR MIDDLETON WAS ABSENT).  
 
Council President Henderson addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7. PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A. Proclamation Recognizing EMS (Emergency Medical Services) Week 
 

Council President Henderson read the proclamation signed by Mayor Middleton proclaiming May 19-

25, 2013, as Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Week. She noted the EMS system consists of 

emergency physicians, emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, 

educators, administrators and others. She stated the EMS teams, whether career or volunteer, 

engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education to enhance their 

lifesaving skills and it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of EMS 

providers by designating EMS Week. She acknowledged members from Tualatin Valley Fire and 

Rescue (TVFR) in the back of the room and thanked them for their service and for coming to the 

meeting. 

 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 26 

Council President Henderson addressed the next agenda item. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A. Ordinance 2013-002 Declaring certain sidewalks in the City to be defective under 

Sherwood Municipal Code Chapter 12.08 for Areas 1 & 2, Phase 3 
 

Public Works Director Craig Sheldon came forward and stated this is the program where we 

identified approximately 1,700 sidewalk deficiencies throughout the city and said the code states that 

property owners are responsible for the repairs. He said the 211 addresses identified in this 

ordinance can join in the 50/50 split program with the City. The sidewalk fee is paid through utility 

bills as well as the 50% that you are paying back into the coffers to have the sidewalk repaired using 

a City’s contractor.  

 

Councilor Folsom asked Craig if the issues he was talking about are raised sidewalks from tree roots 

where they need to be shaved or replaced. Craig stated that is correct. Councilor Folsom asked 

Craig how much is the average cost of repair, such as a small shave to replacing a large section. 

Craig said the property owners share for a small single shave is generally $22.00, which is a 50/50 

shared cost. A larger repair depends on how damaged the property is, and it has to be 25% of the 

property to qualify for the citizen program, but projects have been up to $1,000 depending on if it is a 

tree issue and if the tree has to be removed. He noted that property owners have 12 months to pay 

for the repairs. Councilor Folsom clarified that the city is working with property owners by not only 

paying for half of the repair, but also allowing 12 months to remit payment.  

 

Council President Henderson referenced areas 1 and 2 and asked how many areas are identified. 

Craig stated the city was separated into 4 areas, and they are still working on area 1 and just starting 

area 2 and this is phase 3 of the project. He said, after the 211 addresses mentioned are repaired, 

Council will see another round of identified issues. He said, he estimated that the 211 addresses will 

probably take, by the time the owners are notified and the bills not going out until later in the fall, we 

probably won’t start this until the middle of July.  

 

Council President Henderson asked the Council if this ordinance should be open to the public to 

receive comments. The Council agreed. 

 

Nancy Taylor, 17036 SW Lynnly Way, approached the Council and asked if removing effected trees 

would be debated and asked what happens if the tree is in the middle of 2 properties. Craig stated 

that some property owners have done a split, but in terms of tree removal, there is a process that has 

to take place. He stated the addresses on the list will receive a letter from the City and then a person 

will come to the property and meet with the owner and provide choices, but the issue has to qualify 

under the program. 

 

Barbara Nordstrom, Lynnly Way, approached the Council and said her sidewalk is impacted by her 

neighbors’ tree and asked how that will be dealt with. Craig asked if her address was identified on the 

list and she stated yes. Craig explained that she will receive a letter in the mail and a City 

representative will come to her property and determine who is responsible for the damage, and if it is 

her neighbor, the City will deal with them. She was concerned about tree removal and stated that she 

did not want to have the tree removed. Craig stated the City tries not to remove trees if at all 

possible, but sometimes that trees planted in these areas are not suitable for the area.  

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 4 of 26 

Council President Henderson asked Craig to clarify why the Council is considering an Ordinance.  

 

Council Folsom noted that the Council already passed legislation approving the process and asked 

why the Council is considering another ordinance.  

 

Craig responded the original legislation requires an ordinance to be approved and states that it can 

be considered under “New Business” and does not require a public hearing. He stated this is relative 

to the program that was adopted in 2011. 

 

Recorders Note: a motion was stated incorrectly with reference to a resolution. Council President 

Henderson stated that Ordinance 2013-002 is being considered. Councilor Clark withdrew the motion 

and restated the following motion. 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KRISANNA CLARK TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT 

ORDINANCE 2013-002, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR MATT LANGER, MOTION PASSED 6:0. 

(MAYOR MIDDLETON WAS ABSENT). 

 

Council President Henderson addressed the next agenda item. 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Ordinance 2013-003 to amend Section 16.12 of the Zoning and Community Development 

Code relating to property zoned Very Low Density Residential 
 

The City Recorder read the Public Hearing Statement, indicating the applicant had 15 minutes to 
provide testimony. 
 
Senior Planner Michelle Miller came forward with a Planning Commission recommendation for a text 

amendment that applies to all properties zoned Very Low Density Residential (VLDR). She presented 

a power point presentation (see record, Exhibit B) and stated a text amendment is a type 5 legislative 

action that if approved by the Council makes changes to the Sherwood Zoning and Development 

Code. She stated an application was made by a property owner of the very low density land to make 

changes to the VLDR zone if developed as a planned unit development (PUD). Michelle stated staff 

has mailed notice to all the property owners with property zoned VLDR, approximately 3 times, 

informing of the public hearings. She stated the planning commission also held 3 hearings and 

received testimony, some of which is before the Council this evening. Michelle reminded the Council 

they are familiar with the applicant as this came before the Council last year and said this text 

amendment applies to all the properties zones very low density residential. Michelle referenced the 

exhibit and a zone map and said the property discussed this evening is a mint green color and  is 

between the Fair Oaks subdivision to the north and the Sherwood View Estates to the south and 

primarily east of Murdock Road. She referenced an aerial map in the exhibit and an area zoned 

VLDR, an area known as the Tonquin Scablands, a rocky terrain sculpted from ancient glacial 

flooding and wetlands located in the southeast portion of the site. The VLDR land is categorized as 

providing for low density, larger single family housing in a natural resource and environmentally 

sensitive areas warranting preservation, but suitable for limited development. She stated aside from 

the Fair Oaks and Sherwood View Estates, there are several parcels that have been developed using 

the standardized zoning rather than a planned unit development.  There are effectively 5 parcels with 

36 acres that remain underdeveloped and a proposed text amendment could potentially utilize those 

standards. She said, because of some of the challenges to developing this area, in 2006 the Council 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 5 of 26 

approved a grant resolution for a TGM Grant to develop a master plan area known as the SE 

Sherwood Master Plan, available in the Council material as labeled exhibit D. She said, participation 

by the property owners was great with about 120 members participating in the process. She said, 

there was not a finalization to the plan. The planning commission adopted a resolution supporting the 

ideas of the plan but the City Council never passed an ordinance in support of the SE Sherwood 

Master Plan. She explained residential land use zones and said we have 5 residential land use zones 

in the city, from very low density, which the standard zone limited lot size of 40,000 square feet 

minimum, to high density which is 5,000 square feet for minimum lot size. She explained that VLDR 

in this zone allows a density of 0.7 to 1 dwelling unit per acre maximum, whereas high density zone 

allows up to 24 units per acre. She explained, comparison in lot sizes and referenced the exhibit. She 

stated that a Planned Unit Development (PUD) is designed to allow flexibility to the development 

code standards with the tradeoff that it must result in the greater public benefit than the standard 

zoning would allow, a developer would also need to dedicate 15% of the area to open space and is 

reviewed by the Planning Commission with a recommendation and must be adopted via an 

Ordinance by the City Council. She said, it allows more flexibility and unique site design and 

promotes efficient use of the land and resources, so these general standards would be applied to the 

text amendment as well, if adopted. Currently, a VLDR has a standard zoning which is up to 1 unit 

per acre and a minimum lot size of 40,000 square feet. She stated, one of the things unique about 

the VLDR is that is allows a special density allowance, if developed with a PUD, with a minimum lot 

size of 10,000 square feet and a density of 2 units per acre and all the regular PUD standards apply. 

She stated, the Planning Commission considered for the recommendation, to add another alternative 

called the SE Sherwood Master Plan Unit Development. Those standards are that SE Sherwood 

Master Plan PUD allows the 4 units per acre, the minimum lot size remains the same, and you also 

have the elements from the SE Sherwood Master Plan incorporated into the evaluation of the PUD. 

Those are identified to include buffering from the existing development, the requirement for open 

space and consideration of the environmental opportunities and constraints identified in the plan and 

identify the view corridors and consideration of the housing design types based on compatibility with 

the surrounding neighborhoods. Michelle explained that the information provided to the Council 

included an executive summary, the proposed Ordinance, the proposed code language, exhibits A – 

Q, and said several more exhibits and comments have been received. Some were provided via email 

and Michelle asked the City Recorder to distribute the rest of the information, (see record, Exhibits: 

C-Yuzon letter, Exhibit D-Gavin Letter, Exhibit E-Kristensen letter and documents). 

 

Michelle asked for questions and requested the Council hold a public hearing and receive testimony. 

 

Council President Henderson asked City Attorney Chris Crean to clarify that this Public Hearing 

process will allow the applicant 15 minutes to address the Council. Mr. Crean stated the applicant 

has a total of 15 minutes, then we will receive public testimony, and some portion of the applicants 

time can be reserved for a rebuttal.  

 

With no other Council questions of staff, Council President Henderson asked to hear from the 

applicant. 

 

Kirsten Van Loo, 30495 SW Buck Haven Road, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123, testified as the applicant’s 

representative. She came before the Council and stated a year ago she made a presentation for a 

PUD and testified at length about the project. She stated, as much as Council wanted to support the 

PUD as it was designed, the attorney representing the City made it very clear that the SE Sherwood 

Master Plan was a summary preceding document that had been endorsed by the Planning 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 6 of 26 

Commission and not carried through to fruition, thus had no legal standing. She stated because it 

had no legal standing we could not use any of the sections or portions of that SE Sherwood Master 

Plan as a legal document to do a PUD in this area. She said the former Mayor asked why we did not 

do a text amendment first and come and change the zoning code first and said then we could have 

supported the project. She stated, she has applied for a text amendment and it has been a long 

process, which began last fall and has involved working with the staff for months to get the right 

language which was the original submitted language the Council has in their packets. She stated 

they have been through 3 hearings and several neighborhood meetings. She stated the document 

that came from the Planning Commission doesn’t bare any resemblance to the text amendment that 

she submitted and requested. She said she submitted what she thought was a very simple text 

amendment to address some very specific concerns. She addressed three issues. First, the minimum 

PUD size in the City of Sherwood is 5 acres and there are several parcels of VLDR land that are less 

than 5 acres and they cannot be developed under any PUD process. She said, my first request was 

that we drop the PUD size in the VLDR district to 3 acres so it will address all of the vacant parcels. 

Second, she requested a minimum lot size of 8000 square feet, and through the public testimony and 

the Planning Commission she raised the request to a 8500 square feet. She said, the reason that we 

asked for a minimum lot size of 8500 square feet is because the methodology that the City uses for 

calculating density takes a gross site and takes all of the public right away out of the gross site and 

then from what is left, one has to subtract any and all water quality facilities that are required to 

manage storm water that come off of the public right-away, and the 15% open space requirement. 

She said, there is absolutely no mathematical way that one can plat 10,000 square foot lots out of 

43,000 square foot lots, which make an acre, and come up with 4 units per acre. She said, the best 

we can hit in a perfect world, absolutely square sites, and every number is perfect, the highest you 

can get with 10,000 square foot lots, if 3.6 units per acre. The best we can do to hit 4 units per acre is 

a 9,000 square foot lot. She provided a drawing that would show what 9,000 square foot lots can do, 

(see record, Exhibit F), 9000 square foot lot will give a net density of 4 units per square acre. She 

stated the problem is there is not one piece of VLDR land that is perfect, it is not square, flat, or 

rectangular or laid out with numbers to allow perfect lots. That is why we asked for 8500 minimum 

square foot lots, understanding that we have a maximum of 4 units per acre. She stated the reason 

we did a SE Sherwood Master Plan was the realization that developing land at 1 unit per acre does 

not allow for the cost of putting in infrastructure to urban standards. When you develop at 1 unit per 

acre, as was done in 2004, on Ironwood Acres, the hearings officer made it clear that an alternative 

to the city’s local street standards is appropriate. She reminded the Council from her testimony one 

year ago, that the reason that was done was because we can’t make findings when developing land 

at one unit per acre to mandate urban streets and urban infrastructure. By developing property at 4 

units net per acre, which allows about 40 lots on a 12 acre site, about 30 lots on a 10 acre site it 

facilitates the potential development of this land that has been sitting fallow for many years. Third, 

she spoke of the issue, relative to the Planning Commission submittal, is the application of a number 

of additional subjective review criteria out of the SE Sherwood Master Plan. She reiterated that the 

attorney representing the City said the document does not have any legal barring and it was a 

summary of the precedings from 7 years ago. She noted the Planning Commission minutes state that 

the SE Sherwood Master Plan was an effort and not a consensus, it was a compromise and it is out 

of date and there was a lot of discontent because there were people who could not reach a 

consensus and they ran out of time and money and the summary preceding that were produced and 

reviewed by the Planning Commission was a wrap-up proceeding. She said it is most inappropriate 

to apply design criteria for a PUD that are extracted from a document that was never ratified by the 

City Council, if that document was a summary proceeding and was never taken before the City 

Council, that means it was not reviewed in the public eye, as it should have been, and it is 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 7 of 26 

inappropriate to apply segments of that document as approval criteria on a PUD. She concluded that 

the current PUD standards are more than adequate to review all of the items that have been 

mentioned and there is no need to add more words to the code. She reserved her remaining 5:34 

minutes for rebuttal.   

 

Council President Henderson asked for Council questions for the applicant, with none received she 

opened the public hearing to hear testimony.   

 

Ms. Van Loo mentioned that she may have to read the testimony for an individual who is losing her 

voice.  

 

Kurt Kristensen, 22520 SW Fair Oaks Court, south of the area that is proposed. Kurt came forward 

and stated he has been involved since 2004, in finding an equitable way of dealing with some 

precious nature on the east flank of Sherwood. He stated he submitted the original planning 

commission resolution (see record, Exhibit E) to remind the Council, as PR people have a way of 

interjecting language and nuances where the truth almost looks like lies. He stated he has nothing to 

gain by stating that there were 200 and 300 people that worked countless hours, days and years to 

come up with the best intention neighborhood development for a very difficult piece of property. He 

referred to this area as the Sherwood east flank and gave examples of how it is a solid rock, such as 

it took him 4 days to put in a mailbox and 2 weeks to put in a drip line and the last house built on Fair 

Oaks Court, had issues with not being able to get the waterline in the ground. He stated the City 

approved the waterline and put through a plastic pipe that was barely in the ground 10 inches. He 

commented that in addition to the document he submitted (see record, Exhibit E) this area is under 

current review by the DEQ and they have just announced that according to the new EPA standards, 

they have to go out and test again because the hexavalent fluoride dangers are even more significant 

than was initially indicated. He stated that he honestly thought that when they completed, in good 

faith, the Planning Commission document the resolution would be transmitted to the City Council and 

the Council would act on it and said we were assuming that we could trust the city government. He 

said over the next several years, they were assured several time that it was being taken care of and 

not until a couple years ago when the current application surfaced, that he learned the document had 

just been buried. He said there is no point in pointing fingers at undo conduct by anyone that was 

involved at the City, but he personally cannot come away with a good trust in the city government 

with the way this was handled. He noted the applicant refers to this resolution as having no barring, 

and said, this may be so because of the way the city government has handled it and said he can 

assure the Council, from those involved in this process, they trusted and believed that they had done 

the right thing and all the requisite things. He asked the Council in looking at the application, in view 

of the DEQ’s current testing schedule, he has made recommendations to the Council; one is do not 

approve this application as the applicant already has adequate size of numbers to do something. 

Wait for the DEQ to rule on this issue and consider setting up a committee to study the entire east 

flank of Sherwood. 

 

Delores Moser, 6424 SW Washington Court, Lake Oswego, 97035, came before the Council and 

had Ms. Van Loo read a statement for her. Ms. Van Loo stated that Delores had 12-15 neighbors 

who live in the Fair Oaks subdivision sign a petition briefly stating their approval for the applicants 

request of 8,500 square foot minimum lot in order to get 4 units per acre, (see record, Exhibit G). Ms. 

Van Loo read the statement that said the Moser’s bought in 1964 and it was zoned R20 between 

1964 and 1987. In 1987, Washington County applied new zoning to the property which was R6 which 

permitted 6 residential units per acre. In 1987, the City requested that the Moser’s consent to annex 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 8 of 26 

into the City with equal zoning from the county and said they have a letter from City Manager Jim 

Rapp stating that they would have a minimum 5000 square foot lot area. She said, with the 

representation of that nature they agreed to be annexed. In 1991, the City down zoned the property 

from 6 units per acre to 1 unit per acre without any notice. In 2005, the City began holding meetings 

and hearings about the SE Sherwood Master Plan and that was the first time the Moser’s learned the 

property had been down zoned 12 years ago. After the time of Mrs. Moser’s husband’s death, she 

had the property appraised and it was worth $4.8 million, but because of the down zoning it is now 

worth $1.6 million, a significant lose in value. She said, Mrs. Moser is willing to have 4 units per acre 

providing 8,500 square feet lots so the land could be developed at 4 units per net acre. Mrs. Moser 

thanked the Council for listening to the statement and mentioned that it had been a long process and 

stated that she would like a continuance so she can get more signatures in favor of the zoning of 4 

units per acre at 8,500 square feet.   

 

Jean Simson, 22466 SW Nottingham Court, came before the Council and stated that she does not 

have property in the area but has invested a lot of time with the SE Master Plan process in the hopes 

of creating something that would benefit the community as a whole. She said the idea of increasing 

density by relying on a 7 year old plan is a bad practice, especially with the drastic changes to the 

Moser property and the DEQ cleanup that is in process. She noted in the purposed statement of the 

current code, when this area was brought into the City it was identified as environmentally sensitive. 

So changing the text within the same code section to accommodate someone that wants to make 

more money does not seem right. She calculated that the proposed language will result in even more 

lots than considered in the SE Sherwood Master Plan. She said it is hard to get a definitive number of 

acres that will benefit, but using 36 acres that the applicant says will benefit from this 36 or PUD 

would allow 72 units and the new text will allow 115 lots based on 4 units per acre. She said, that is a 

worst case scenario, but the plan that has been talked about in the SE Sherwood Master Plan, that 

the neighbors and other people in area considered, allows 82 units. She said, we are increasing it 

significantly by piece-mealing it. She said, it seems the difference is caused by the fact that the 

applicant mentioned gross vs. net. When the Planning Commission and the other factors were taken 

in they were looking at 4.4 net buildable acres in the SE Sherwood Master Plan, which was ultimately 

a gross of 2.2 units per acre and it was reduced when we delineated wetlands. She stated the Moser 

property had a very large treed area and part of the plan in the SE Sherwood Master Plan was the 

protection of the treed area and it caused a density transfer so that smaller lots could be built on their 

property with the preservation of the trees and in consideration of building a large park area at the top 

in addition to the regular wetland easements. She said as she has testified previously, if this piece-

meal text amendment moves forward, the City should incorporate safe guards to protect the 

neighbors and the community including adding some elements for minimum lot sizes, such as 10,000 

square foot, and said 15,000 square foot lots would be better and recommends only increasing to 3 

units per acre, instead of 4, and not allowing variances, allowing extra setbacks or other issues. And 

creating buffer zones and create larger setbacks. She said the open spaces goals envisioned in this 

VLDR in the SE Sherwood Master Plan were closer to 30% open space including the protection of 

the tree property and the parks. She urged the Council to deny this text amendment and remit it to 

the Planning Commission and the community for further study and revisit the entire SE Sherwood 

Master Plan and letting it go to completion.  

 

Lisa Walker, 23500 SW Murdock Road, came forward and provided documents, (see record, Exhibit 

H) and said she is here representing herself, her spouse and her mother. She stated she was been 

involved in the development of this latest language in the proposal in front of the Council and wanted 

to clarify a few things. She stated, first, it is her desire that there be no text amendment change. She 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 9 of 26 

said, we recommended a denial of the text amendment so more work can be done to address these 

concerns that are so important. She said this is the last area in Sherwood with this classification and 

it was set up for a reason, it is an environmentally sensitive area zoned that way for a reason and 

feels it should be kept that way so it can continue to be unique and add to the diversity of the City. 

She stated that no decision needs to be made tonight and said a decision does not need to be made 

at all. The applicant is only one property owner, the Moser’s, and they have a desire to have this 

changed. She stated that if the changes have to be made, it is important that the clear guideline be 

documented to ensure that the spirit of the SE Sherwood Master Plan is considered going forward. 

She stated she noted two areas in the text amendment language in front of the Council that she 

doesn’t feel were captured completely from the planning commission meetings. She stated the 

10,000 square foot lots are very important because of buffering properties of Fair Oaks are 1 acre 

lots and the Sherwood View Estates have a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet but most are 

12,000 up to 19,000 square feet. She stated all the people that have spoken in these meetings prior, 

had a big concern of the buffering of the size of the lot next to the edges of the development should 

be the largest ones. She said, another issue that is not on the sheet is the mention of the 5 acres 

minimum size for a PUD. She said she previously testified that the only other property owner close to 

the 5 acres, was 4.8 acres and she was told by staff that they would qualify for the same 

consideration that  the Denali subdivision was, which allows them to get a PUD for 3 acres because 

of the environmental constraints. She stated it’s important, that if we keep it at 5 acres, which she 

believes we should continue, then we make some designation that…she stated that she doesn’t 

believe that Mr. Huske that owns the 4.8 acres should be kept out of the PUD process, because 4.8 

is close enough. She commented on the applicant’s rejection, the notion that we consider referencing 

the SE Sherwood Master Plan and does not know how we can’t consider the intent of those 

comments that we worked so many year on.  

 

Robert James Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy., came before the Council and provided a history of 

how the area came into existence. He commented regarding Cochrin owning the area and the flats 

and said he was stupid enough to get in a LID that the state was going to take aware from Him. He 

said Jim Rapp came to the Claus’ and asked if they would buy this. Mr Claus stated he refused and 

referenced  the 1939 Bureau of Mines, said a gravel pit is there and needs to be filled and the 

balance of the area is scablands. He commented regarding the Council not knowing what scablands 

are and said this area is the 1000 year pollen records for Oregon in Rock Creek. He said that is the 

water divide between the Willamette River and Tualatin. He said the area is a critical resource area in 

geology, in its water management and its retained research area. He commented regarding Fish and 

Wildlife coming to the Claus’ and McClures about purchasing the land, which they did and Mr. Claus 

said this is why it is not developed. He commented regarding development not occurring because 

they couldn’t, but because the City was polluting the area. He commented regarding a water quality 

facility in the area and a lawsuit. He said he is not hearing in this discussion about the critical 

watershed area, nothing from the Fish and Wildlife, nothing about the 1000 year pollen record and 

has not heard that it is scablands. He commented regarding Kenny Riggs spreading chromium over 

the area and said one thing chromium does is fix and this is why we have a national wildlife refuge. 

He said the reason it starting to drift in this area is because JC Reeves built on Kenny Riggs old 

property. He stated he doesn’t understand how the most precious resource we have left in this town 

is the entrance to the refuge, this is what makes Sherwood livable and this is what you are 

threatening with density plans. He asked why has no one spoken to the US Fish and Wildlife about 

the studies done in this area. He said if the Council is going to breakup an area like this, there are 

studies that have been done, there’s money and life style preservation and to do it without 

environmental harm. He commented regarding the Council being in the same situation as China with 

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 10 of 26 

spreading of heavy metals and salts. He stated the Council is in a critical area and none of these 

questions have been asked.  

 

Dean Boswell, 22796 SW Lincoln, came before the Council and commented regarding hearing of 

the contaminated area and survey’s and forms. He commented regarding movement of dirt will 

results in contaminants flowing into the wetlands and agreed with Mr. Claus regarding protecting the 

wetlands. He commented regarding Sherwood being one city in the US that integrated wildlife into 

the city. He commented regarding the area behind the fire training station and this being 

contaminated with soil movement. He agreed that surveying the land was necessary to determine 

what it will pollute before we move dirt to allow for big houses.  

 

Council President Henderson requested the audience refrain from clapping between testimonies to 

allow the Council to address all issues this evening.  

 

Pat Huske, 23352 SW Murdock Road, came forward and said he owns a number of properties in this 

area and said he has been talking about this for 7 years, and the contamination issue even longer. 

He asked the Council for a continuation for this text amendment due to the distractions. He asked the 

Council if they had a work session on the text amendment or if they are reading emails as presented.  

 

Council President Henderson replied they have not had a recent work session and have received 

additional testimony this week and are trying to absorb it. He requested a continuance to allow for a 

work session as it’s very complicated.  

 

He stated he applauds the Planning Commission and city planners as we have been dealing with this 

for a very long time and from where we started to where we are now, he believes we are closer than 

before. He said he has heard testimony regarding 10,000 square foot lots and not developing the 

area and said as a property owner, how is DEQ going to clean it up and as a citizen how are we 

going to clean it up. He said the City doesn’t have money and the federal government isn’t going to 

come in, it’s up to the property owners. He said for 8 years, he has spent hundreds of thousands of 

dollars trying to clean up that region. He said the only way we can clean it up is to have a few more 

lots. He said he owns the property on Murdock Road with the old barn and lots of trees and his 

property is contaminated. He commented regarding being a property owner and developer and what 

he can provide in developing the area and saving the trees and possibly saving the old barn. He 

commented regarding not clear-cutting the trees before the tree ordinance was in place. He 

commented regarding receiving opposition from the north and the south property owners not wanting 

this in their back yards. He said he is looked upon as the bad guy raping the land and trying to make 

money. He said he is not trying to do this, he is trying to earn a living within our town. He stated he 

lives here, raised his family here and chooses to do business in Sherwood. He commented regarding 

the awesome planning commission and they having to appease a large group of developers and 

neighbors and people that don’t know anything about things. He commented regarding the 

contaminate most at risk is trivalent chromium, which you can buy at a vitamin store. He said the 

EPA standards show that someone is going to have to eat the soil for 364 days a year for 30 years to 

ever come close to having an issue. He said he is just trying to be a good steward of our property 

and our town. He said he wants to clean it up and wants a continuance so they can look at this. He 

said he can save the trees, provide the nature space, give the 40% tree canopy and some beautiful 

family homes. He stated that he is for families and he’s not an evil developer and again urged for 

continuance and eventually a solution.  

 

12



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 11 of 26 

With no further testimony received, Council President Henderson closed the public hearing and 

invited the applicant to provide rebuttal. 

 

Kirsten Van Loo said there are a total of 7 parcels of land that are zoned VLDR that have the 

potential for development. She said you heard from the Moser’s on the Moser parcel and I believe 

there is a letter on record from the Yuzon’s who own 10 acres of land which they annexed in 2006 

when it was in urban Washington County and were zoned 6 units per acre. She said they annexed 

into the City when we were working on the SE Sherwood Master Plan. They were required to sign a 

Measure 37 waiver so they gave up their 6 units per acre, which was 60 dwelling units, they gave it 

up and agreed to work with the SE Sherwood Master Plan process in hopes to gain the majority of 

those back through the SE Sherwood Master Plan planning process. She said, instead of having 60 

units per acre of potential development they now have 9, because they own a total of 10 acres. She 

said, Mr. Huske just testified that he owns land that has been developed as part of Ironwood Estates 

and owns the parcel with the old Murdock barn which is 4.88 acres and said  she categorically 

disagrees with Lisa Walker and does not believe that Mr. Huske can come in and get a variance by 

only having 4.88 acres, but said this is not the time for that discussion. She mentioned the Chin 

property is 3.01 acres and the Walker 3.06 acres and has one single dwelling that could potentially  

be redeveloped. She said the Council has received testimony, either in writing or orally, from the 

majority of the property owners supporting some kind of a text amendment. DEQ is managing the 

DEQ contamination and stated that Mr. Huske has been dealing with it for 7 years and her client has 

been dealing with it as well. She stated DEQ is doing an accelerated testing process and the property 

owners are hoping for a mediation. She stated Mr. Huske is correct that the DEQ remediation will not 

be paid for by the state, county, federal or city government, any and all remediation that has to be 

done will be done by the property owner and the only way to afford it is if they are doing 

development. She concluded the land has been inside the urban growth boundary since the adoption 

of urban growth boundaries in the late 70s, and this land has always been considered developable 

land. She said there are environmental and construction constraints. She agrees with Mr. Huske and 

would appreciate a continuance if the Council feels it is necessary to further evaluate.  

 

Council President Henderson closed the public hearing and asked for Council comments. 

 

Councilor Butterfield said in consideration of receiving documentation later than sooner, he needs 

more time to digest the information. 

 

Councilor Folsom said she agrees and needs more data and information, and answers to questions 

from staff. She stated this is 145 pages of confusion and needs more guidance to understand it, 

considering the Council also just received three lengthy testimonies.  

 

Council President Henderson clarified that both Councilor Butterfield and Councilor Folsom were in 

favor of a continuance at this time. 

 

Councilor Clark agreed. 

 

Councilor Langer stated that we clearly need a work session. 

 

Councilor Grant agreed and asked for a work session and asked staff to provide an executive 

summary regarding the issues raised tonight. He requested a summary of the details in dispute and a 

13



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 12 of 26 

staff and planning commission recommendation. He stated he respects the work done by the 

planning commission.  

 

Council President Henderson asked if there are any legal issues or time periods that we need to be 

aware of if we voted to continue, and asked staff when this issue could be revisited. City Attorney 

Chris Crean responded that this is a legislative decision and there is no deadline. 

 

Councilor Henderson asked staff if they have clear direction from the Council to organize a work 

session in the near future. Michelle Miller clarified that the Council would like information regarding 

the DEQ, the SE Sherwood Master Plan boiled down version of the process, what net density means 

and what that would look like.  

 

Councilor Folsom noted the Planning Commission did ultimately make a recommendation but it 

sounds like there was a lot of discussion and she would like a summary of that discussion. Michelle 

Miller responded that the staff report explains the alternatives that they were debating and reminded 

the Council that the Planning Commission had 3 hearings and took a number of public testimonies on 

this issue and it is a complicated area so it does take a lot of thought to come up with the best 

resolution. She suggested the Council review the information carefully and consider the testimony. 

 

With no further discussion Council President Henderson asked for a motion. 

  

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR GRANT TO CONTINUE ORDINANCE 2013-003 UNTIL THE 

COUNCIL HAS HAD A WORK SESSION AND SCHEDULE TO A LATER COUNCIL MEETING, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT 

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR (MAYOR MIDDLETON WAS ABSENT). 

Councilor Folsom thanked staff and the planning commission for their work on this. Commented 

regarding the appreciation for the many hours of the volunteer commissioners and community 

members.  

 

Council President Henderson stated it would be an injustice to not review the area and the work done 

seven years ago. She called for a 10 minute recess at 8:35 pm and reconvened at 8:45 pm. 

 

10. CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

 

Council President Henderson referenced the recent tornado in Moore, Oklahoma, and spoke of the 

importance of emergency management. She asked for a moment of calmness in light of what a small 

town, similar to Sherwood is going through. 

 

Council President Henderson announced that the FAQ document regarding the proposed Walmart 

has been updated on the City website and thanked staff for their work. She read a brief statement 

reminding the public to fill out a request to speak form and present it to City Recorder. She said, she 

would call the citizens forward in the order that the request forms were received, the citizens need to 

introduce themselves and speak clearly into the microphone. She reminded the public that citizen 

comments are to be limited to 4 minutes and said the Council would like to hear from the public and it 

is helpful to limit testimony to new information, ideas and questions. She said this period is to 

address comments and questions to the City Council and asked the citizens to please keep 

comments professional and respectful and refrain from using personal attacks and stated these 

14



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 13 of 26 

tactics would not be tolerated. She said she anticipated a number of ideas from citizens to adopt 

ordinances regarding Walmart, but reminded the public that legislation cannot be drafted overnight, 

particularly ordinances.  She thanked the public for attending the meeting and stated the City Council 

meetings normally end at 9:30 pm, and she may poll the Council at 9:30 pm as to whether they want 

to extend the meeting until 10:00 pm. Council President Henderson called the following people 

forward. 

 

Janette Hatcher, did not come forward. 

 

Robert James Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, approached the Council and commented regarding 

administrative hearings, substantive due process and procedural process. He commented regarding 

the role of the elected officials, and stated they were not elected to vote their conscious but to bring 

issues to the public and get their thoughts and that’s what representative democracy is about. He 

stated they were not put on the council to vote their opinions. He commented regarding due process 

and having the courtesy to listen and not getting into content. He stated the Council cannot get into 

content and said political speech is the most protected speech. He commented regarding going after 

viewpoint speech and references Obama and the IRS. He stated he attended the Walmart hearings 

and provided names of peoples they could have called and had confirmation they were coming here. 

He commented regarding restricting content and the Council procedurally cutting off people. He said 

the Council may think they are protecting their lifestyle, but they are simply representatives and they 

can’t tell the citizens what they can say, that is content, and they are stepping out of their roles as 

elected officials. He said this will get carried into the polling place. He said the public won’t tolerate 

this and that the distinguishing factor in America today is the First Amendment.  He commented  

regarding the Council shutting off a process and not thinking they have to answer to the public. He 

said the public did not know what was happening in this situation and were told the opposite and now 

the same people think they run the community, but the community is run by the citizens and they own 

it in every sense.  

 

Eric Valdez, 17900 SW Frederick Ln, approached the Council and said he emailed comments to the 

Council and the staff regarding Walmart. He watched the last City Council meeting and he is 

frustrated at the Council’s unwillingness to join the community to stop the Walmart development. He 

said he reviewed the action plan for development within Sherwood and provided feedback through 

the process provided. He said he noticed the Council and the Planning Department don’t seem to be 

in touch with what Sherwood citizens want and urged them to reconsider what the Council is using to 

guide the city vision and represent the citizens of Sherwood and not developers. He said he 

understands a recall petition has been filed to recall Councilor Matt Langer and said rather than drag 

the citizens though that process he urged Councilor Langer to resign and said he does not feel that 

he is representing the community but representing his own.  

 

Tim Vranizan, 15336 SW Highpoint Drive, approached the Council and said he has lived in 

Sherwood for 17 years. He shared information about his wife’s illness and commented that the great 

support from the community has been the silver lining in all of this. He said he has never been more 

proud to be part of this community, but in the last few weeks that foundation has been shaken. He 

stated we all have the right to protest what we don’t want and Walmart coming here, but not when 

you make those protests personal by calling out the Langer family. He commented regarding things 

he has seen being incorrect and uninformed. He said he knows the Langer family and is friends with 

the Langer’s and knows their children and said they are doing what we are all trying to do, and that is 

trying to raise a family and trying to help build a community. He said the Langer’s have been here for 

15



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 14 of 26 

a very long time and without them this community would not be what it is today. He said he has seen 

yard signs and face book posts stating all types of things about the Langer’s in particular Matt Langer 

and urged people to remember that the Langer’s have children and they have friends asking what’s 

going on. He stated we are all trying to do the same thing here and that is to be good stewards of the 

community. He stated the Langer’s have every right within their legal right to develop that land. He 

stated he has heard people talking about Walmart and it putting small businesses out of business, it 

will bring a “lesser quality” of people (this is a quote he has seen) and traffic. He said about 95% of 

our small businesses in Sherwood are service businesses, such as real estate companies, coffee 

shops, dentist and nail salons, none of which will be impacted by Walmart. He referred to the lesser 

quality of people comments and said it is shameful and said they are simply just trying to have a 

better life for their families by buy lesser expensive food and products. He suggested that the people 

who don’t want lesser quality people probably have minimum wage earners mowing their lawns and 

cleaning their homes and have no issues with them. He stated traffic is an issue and if he had a 

choice he wouldn’t choose Walmart, but now that it is proposed he is all for it and supports less 

expensive products and doesn’t believe the negative impact will be as great as everyone says.  

 

Jennifer Harris, 21484 SW Roellich Avenue, approached the Council and read a statement as the 

President of the Sherwood Community Action Committee to expressed concern regarding the 

proposed Walmart development and proposed over 700 letters from Sherwood residents asking to 

keep Sherwood, one of Oregon’s most livable cities. She said these letters were collected in the last 

three days. She said our community has come together in wide spread opposition due to the impact 

Walmart will have on our town. We the residents of Sherwood feel it’s important to stand up for our 

community, our workers, our livability, small businesses and existing retailers. She stated, to please 

take action to support our city by addressing the real threat that the proposed Walmart Super Center 

brings to our town. We are at a crossroad in Sherwood and the decisions you make over the next few 

weeks will have long lasting impacts on our lives. She stated all workers in Sherwood deserve fair 

wages, benefits and an opportunity to thrive. Our local businesses treat their employees well and we 

ask that you work to ensure that large corporations such as Walmart, must do the same if they locate 

to Sherwood. She stated, we ask that you considered the following ordinances. 1) a part time 

workers bill of rights to ensure large retailers aren’t putting a strain on the state resources and putting 

our local businesses at competitive disadvantage. She said large retailers should need to provide 

stable employment and treat their workers fairly. She said included in these ordinances should be 

language requiring retail employers with over 150 employees to give employees the ability to request 

a full time schedule without penalty, prior to additional employees being hired. Notice of work 

schedule at least two weeks in advance. Provisions of proportional benefits, that is, they must 

provide part time employees who work at least 15 hours a week with benefits proportional with those 

working a full time schedule. If employees are receiving state assistance such as food stamps or 

benefits through the Oregon Health Plan, we feel those costs should be covered by the employer and 

not the tax payers of Oregon. She said the language should ban large retailers from staying open 24 

hours and not allowing 24 hour parking. She said none of our existing large stores are open round 

the clock and having one creates an undue burden on taxpayers, the Police force and other 

emergency responders. She said the language should ban the sale of firearms within 1000 feet of 

schools. She said St. Frances is within the boundary of the proposed Sherwood Town Center. She 

said the language should require that if retailers with over 100,000 square feet move out, the building 

must be reoccupied within a year or torn down at the original retailer expense in order to avoid future 

blight in our community. She said it is important for a healthy community to not let Sherwood workers 

and business to not fall prey to the types of corporation policies perpetrated  by Walmart. Sherwood 

can and should do better. She urged the Council to take action and stop Walmart from destroying our 

16



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 15 of 26 

community as it has so many others. She thanked the volunteers for collecting over 700 letters in two 

days. (see record of letters submitted). 

  

Randy August, 22372 SW Nottingham Court, approached the Council with concern about the 

proposed Walmart and referred to a traffic study by ODOT, Washington County, and DKS that said it 

would not impact traffic and said he disagrees. He mentioned the proposed plan for the Cedar Mill 

area was rejected due to traffic. He said he is upset that this town would allow this and if Walmart 

does come to Sherwood he will no longer be a resident. 

 

Dean Boswell, 22796 SW Lincoln Street, approached the Council and said he is against Walmart  

and is disappointed in the City Council overall and said Councilor Clark has been working to try to 

make things better and Councilor Folsom has also been working hard in the community. He said 

every person here does something for the community. He said he is also disappointed with the 

planning commission.  He commented regarding community volunteerism, in schools, churches and 

our local food bank. He said all he gets from the City Council and planning commissioners is that it’s 

the citizens fault for not coming to the meetings. He commented regarding the number of voters and 

expecting 7000-8000 to show up at these meetings. He stated we voted for the Councilors and is 

unsure how the planning commissions are voted in, but did this expecting that they would do what is 

best for the community. He said all he has seen is what’s best for a pocket book.  He said this is 

disgraceful and referred to the hard work of the community and they adding hours to their schedules 

to attend meetings and not having a large enough location to accommodate 7000-8000 people. He 

commented regarding placing blame and finding a facility to house a large group and being there to 

listen to every single person. He stated he will attempt to be at every meeting because of this. Mr. 

Boswell commented regarding providing statements that could get him banned from the meeting and 

Council President Henderson indicated Mr. Boswell take caution with his statement. 

 

Mr. Boswell said money was put above this community and money was put above people and any 

person that puts money first and above the love they have for their fellow human being doesn’t know 

how to love. He referenced Walmart statistics on the web regarding crime and workers being treated 

badly, and said it will fall back on the taxpayers.  

 

Nancy Taylor, 17036 SW Lynnly Way, approached the Council and commented that all the people at 

the meeting may not come after the Walmart issue is resolved, but she intends to come every 

Tuesday night as long as she lives here. She said she feels dubbed by what has happened and will 

give up whatever she need to give up on Tuesday nights to make sure this never happens again. 

 

Nadia Belov, 22741 SW Lincoln Street, approached the Council and said she made a board about 

Walmart on why they are bad and asked to read it to the Council. She commented regarding the 

business practices and said the owners are the 10th riches people in the world, they are billionaires 

and they don’t share their wealth and their employees earn less than $24,000 a year and the workers 

in other countries earn close to nothing often working in sweatshops and said they are not good for 

the environment. She said Walmart puts the town value down and brings crime and traffic will 

increase. She stated she doesn’t think a business with a bad reputation is a good fit for Sherwood. 

She referred to a picture of Walmart workers who work overseas and believes they need higher 

wages. She referred to a picture of Walmart and an empty big box store and a picture of kids 

protesting Walmart and said we don’t want it either.  

 

17



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 16 of 26 

Tony Bevel, 17036 SW Lynnly Way, approached the Council and said he wanted to speak with 

Mayor Middleton and stated he respects Mayor Middleton. He gave an analogy that the Councilors 

are like canaries and the community members are like miners and the Councils job is to chirp when 

there is danger and said we have danger in Sherwood, and the Council did not do their job, they let it 

go on. He said he attended the previous Council meeting and heard the Council say they could not 

stop it and they did not know, he said this is BS. He referenced the voters pamphlet and Mayor 

Middleton’s statement and said he asked the Mayor what his number one goal was and he said to 

bring public trust and transparency back to our government and to serve all our residents. Mr. Bevel 

stated the Council has not done this and he hopes Mayor Middleton addresses this.  

 

Kelli Birtle, 23240 SW Orchard Heights, approached that Council and said she is extremely upset 

with this and did not know and the last she heard Walmart was squashed. She stated she did not 

care if it was Walmart or Winco or Costco, we did not need a big box in our small town endangering 

our children, polluting our air, polluting our sidewalks and our streets. She said our kids know they 

can walk freely no matter where they go in Sherwood. She said any big box store will drag in all 

these other people from all of these communities and if they want a Walmart so bad, let them build it 

in their community, we don’t want it. She stated she heard that the Langer’s knew what was going on 

and said she doesn’t know this and doesn’t care, she said they could have put a rose garden at this 

location, done something that benefitted the community, a lot better than any box store. She stated 

as she gathered signatures, people spoke of a Wholefoods and that would be good to, but what will 

they do for our community and environment, not a lot. She suggested putting in a rose garden or 

planting trees, something that would benefit the community. She said the traffic will swallow this 

town, regardless of how many extra lanes are put in, Sherwood is not designed for that type of traffic. 

She said it was and is this community that built Sherwood, not big investors. She referenced the 

audience and the community that built Sherwood and said they have a right in the town they 

developed to raise their families and bringing in a big box store will result in this town being nothing 

and turning into a City and that is not what we want. She commented regarding the Council being 

thoughtful and said they were not when they decided to let Walmart in and build on this property and 

did not place anybody in front of their own greed. She said we as a community don’t want this and 

asked why is the Council, elected by the people, going against the people and what we want. She 

said the Council is supposed to be the community’s voices and represent the community and are 

doing the exact opposite. She asked the Council if they can live on a minimum wage job and live the 

lifestyle they live today. She commented regarding Walmart not paying their employees and not 

being able to live on a minimum wage. She stated Walmart can afford to pay more than minimum 

wage and can afford health insurance and sick leave and they choose not to because they are 

greedy and selfish and the Council is allowing it, and are no better than they are. She stated our 

children will not be safe and asked if the Council has seen the Walmart UTubes and referred to 

“those types of people” in our community, wandering streets at 2am.  

 

Council President Henderson asked to keep the meeting professional and said she understands 

there is a lot of high emotions and heckling and comments while someone is speaking is not 

respectful and does not believe it represents our community. She stated there are others that still 

want to speak and the Council and staff will be available after the meeting.  

 

Steven Langer, 44205, NW Arnold Lane, approached the Council and read a statement saying they 

have lived in this community for 125 years, and his great grandfather settled in Sherwood in 1879, 

immigrating from Prussia. He said they donated the land to the St. Frances Catholic Church and 

donated land for the J. Clyde Hopkins Elementary school many years ago. He stated part of the 

18



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 17 of 26 

current Glen Eagle area was also part of the Langer 320 acres deeded to him from the State of 

Oregon. He said they have contributed immensely and his mother provided meals to the Catholic 

Church on numerous occasions. He said his mother and father lived here for 60+ years, raising their 

boys who all worked their farm the entire time. He said they have lived here longer than anyone in 

this community, he believes. He stated it is unfortunate that his mother was unable to see this 

development and she was aware there were several possibilities and unfortunately passed away a 

year ago. He stated she lived with him while on dialysis and in her last days before dying, her only 

regret was not living to see the completion of this. Mr. Langer stated there was an email sent to 

Councilor Langer that is unconscionable and unacceptable. He commented to the audience 

members and referenced the email about his mother’s funeral and Councilor Langer parading his 

grandmother through town. Mr. Langer stated he paid for his mother’s funeral and made the 

arrangements for the horse drawn carriage and said comments sent about Councilor Langer 

“laughing all the way to the bank while his grandmother lay dead”, is unconscionable. He spoke to 

the audience and said they have a right to their opinions but do not have the right to personally attack 

the family, he said they should be ashamed and this was unacceptable.  

 

Lori Randel, 22710 SW Orcutt Place, approached the Council and said she has livability issues to 

address. She asked the City post the plan for the new art center and said the discussion about what 

goes in this building is not being opened. She said while she trusts Councilors Folsom, Henderson 

and Butterfield for getting the needed theatre space and auditorium space but wants to be sure that 

there is a space for the visual arts. She said emails with City Manager Joe Gall indicated that 

classrooms will be added but wants to know if they are art classrooms or meeting space classroom 

and said if they are art classrooms they should include large sinks, storage space, durable floors and 

surfaces, usable art space. She said she would like to see a dedicated and appropriate gallery 

space, not the lobby. She said she would like to see what is being proposed posted on the city 

website and an opportunity for people to comment. She urged everyone to go to the city website and 

read the Sherwood Town Center Action Plan and commented regarding the vicinity the plan refers to. 

She commented regarding the Walmart project and the Sherwood Town Center plan having the 

same name and this being confusing. She urged people to take the survey. She said she does not 

want to see low and medium density in that area, between 6 corners and old town, turned into high 

density, like the ill-conceived project across from her house on Willamette. She said she has heard 

this project referred to as the insta-slum and is worried that it will become that. She said she doesn’t 

want to see 4,5 or 6 story “insta-slums” being built in old town. She stated the plan basically does 

away with the cap on three story building. She stated she does not want the city to continue putting in 

ugly blue fixtures. She said everyone needs to have their voices heard by filling out the survey. She 

said she would like to urge the Council to pass any ordinances possible to discourage Walmart from 

opening and if they do open, ordinances that will force them to improve working conditions for their 

employees and ordinances that will improve the safety for Sherwood residents and the livability of the 

small town we love. She said if the store does open, she urges everyone to boycott and shop at local 

stores that treat their employees, suppliers and community in an upstanding manner. She said she 

would rather see one large empty store than several small ones. She urged the residents to sign the 

recall petition and said while it has not been determined that Councilor Langer has done anything 

illegal, she believes it is clear that as a Council member he is not working in the best interest of 

Sherwood and she can no longer trust in his decision making as a Council member and said she 

urges Councilor Langer to resign.  

 

Rick Hoar, approached the Council and said he has been friends with the Langer family for over 30 

years and has watch the kids grow up. He referred to the email Councilor Langer received and said it 

19



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 18 of 26 

was terrible that someone would attack someone like that and clarified his coordination regarding 

Council Langer’s grandmother’s funeral. He commented regarding people not having brains and said 

he could have purchased this land, sold it to Walmart or to anyone. He said Fred Meyer could have 

purchased it and asked if anyone knows how Fred Meyer treats their workers. He stated he knows 

three people employed by Fred Meyer in high positions who were not given 40 hour work-weeks to 

avoid giving insurance. He urged people to do research about big employers before testifying. He 

commented regarding the public perception of the Council allowing Walmart and the lack of 

knowledge regarding what authority the Council has in land use decisions. He stated he has yet to 

hear this information; that in 1995 when this was approved, was Langer on the Board, no he was not. 

He said in 2007 when the plan was readdressed, was Langer on the Board, no he was not. He said 

people are here to attack the Langer family and the Langer name because they sold the land for a lot 

of money and those attacking don’t want anybody to be better off than themselves. He stated this is 

really bad. 

 

The City Recorder reminded Council President Henderson that it was passed 9:30 pm. Councilor 

Henderson stated that she had 5 more request to speak forms and asked for Council input.  

 

Councilor Grant said he would like to continue hearing from the citizens, and the rest of the Council 

agreed.  

 

Councilor Folsom responded to the comments regarding the plans for the new Community Center 

and said the plans were available at the May 7, 2013, City Council meeting, and asked staff to post 

them on the city website. 

 

Wes Freadman, 21315 SW Baler Way, approached the Council and agreed with Tim Vranizan and 

commented that he is proud to call Matt Langer a friend, his family are friends with him and his kids 

play with the Langer kids. He stated he supports the Langer family whole heartedly. He referred to 

the arguments about wages and benefits and big box stores and said Home Depot and Target are 

big box stores too and doesn’t know why Walmart is so bad. He said he has heard of traffic concerns 

and comments wishing for a Fred Meyer and said everything will bring in traffic. He said the Langer’s 

have been here forever and sold their property, they can no longer farm it. He referenced complaints 

over Walmart and complaints over, pesticised, noise and dust. He said the Langer’s are paying the 

taxes on the property, and referred to earlier statements of wanting a rose garden and said if 

someone wants a rose garden to put it on their own property. He said this is ridiculous and he doesn’t 

understand this kind of arguments. He said as far as recalling Councilor Langer, no good deed goes 

unpunished, he gave up a lucrative career at a construction company to come home and care for his 

family after his father had a stroke. He commented regarding Councilor Langer’s volunteerism in the 

community and Council and not getting rich off these things. He said personal attacks are ridiculous 

and Matt is an honest man he would trust with his life and those of his kids. He said he is sick and 

tired of the personal attacks, and people should keep it to the facts, putting logic with facts and said 

he did nothing wrong. He commented regarding people not selling their house to the lowest bidder, 

but to the highest bidder. He commented regarding minimum wage jobs at Walmart and said so is 

Target and a lot of other jobs, he said minimum wage is a temporary fix and is not supposed to be 

something you would support a family on. He said he doesn’t understand the lack of logic and 

reasoning and arguments. He stated he is proud to call Matt his friend and is tired of the personal 

attacks. 

 

20



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 19 of 26 

Dan Predoehl, 22677 SW Lincoln Street, approached the Council and thanked them for the 

opportunity to speak and said he values the opportunity to engage in conversation and have freedom 

of speech in a democratic environment. He said he is concerned, regardless of what the big box 

store is, concerns about the effect a big box store will have on Lincoln Street, which is already called 

Lincoln Highway. He stated drivers coming from Sunset are flying down his street. He said numerous 

residents have contacted the city about this problem, and residences have asked the Sherwood 

Police Department to post additional officers in the area, neither of which seems to have happened or 

changed with people speeding. He requested, from a safety standpoint, regardless whether the 

building goes in, this issue be dealt with as soon as possible. He commented regarding statements of  

“those kind of people” and said he feels there’s hypocrisy in the air and said we are in favor of people 

earning a living wage, which is good. He said those who are categorizing as “minimum wage people” 

or “low income people” are no less value to anyone in this room. He commented regarding devaluing 

each other and this not making us any better than the people we don’t want in town. He asked when 

thinking about it to have some integrity and self-perception, and without this we aren’t doing much 

better than those you don’t want here. He commented regarding people defining “those people” and 

getting someone’s feedback on the definition. He commented regarding whether it’s a minority or 

someone that doesn’t look like you, they are just as valued. He stated he doesn’t know Councilor 

Langer and he and his wife are small business owners of Blue Plume Art Studio, a home business on 

Lincoln Street and is in favor of consumerism and capitalism and wants to make a profit in his 

business and if he had a chance to sell it for a profit he would. He said to attack someone in a 

capitalist environment for where someone is trying to make a living by selling a piece of property or 

running their business well, that is what makes America. He is concerned about the impact on 

crimes, with any type of store going in, he doesn’t want to be in a fearful environment and is 

concerned about crime. He said in the proposed budget Mayor Middleton suggested cutting two 

police positions and said that is not helpful to the city. He stated if there is an issue with crime, he 

recommends to the Council to consider a budget that does not cut the Police force but protects the 

citizens. 

 

Jennifer Predoehl, 22677 SW Lincoln Street, approached that Council and shared a story about 

living wages and her prior living situation in LA and Colorado. She said she lived in a small 

community with a Walmart and it was the only place in town to buy cloths and home good because 

they had put everyone else out of business and she did not have any job opportunities, unless she 

wanted to be a greeter for minimum wage. She said they moved to Sherwood for a better job 

opportunity, they moved with no jobs, but hope, and were soon on food stamps. She said she and 

her husband have both worked minimum wage jobs in the past, even with college degrees. She said 

he is now an Associate Director at George Fox University and they own Blue Plume Art Studio. She 

said she traveled to South Africa to teach art to aids orphans for 2 months, and said these children 

live in shacks and have no shoes and are lucky to get 2 meals a day. In March, their township burned 

down leaving 4,500 homeless.  She shared a personal experience with a young man she met in 

Africa and their personal losses. She said, as a small business owner in Sherwood, she knew our 

town could make a difference because we understand what the individual is worth. She said she may 

not have a million dollars to fix some of these places in the world, the places she said Walmart takes 

advantage of and the consumerist America buys into. She is proud to say that Sherwood came 

together this past weekend and raised over $5,000 for the children in South Africa. She said believing 

in local business will provide hope and create heart, and will give us a community that believes in 

living wage not only here but across the globe.  

 

21



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 20 of 26 

Meerta Meyer, 24002 SW Middleton, approached the Council and said she is longtime resident and 

is a principle Real Estate Broker and has been in the commercial real estate profession for 15 years 

and has managed millions of square feet of multiple use properties. She stated in her business they 

work to foster long term relationships with owners, developer and their prospective tenants, and work 

within communities to provide and foster positive relationships. She said when she reviews 

prospective tenants as a representative of the property owners, her recommendation is based not 

only on financial matters but also on the implications of those materials and perceived impacts. She 

said she has multiple concerns about Walmart coming to Sherwood and said it is very well 

documented that Walmart will deter other businesses from coming to Sherwood and is well 

documented that their business model will drive out existing small businesses. She referred to the 

earlier work session and the discussion about reviewing SDC’s, vacancies will likely increase with the 

Walmart opening, she urged the Council to think about incentivizing small businesses to come into 

town and said a lengthy discussion on SDC’s and how the fees are applied to small businesses 

needs to be taken into consideration. She said based on existing code she asked the Council to 

make an emergency decision to ordain the proposed ordinances as requested by citizens and as 

presented by Jennifer Harris. She asked the Council to review the economic goals of Sherwood and 

said we have a very clear plan and very clear goals and the objectives are not being met. She said 

the Council needs to listen to the constituents and make decisions on our behalf that benefit this 

community. She asked the Council to take the goals of the economic development plan for Sherwood 

and align them with the Council mission statement, with the focus on partnerships and community 

pride. She urged the Council again to consider the ordinances on an emergency basis which is 

allowable under the existing code.  

 

Richard Rementeria, did not come forward. 

 

Brian Larson, 22813 SW Saunders Drive, approached the Council and stated that he does not have 

an issue with someone owning and selling property and understands that it is an investment, but 

does have an issue with what has taken place since that point with Matt Langer not as a property 

seller, but as a Council member and the City Council in general, and the City Planning Department. 

He said the same thing happened in Hillsboro and they worked together and represented their city 

and did not allow Walmart. He said most people are frustrated because we haven’t seen that here. 

He said he has heard this was posted 1-2 years ago and referenced public notice locations and said 

this to him was the minimum. He said if we knew based on square footage, the plan that was 

proposed and who the players were, a believes a big box of any kind is not favored here, with 

Walmart being the worst choice. He asked why where we not more proactive and understands 

Hillsboro rules are different from Sherwood and referenced the FAQ’s. He said he feels like the 

citizens have not been represented in this process and said the residents need signs from City 

Council and the Planning Commission that they want to work with us and said opportunities have 

been missed. He said what he has not seen since the last Council meeting is the Council or Planning 

Commission coming to the public with ideas and looking at options that can be done now. He said he 

is in favor of the ordinances being spoken of and referenced the City of Portland addressing wages. 

He said saying this is not going to impacting businesses in Sherwood is ridiculous, as there’s 20 

other businesses going in next to Walmart, coffee shops, donut shops and hairdressers, all the things 

we have in old town. He mentioned impacts to Albertson’s and Target, stores that have fit well in the 

community. He referred to studies that show the negative impacts Walmart has on communities and 

mentioned that if Albertsons or Target move out what type of tenant will occupy that space, a 

Goodwill store, the options are limited. He asked what else can the Council do to work with the 

community to give ideas and options. 

22



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 21 of 26 

Elizabeth Farnum, 16933 SW Cobblestone Drive, approached the Council and agreed that 

unfounded attacks are not necessary or productive. She referred to the Sherwood goals on the city 

website that mention the small town atmosphere, a historical town, and a quiet community and asked 

why, if that is the goal and why so many live here, did we need to zone for a store that large. She 

agreed that instead of attacking we need to be productive and asked the Council to consider the 

suggested ordinances and to work with their fellow citizens in looking at ways we can deter this 

organization from opening and respect the wishes of the majority that have spoken.  

 

Council President Henderson stated given the time of almost 10pm, she had three more request to 

speak forms and will not be accepting any others. Council conceded.  

 

Beth Cooke 23598 SW Mcloughlin Court, approached the Council and commented regarding the 

potential jobs provided by Walmat. She asked the Council to seek out employees from Walmart, 

particularly employees from West Linn. She said these are not minimum wage jobs that provide full 

time employment, it’s a well documented corporate practice of Walmart to keep employees to less 

than 30 hours per week. She said at Oregon’s minimum wage this is approximately $14,000 per year, 

which is not a livable wage. She said she admires those in the community that have the optimism to 

believe that this store will be different, and will not have the same negative impact on businesses and 

other communities. She said she does not share the optimism and asked the Council to act now and 

take action regarding the proposed ordinances and maintain our healthy community.  

 

Naomi Belov, 22741 SW Lincoln Street, approached the Council and said over the weekend she 

went out with two petitions, one was a “No Walmart” and said she had tremendous response and the 

other petition was for a living wage. She said she found it amazing the response from people that do 

not want Walmart in their community, people from different socioeconomic backgrounds, 

conservatives and liberals. She said it’s not a partisan issue, it’s a town pulling together saying we 

have a standard we want to set for our community, one that will provide for small businesses that 

adhere to that standard or any store. She commented regarding positive impacts in our community 

by adoption of the ordinances as well as throughout the world. She commented regarding being very 

upset about a fire in Bangladesh that killed over 1000 people, when the roof fell while people were 

making Walmart products. She said not only will our community benefit from the ordinances and 

standards, but hopefully our country as a whole will begin to address this issue. She commented 

regarding importing cheap products made by these countries and supporting their livelihoods. She 

said by us setting this standard, it will have a positive impact across the globe.  

 

Tamara First, 16425 SW Wildlife Haven, approached the Council and said she lives a block outside 

of historical old town Sherwood and moved to Sherwood 3 years ago from Aloha. She mentioned 19 

years ago when they bought their house there, it was completely different. She commented regarding 

letting their children ride their bikes in their neighborhood and said they choose Sherwood as their 

community because they wanted their kids to have the freedom as teen to go to the library, the coffee 

shop and Target. She said their kids are teens now and when looking at the prospect of having 

Walmart in the community, it’s disheartening. It’s not the fact that it’s Walmart and what Walmart 

people look like, she said she has shopped at Walmart and will not support this one. She said she is 

disappointed they did not have the information in advance as to who the actual resident was for the 

property. She quoted Matt Langer, “this project was in the works for 15 years”, and Barry Cain said 

Walmart has been the company for the last 1.5 years, that they planned on having at that location. 

She said she is very disappointed that last November when information was given out that Matt 

Langer said he did not have to or was not required to share who the tenant was. She said she thinks 

23



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 22 of 26 

the reason this has taken so long and has come so close to development time is because Councilor 

Langer knew people would oppose this and said this disappoints her. She said he also stated that he 

felt the community would support this project, she said she hopes he knows this is untrue. She said 

she loves this community and wants it to be a safe place and wants this to be a good economic 

structure for Sherwood and doesn’t want to see small businesses go under.  

 

Council President Henderson thanked everyone for coming and participating and said the Council will 

be working with staff to review ideas and the suggestions that were brought forward, and when the 

Mayor returns from vacation next week they will discuss the items and bring the information to the 

next meeting on June 4, 2013. 

 

Council President Henderson addressed the next agenda item. 

 

11. CITY MANAGER AND STAFF DEPT REPORTS 

 

City Manager Joseph Gall provided an update on the lighting project on the Ridges campus and the 

Sherwood Middle School and reminded the Council that they talked about using the anticipated 

Parks SDC’s from the apartment building that is under construction. He said the project is moving 

forward but will not have the money until July 1. He said we can’t spend money until we have it, but it 

is in the budget. He stated, we are working hard to make this happen by the fall, and we are going to 

go back to the Parks and Recreation Board before going out to bid for the lighting project.  

 

Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier provided an update on the downtown street and said they 

were planning on paving the alleys but were delayed by the rain, but are still ahead of schedule and 

plan on being ready for Cruis’In Sherwood. Ms. Henderson asked when Washington Street is to 

open. Tom replied he doesn’t know the exact date, but it was shortly after the paving of the alleys, in 

the next week or two.  

   

Council President Henderson addressed the next agenda item. 

 

12. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilor Folsom formally requested that a letter from the City be sent to Gramor Development 

asked them to possibly find a different name for the Sherwood Town Center because we have been 

working with the Metro grants and Sherwood Town Center Plan project for several years and this is 

very confusing  

 

Mr. Gall said staff has already drafted the letter, but it would be helpful to have the elected officials 

support. The Council agreed to support the letter. 

 

Councilor Folsom asked if Garth Appanaitis from DKS Engineering would approach the Council and 

explain the traffic study they did for the City of Sherwood. She assured the community that it may 

seem like we are not be proactive, but said the Council hears the concerns and she has spent 

several hours over the past two weeks working on this issue and said the laws and the code are very 

important in this case and said this is very different from the Hillsboro project, because of the way it 

was set up. She said Garth with DKS will explain a study that was done using a conservative 

methodology to apply the traffic standards that are going to happen in this situation. 

 

24



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 23 of 26 

Garth approached the Council and said he is with DKS, who serves as the City’s on call Traffic 

Engineer. He said they helped reviewed the traffic studies that were prepared for this site over the 

last several months. He said at the time of the application the specific use was not called out, so they 

could just look at general use and general trip generation. He stated, the procedure looks at trip 

generation for the suspected traffic that will be generated. The use that was used was general 

shopping center with supporting retail pads. He said they were helping the City review the materials 

and there were other discussions of other potential uses and a lot of theories of what that use could 

be. He said another type of land use category for a trip generation would be more applicable to the 

study. He said at the time, we requested the applicant do some sensitivity test and look at some 

potential uses, which included the categories of a freestanding discount store and a freestanding 

discount super store. He said these are categories that are typically associated with both Walmart 

and Super Walmarts. He said the Super Walmart includes grocery. He said through that analysis 

they reviewed, it would not include more trips than what was assumed in the original analysis  

 

Councilor Folsom asked Tom to speak of why the traffic can be navigated because it’s not on the 

existing roads that are there and what’s happening with the changes and expansion of North Langer 

Parkway. Tom clarified to Garth and said he believes what Councilor Folsom is asking for is what 

improvements did they show in their model.  

 

Garth said he didn’t have the full conditions of approval with him but recalls some of the 

transportation related projects that will be constructed per conditions of approval and other 

agreements include the extension of Langer Farms Parkway from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to Hwy 

99 in front of Home Depot. The traffic signal at Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Langer Farms Parkway 

and believes there is a fee in lue of the frontage improvements along Tualatin-Sherwood Road. He 

said as many know, Washington County is looking at a design project for the cross section of 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road which will be near the frontage of that site.  

 

Councilor Folsom asked Tom or Julia for a timeline for the project on Tualatin-Sherwood Road. Julia 

replied she received a message form the County project manager that they are still on target for 2014 

construction. Julia added it’s possibly widening and reconfiguring entrances.  

 

Councilor Folsom asked Julia if Target was 135,000 square feet. Julia replied, she cannot confirm but 

believes it’s something like that.  

 

Councilor Folsom said that the Council is taking in all this information and wanted to clarify that the 

Hillsboro project was very different. Julia confirmed that because of the location of the proposed 

Walmart in Hillsboro in a station area, it required it to go to the City Council level as this was part of 

their code and process. Julia stated when you hear from people that the Hillsboro Council voted 

against it that’s because their process required a recommendation from the planning commission and 

a decision by the Council, similar to the planned unit development process, here in Sherwood. She 

said this is why they viewed it and voted on it. She said her understanding in speaking with Hillsboro 

staff person, is that it was voted against, denied, for traffic reasons. Julia stated she is not aware of 

the traffic issues that warranted denial.  

 

Councilor Folsom said what she hears is the difference of the Sherwood PUD is said the PUD was 

approved by the planning commission and the Council in 1995. 

 

25



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 24 of 26 

Councilor Folsom thanked everyone who came to the VPA benefit concert, and reported that money 

was raised and grants and scholarships will be given.   

 

Councilor Clark stated she has heard a lot of testimony from citizens and has written down the 

ordinance ideas and asked Mr. Gall if he needs direction from the Council to move forward and draft 

these ordinances. Mr. Gall said it would be preferable to get some sense from the Council to explore 

any or all the ordinances and said it would be handed off to the City attorney to look at legality and 

what we can do within our current laws.  

 

Naomi Belov came forward and provided documents and offered to support the Council (see record, 

documents added to the letters submitted by Jennifer Harris). 

 

Councilor Clark said she is hearing the citizen comments and her viewpoint on what she is hearing is 

that we have America and people get to own their land and people get to sell their land and that is 

the American way, but there are people that are not happy with the choice this landowner made. She 

stated as a community it is well within our rights to say that we want to define by ordinances how we 

see our community. She said she agrees with Tim Vranizan who spoke of a personal situation. She 

said  wonderful ideas have come up in these discussions, but there have been some non-Sherwood 

things said to hurt people directly and that is not the Sherwood that she knows, that helps families in 

need and wants our children to be safe and to have a wonderful community. She wants to not 

criticize people but critique policy and ask what we are going to do to embrace each other and build 

each other up and make this community continue to be a great community that we moved here for. 

She wants ordinances that support that, because that is the Sherwood she loves and serves, she 

stated for the record, she is not a liar and did not know what was happening because it was not her 

land. She cares about the community and wants to see us caring about each other and not tearing 

each other down and not pointing the finger but asking what can we do to make this community 

greater.   

 

Councilor Grant complimented Council President Henderson for managing the meeting so well. He 

said there’s a lot of high emotion in the room and it is not easier for the Council to know when to draw 

the line. He said we want the comments and said the state doesn’t require us to have citizen 

comments, but we do. He commented regarding accepting comments for this reason, to hear what 

everybody has to say. He said he doesn’t like to hear this first amendment stuff as he wants to see 

everything and hear everything. He said there is no shutting down of people, he wants to hear from 

the people. He said people in this room are learning about the Council and how the process works 

and believes there are fewer people saying why did you pick Walmart. He said we did not pick 

Walmart, and it would not have been his first choice. He said this is not what we do and people 

should feel lucky this is not what we do, because governments would be bad at that. He said he 

would like to take credit for Safari Sam’s, the Ice Arena or Pacific Family Dental, but as a Council 

they can’t, they can’t choice. He said he believes people are starting to understand this. He said the 

first he saw about Walmart was on the lighted sign on Hwy 99 and said it can’t possibly be a big 

surprise to people in town, because it’s been the talk. He said he is a friend of Councilor Langer and 

said he specifically did not ask him over the last year, because he knew that Councilor Langer, 

because he knows Councilor Langer is an honorable person and was contractually obligated to keep 

his negotiations private. He said he knows how these negotiations work and they are all that way, not 

just Walmart. He said he hopes people honor that and understand this is how it works. He referenced 

the Kohl’s and Target remaining quiet until they had to announce. He said he believes this process 

has gone as well as it can, and it is different from Hillsboro. He said people compare us to Woodburn 

26



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 25 of 26 

and said this is a terrible comparison, he said he has seen the plan and this is not anything like what 

he’s seen in Woodburn and said this town is nothing like Woodburn either. He said he doesn’t want 

what Woodburn has and doesn’t believe it will happen. He said he’s been to Wilsonville and has seen 

what they have in their big box store and appreciates the comments about big box stores and 

believes the development with the Fred Meyer is great. He said this is what he wants for Sherwood. 

He said he is excited about this project and it will serve us, this town, in ways we are not serving. He 

said he doesn’t believe it will shut down small businesses, because we don’t have small businesses 

that are geographically isolated, like some rural towns. He mentioned the isolated town of Joseph. He 

said we should think closely about the comparisons we make. He referenced Hillsboro and Cornelius 

and the Walmart there and said a lot of people are driving to Winco, Woodburn and Cornelius and 

this tells me we aren’t serving people in this town. He said many people, like himself, go to Walmart 

when that is what they want and if it’s not what we want, we go someplace else. He said we are not 

serving the people of this town and this project will serve families on tight budgets or on fixed 

incomes. He commented regarding the Council’s many discussions of what it takes to bring 

businesses to town, the impediments to businesses and SDC’s and fees. He said this is what that 

looks like. He said he doesn’t believe it’s going to turn our town into a waste land and stated this is a 

national smear campaign, mixing into this discussion, and promoted by the labor unions. He 

commented regarding people having an ax to grind against the Langer family and said we all need to 

slow down, he said he is sadden that this has pitted us against each other. He said we do this 

because we love this town, he said we are not paid, and he personally doesn’t even turn in his 

expenses. He said he has lived here for 20 years and wants good things to happen in this town. He 

said we are forced to deal in reality and facts, looking at the actual situations and make decisions. He 

commented being anxious for the traffic improvements. He urged people to work together. 

 

Council President Henderson reminded the Council of the URA work session that is scheduled after 

the Council meeting tonight. Mr. Gall said the URA work session could be postponed. The Council 

agreed to postpone. 

 

Councilor Matt Langer thanked everyone for coming and stated that the PUD was zoned in 1995 and 

in 2007 the City reconfirmed this zoning. He stated that he was not on the Council for either of these 

votes. He said that since 2007, there has been a sign on Tualatin-Sherwood Road notifying the 

public of the pending project. He said at some point a line must be drawn between his private life and 

his role as a City Councilor. He said specific details regarding the latest retail project happened to fall 

on the personal side of that line. He invited everyone to look at the city records to see that there were 

no ethical or legal lines that were crossed.  

 

Councilor Butterfield said that he has known Matt for a long time and has been here for 20 years and 

stands by him as an honest man and he depends on him, and Matt depends on him, and said we in 

the community should depend on each other. He said we are taking the information seriously and we 

know that it is an issue and we are working to try to come to some solution. 

 

Council President Henderson said that what we have heard from the public and from the Council, we 

want to ask staff to consider ordinances, and there were a number of them, to do some research 

maybe look at other communities and legal and finding out if we are able. She mentioned the 

forbidding of the sale of firearms and said she believes this is sanctioned by State law and we cannot 

supersede State law. Asking staff to look into livability issues, wage issues and then we will come 

back and review the list and decide how we want to move forward. How can the ordinance be drafted 

and applied and whether it can be an emergency ordinance or not, find out what kind of noticing we 

27



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
May 21, 2013 
Page 26 of 26 

have to do. Councilor Henderson commented this is often what we do when we have a new topic, is 

ask staff to research, hold a work session, we often do our own research. She said Councilor 

Butterfield mentioned relying on each other and said we often meet, not in a quorum, but periodically 

to talk about issues that we are concerned about in our community, and work together to bring those 

issues to the Council. She said we do this all the time, and this is Councilor’s Grant 11th year on the 

Council and her 9th year and Folsom’s 5th year and we bring issues to staff all the time, regarding 

livability, concerns about traffic. She commented regarding an audience member leaving due to ADA 

issues. 

 

Mr. Gall said that is enough direction and thanked the citizens who put together the sample 

ordinances and said we will try to work on this as soon as possible to bring it back to the Council for 

consideration. 

 

Council President Henderson asked the citizens that have sample draft ordinances in electronic 

versions to forward them to staff.  

 

Councilor Folsom said it is a good thing for our community that the citizens are here and said that is 

how she got involved in the Council and said one of the Council goals was to have a citizen group 

formed to look at the Charter revisions. 

 

Council President Henderson said that she had the privilege to representing Sherwood in 

Washington DC last week with Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier. She said they spent two and 

a half days meeting with a number of agencies, including the Economic Development Administration, 

US Department of Rural Development, the National Endowment for the Arts, regarding our Cultural 

Arts Center, met with the EPA, regarding the Tanner site and with the Department of Justice for a 

COPS Grant. They met with staff from Senator Merkley and Senator Wyden’s office and had 40 

minutes with Congresswomen Bonamici. She said that Bonamici had just been to Sherwood 3 weeks 

before and spoke of all that is wonderful in Sherwood and was impressed with what she saw and is 

interested in coming back. She said she learned a lot and it was a great opportunity and hopes that in 

return we will find some federal money to do things in Sherwood to help pay off debt early, to help us 

with the Community Center, to get areas of town cleaned up through the EPA and grants for facilities 

in our community that will need improvements. She said she would like to have our lobbyist Joel 

Rubin for an open work session to talk about the relationships we try to maintain with our federal 

agencies. She thanked the City for making all the arrangement and thanked the City Recorder for her 

support. 

 

13. ADJOURN 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:45pm. 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

              

Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 

 

28



 

Resolution 2013-024, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums,  Accounting Supervisor 
Through: Craig Gibons, Finance Director and Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2013-024 - Certifying the Provision of Certain Municipal Services 

in Order to Qualify the City to Receive State Revenues 
 

 
 
Issue: 

This is a resolution that certifies to the State of Oregon that City of Sherwood provides 

sufficient services to be eligible to receive state revenues. 

 

Background: 

The State of Oregon distributes a portion of Cigarette, Liquor taxes and Highway 

Apportionment Fees to eligible municipalities.  

 

Financials: 

The allocation of this revenue is based on population. In Sherwood’s case this amounts to 

$282,000 in FY14 General Fund revenue and $1,010,588 in FY14 Street Fund revenue. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests adoption of Resolution 2013-024 certifying the provision of 
certain municipal services in order to qualify the City to receive State revenues.  
 
 

29



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-024 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 

RESOLUTION 2013-024 
 
CERTIFYING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL SERVICES IN ORDER TO 

QUALIFY THE CITY TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.760, provides for Oregon municipalities to 
receive state revenues from cigarette and liquor taxes and highway apportionment fees 
if they certify that they meet eligibility requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the desirability of assisting the state officer 
responsible for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance 
with ORS 221.760. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: It is hereby certified that the City of Sherwood provides the following 
municipal services: 

  
 Police Protection 
 Street Construction, Maintenance, and Lighting 

  Sanitary Sewer 
  Storm Sewers 
  Planning, Zoning, and Subdivision Control 
  Water Utility 
 
Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of June 2013. 
 

 

    
        _______________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

30



 

Resolution 2013-025, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
 

 Agenda Item: New Business 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor 
Through: Bob Galati, City Engineer and Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolution 2013-025 - Adopting the Capital Improvement Project Plan for Fiscal 

Year 2014 
 

 
 
Issue: 

Many funding sources require a Capital Improvement Projects Plan (CIP Plan) to be adopted 

before funds can be spent. Having a CIP Plan is precursor to the expenditure of System 

Development Charges and revenue from sources outside the City of Sherwood. This is why 

Financial Policy IV-4 requires that the City adopt a five year capital project plan annually. This staff 

report presents the FY14 CIP Plan and the adopting resolution. 

 

Background: 

This CIP Plan is only that: a plan. It is not a commitment nor does it obligate funds. It is a vision of 
projects that combines input from City Council, advisory committees and staff into one document. 
Annual revision is required to adjust the plan to changing priorities and circumstances. Projects in 
the plan for FY14 are as follows. 
 

Water Projects – Total Expense for FY13-14 is $1,220,244 
 
Pipeline Segment 3 Construction: This is the last link in the 48 inch pipeline that will carry water 
from the Wilsonville treatment plant to Sherwood. The City has contracted with Wilsonville for the 
design and construction of this segment and it will be completed in FY13-14.  
 
Water Master Plan Update:  The last water plan update was completed in August 2005. 
Completing this update will allow us to perform a comprehensive analysis of the City’s water 
distribution system to identify system deficiencies to determine future water distribution system 
supply requirements and to recommend water system facility improvements that correct the 
existing deficiencies and to provide for future system expansions. 
 
Sanitary Projects – Total Expense for FY13-14 is $1,221,143 
 
Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Sewer Capacity Upgrade - Phase 1: This project consists of 
replacing/upsizing approximately 3,011 linear feet of existing 8 and 10 inch diameter pipe with 12-
inch pipe.  The project is on the south side of Tualatin-Sherwood Road, from the intersection with 
Oregon street west to the railroad tracks and then southwest along those tracks. This upgrade is 
necessary to provide capacity for future growth and expansion of the northeast portion of 
Sherwood (Area 48).  
 
 
 
 

31



 

Resolution 2013-025, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

Storm Water Projects – Total Expense for FY13-14 is $750,000 
 
Columbia Street Regional Storm Water Quality Facility:  This project is based on an agreement 
between the City and Clean Water Services (CWS) to construct a regional water quality facility as 
part of the Cannery PUD.  The project to date has purchased the necessary property along Main 
Street and performed a lot line adjustment in preparation for the design and construction phase.  
The design phase of this project is expected to commence in early FY13/14, with the construction 
phase being completed within FY14/15.  Future Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of bi-
yearly inspection of the treatment facility, and removal of invasive plant species and sediment 
removal as needed in meeting CWS/DEQ requirements for MS4 permitting. 
 
Street Projects – Total Expense for FY13-14 is $40,000 
 
Cedar Brook Way Alignment Alternative Analysis:  This project will perform a preliminary design 
analysis of no more than two alignment options for the extension of Cedar Brook Way between 
Handley Street and Elwert Road.  The analysis will provide property owners and developers basic 
information of possible street alignments, utility system locations, and estimated construction costs.   
 
General Construction Projects – Total Expense for FY13-14 is $1,133,828 
 
Cedar Creek Trail: Design will be completed in FY13 and construction will begin in FY14. The City 
is receiving a $5 million MTIP grant from the Federal Government to fund the major portion of this 
project.  Future maintenance costs for the completed trail will be the responsibility of the Public 
Works Department and would consist mostly of invasive plant control and wooden boardwalk 
maintenance. 
 
Field Lights at Edy Ridge and Sherwood Middle School: The city will be installing lights at the Edy 
Ridge and Sherwood Middle School campus’ to increase the use of the athletic fields. 
 
Snyder Park Turf Replacement: The turf field at Snyder Park will be replaced in FY13-14. 
Maintenance costs of turf fields are lower than grass fields and need replacing about every 10 
years. 
 
Woodhaven Park Improvements Design: This project is to generate a design for the phase 2 
improvements at Woodhaven Park. 
 

Five Year Plan 
Attachment A to this memo includes all of the projects planned for the next five years and their 
proposed timing.  
 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests adoption of Resolution 2013-025 adopting the Capital Improvement Plan 

for FY14. 

32



DRAFT  

Resolution 2013-025 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-025 
 

ADOPTING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PLAN  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood Financial Policy IV-4 states that the City shall adopt a five-
year Capital Improvement Project Plan annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached summary of the FY14 Capital Improvement Project Plan represents 
capital improvement planning based on the current circumstances and priorities of the City; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this Capital Improvement Project Plan was the basis for projects included in the 
FY14 Approved budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That it hereby adopts the FY14 Capital Improvement Projects Plan attached 
hereto as Exhibit A.  
 
Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the Sherwood City Council this 4th day of June 2013. 
 
 
 
            
   Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

33



 

Attachment A – FY14 CIP 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1  

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
The chart below outlines the capital improvement plan for the next five years. Construction of 
projects planned for future years will be subject to funding. 
 

Transportation
 Estimated 

Cost 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

Cedar Brook Way Analysis 40,000          40,000        

Adams Avenue North Construction 100,000        -             100,000      -             -          -             

Krueger Elwert-Hwy 99W Design & Const 4,500,000      -             300,000      4,200,000    -          -             

Oregon St/Tonquin Rd 8,000,000      -             -             -             500,000    7,500,000    

Pine Street Phase 2 1,850,000      -             1,850,000    -             -          -             

14,490,000$  40,000$      2,250,000$  4,200,000$  500,000$  7,500,000$  

Storm

Columbia Street Regional WQFacility Const 750,000        750,000      -             -             -          -             

Storm System Master Plan Update 150,000        -             150,000      -             -          -             

Oregon St Regional Stormwater Facility 500,000        125,000      375,000      

Area 48 Hedges Creek Stormwater Facility 1,050,000      250,000      800,000    

Area 48 Coffee Lake Creek Sormwater Facility 500,000        -             -             -             125,000    375,000      

2,950,000$    750,000$     275,000$     625,000$     925,000$  375,000$     

Sanitary

Area 48 North Sewer Capacity Upgrade - Ph 1 1,385,370      1,221,143    -             -             -          -             

Area 48 North Sewer Conveyance Ext. Ph1 744,560        -             744,560      -             -          -             

SW Orcutt Place Rehab 155,743        -             155,743      -             -          -             

SW Highland Dr Rehab 249,859        -             249,859      -             -          -             

SW Gleneagle Dr. Rehab 49,813          -             49,813        -             -          -             

Area 48 North Sewer Conveyance Ext. Ph2 683,497        -             -             683,497      -          -             

SW Washington Dr Rehab 52,750          -             -             52,750        -          -             

SW Schamburg Dr to Division Rehab 388,298        -             -             388,298      -          -             

SW Sunset Blvd Rehab 168,800        -             -             -             168,800    -             

Sanitary Master Plan Update 150,000        -             -             -             150,000    -             

SW Pine/SW Park Mid-Block Rehab 291,208        -             -             -             -          291,208      

Old Town Laterals Rehab 40,000          -             -             -             -          40,000        

4,359,898$    1,221,143$  1,199,975$  1,124,545$  318,800$  331,208$     

Water
 Estimated 

Cost 

Water - Pipeline from Wilsonville Segment 3 4,106,365$    1,080,244$  -$           -$           -$         -$           

Water MP & Model 170,000        140,000      30,000        -             -          -             

Surge & Clear Well 1,000,000      1,000,000    

Highway 99W Crossing 350,000        -             -             350,000      -          -             

Reservoir 535 2,330,000      -             -             80,000        500,000    200,000      

Purchase 15 mgd from TVWD 3,000,000      -             -             -             -          1,500,000    

Treatment Plant Expansion 3,500,000      -             -             -             -          1,500,000    

Langer Subdivision 57,000          -             -             -             -          57,000        

14,513,365$  1,220,244$  1,030,000$  430,000$     500,000$  3,257,000$  

General Construction

Cedar Creek Trail - Design & Construction 865,000        155,000      550,000      -             -          -             

Turf Replacement at Snyder Park 500,000        500,000      -             -             -          -             

Woodhaven Improvements Design 127,328        127,328      -             -             -          -             

Field Lights at Edy Ridge & SMS 351,500        351,500      -             -             -          -             

1,843,828$    1,133,828$  550,000$     -$           -$         -$           

City of Sherwood Five Year Capital Improvement Plan (FY14 Through FY18) 

 

 

Resolution 2013-025, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 1 of 1

34



Resolution 2013-026, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date:  June 4, 2013  
 

Agenda Item:  New business 
 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor 
Through: Craig Gibons, Finance Director and Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
Subject: Resolution 2013-026 - Transferring Budget Expenditure Appropriations 

between Categories for Budget Year 2012-13 
  
 

 
ISSUE:   
A budget transfer resolution is necessary for the General Construction, Street Operations, 
and Storm Funds 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Overhead and personal services are higher than anticipated on the Senior Center and 
pavement management projects requiring a transfer from capital outlay to personal 
services and materials and services. Costs related to the lot line adjustment for the 
Columbia Street WQF were higher than anticipated in FY13. 
 
This resolution does not increase expenditure authorization in these funds; it only transfers 
spending authorization from one category to another. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff respectfully recommends adoption of Resolution 2013-026, transferring budget 
expenditure appropriations between categories for the current fiscal year 2012-13. 
 
 
 

35



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-026 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-026 
 

TRANSFERING BUDGET EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to ORS 294.450, Oregon Municipalities can transfer appropriation between 
existing categories within the same fund during the budget year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has need to adjust certain categories because of unforeseen 
expenditures related to personal services and overhead on the Senior Center improvements and 
pavement management and additional work on the Columbia WQF; and  

 
WHEREAS, said changes will not alter the total appropriations in the altered funds;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Appropriations for the Fiscal Year 2012-13 are increased/(decreased) in the following 
amounts: 
 

General Construction Fund Current 
Amount 

of Change Revised 

Personal Services  $6,491 $  33,000 $39,491 
Materials and Services 3,949 33,000 36,949 
Capital Outlay 810,823 (66,000) 744,823 
Total $821,263 $      - $821,263 
    
Street Operations Fund    

Personal Services $257,922 $40,000 $297,922 
Materials and Services 556,590 100,000 656,590 
Capital Outlay 706,000 (140,000) 566,000 
Total  $1,520,512 $      -         $1,520,512 
    
Storm Fund 

Storm Capital  $40,000 $7,000 $47,000 
Contingency 1,481,416 (7,000) 1,474,416 
Total $1,521,416 $       -                  $1,521,416 

 
Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the Sherwood City Council this 4th day of June 2013. 
 
            
   Bill Middleton, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

36



 

Resolution 2013-027, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
 

 Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor 
Through: Craig Gibons, Finance Director and Joseph Gall, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2013-027 - Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State 

Revenues 
 

 
 
Issue: 

This is a resolution that informs the State of Oregon that the City of Sherwood is eligible for 
and elects to receive state revenues. 
 

Background: 

The State of Oregon shares certain revenue with municipalities that choose to accept it. 
The only qualification to receive these funds is to hold public hearings on the use of the 
money. The City held one hearing during the Budget Committee meetings and will hold the 

other required hearing at this Council meeting. 
 

Financials: 

The FY14 General Fund budget includes a revenue line item of $172,000 for this revenue 
source. This estimate is based on information from the League of Oregon Cities. The 
League tracks this issue closely for cities. 
 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests adoption of Resolution 2013-027 declaring the City’s election to 
receive state revenues.  
 
 

37



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-027 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-027 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE CITY OF SHERWOOD’S ELECTION TO  
RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.770, provides for Oregon municipalities to receive 
state revenues should they elect to via resolution or ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, said statute also requires the electing municipality to hold two public hearings on 
the municipality’s use of the funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 22, 2013, a public hearing on the use of state revenues was held by the 
City of Sherwood Budget Committee and on June 4, 2013, a public hearing on the use of 
state revenues was held by the Sherwood City Council. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: Pursuant to ORS 221.770, to elect to receive state revenues for the Fiscal Year 
2013-2014. 
 
Section 2:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of June 2013. 
 

    
        ________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

38



 

Resolution 2013-028, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 4, with attachment (34 pgs) 

Council Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing  

 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Accounting Supervisor 
Through: Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Resolution 2013-028 Fee Schedule Effective July 1, 2013 
 

 
Issue: 
Should the City of Sherwood adopt a new fee schedule, effective July 1, 2013? 
 
Background: 
The City of Sherwood has annually reviewed all fees and updated, if necessary. Below are the 
proposed changes to the fee schedule, effective July 1, 2013. Attached to the staff report is the 
Fee Schedule with track changes.  
 
Section 1 General Fees 
 

 Temporary Business Licenses - Currently the fee for a temporary business license is 
over twice the cost of a regular business license.  The process for a temporary license is 
the same as a regular license; therefore, staff is proposing the fee for a temporary 
business license be the same as a regular business license. 

 
Section 5 Parks & Recreation/Field House 
 

 Light Fees – The light fee is being broken out under artificial turf, high school turf and 
tournaments for clarity and consistency. 

 

 Artificial Turf – Small increase in rates for commercial and private reservations. Fees 
were changed to peak and non-peak rates to be consistent with other fees. 

 

 High School Stadium/Turf - Added non-resident fees and a new fee to open and close 
the facilities consistent with gym rentals. 

 

 Gym Fees – Staff is proposing a minimal increase to drop-in gym fees. 
 

 Cannery Square Plaza-Special Events – This is a new set of fees for the use of the 
Cannery plaza.  

 

 Fieldhouse Team Fees – Staff is proposing a $50 increase to both adult and youth 
team fees; this is the first increase since the City took over operations of the Fieldhouse 
in 2005. 

 
Section 6 Utility Rates 
 

39



 

Resolution 2013-028, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 4, with attachment (34 pgs) 

 Sanitary and Storm rates - are increasing 3% and 4% respectively due to a rate 
increase from Clean Water Services. Staff is not proposing any increase to the City of 
Sherwood surcharge rates. 
 

Section 7 System Development Charges (SDCs) 
 

 All City SDCs are proposed to increase 4% based on the Engineering News Record 
(ENR); this is an increase that is done annually to adjust for the construction cost index. 

 
Section 8 Engineering 
 

 Miscellaneous Fees – Staff is proposing a new fee for pre-submittal consultations. This 
fee will cover staff costs related to work on projects prior to the submittal for plan review. 
If the customer submits for a plan review, then the pre-submittal fees will be credited 
against the plan review fees. 

 
Section 9 Planning 
 

 Noticing/Distribution Fees – The noticing fee is increasing due to the increased costs 
of noticing a 1,000 foot radius instead of a 500 foot radius. 

 

 Temporary Sign Permits – Temporary sign permits were eliminated except for Banner 
signs. 

 

 Class A Home Occupation (HOC) Review of Renewal Applications – Less staff time 
is needed to review Class A HOC renewal applications, therefore staff is proposing to 
reduce the fee. 

 

 Temporary Sign Violations – The municipal code was changed; therefore, the fee 
schedule is being updated to agree with the code. 

 
Section 10 Building 
 

 Appeal Process - Senate Bill 915 was amended so that local jurisdictions no longer 
handle the appeal process; the appeal process will be handled by the State of Oregon. 

40



 

Resolution 2013-028, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 4, with attachment (34 pgs) 

Summary of Fee Schedule Changes for FY13-14 
Section Name of Fee Current Rate  Proposed Rate  

Section 1: General   

B) Business 
License 

Temporary license 
$112.50 plus 50% 
of inside City fee 

Same as a regular 
license 

Section 5: Parks & Recreation/Field House   

Natural Turf Light fee None $25 per hour 

Artificial Turf Commercial for profit-resident $50/hr. non-peak $65/hr. non-peak 

Commercial for profit-resident $89/hr. - peak  $85/hr. - peak 

Commercial for profit-non-resident $70/hr. non-peak $75/hr. non-peak 

Non-profit  non-resident $40/hr. non-peak $45/hr. non-peak 

Private reservation-resident $25/hr. non-peak $50/hr. non-peak 

Private reservation-resident $30/hr. - peak   $65/hr. - peak  

Private reservation-non-res $45/hr. non-peak $65/hr. non-peak 

Private reservation-non-resident $65/hr. - peak $80/hr. - peak  

Light Fee None $25 per hour 

High School 
Stadium/Turf 

Practice time-youth-non-res None $40 per hour 

Practice time-all others-non-res None $75 per hour 

Games-all others-non-res None $85 per game 

Light fee- non-resident None $25 per hour 

Open/close facility None 
$30 per hour (1 hour 

minimum) 

Snyder Park Tennis Court-Camp/Tourn.-non-resident $25 per hour $35 per hour 

Tournaments Light fee None $25 per hour 

Gym Fees Drop in gym programs-Res $2 per person $3 per person 

Drop in gym programs-Non-resident $4 per person $6 per person 

Non-profit groups-Residents $20 per hour $30 per hour 

F) Cannery 
Square Plaza-
Special 
Events 

Opening/Closing of facility-non-resident None 
$30 per hour (1 hour 

minimum) 

Open to the public-no sales, no entry fee None $150 per day 

Open to the public-sales, donations, entry fees for 
event 

None $250 per day 

Exclusive event-closed to the public None $500 per day 

Sound System None $75 per day 

Load in/Load out (if not completed in 8 hour period) None $20 per hour 

G) Fieldhouse 
Team Fees 

Adult Team $400 $450 

Youth Team $400 $450 

Section 6: Utility Charges for Service   

O) Sanitary 
Rates 

CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $20.36 $20.97 

CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.36 $1.40 

Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.65 $4.77 

Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.25 $0.26 

P) Storm 
Rates 

CWS regional storm water rate per ESU  $1.44 $1.56 

Sherwood storm water rate per ESU $11.83 $12.21 

 

41



 

Resolution 2013-028, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 4 of 4, with attachment (34 pgs) 

Section Name of Fee Current Rate  Proposed Rate  

Section 7: 
SDC’s 

All City SDC’s 
 

4% increase (ENR) 

CWS Regional Sewer Connection Charge $4,665 $4,800 

Connections involving line taps, line extension, etc. 
Actual labor & 

materials 
Delete Fee 

Section 8: Engineering    

C) 
Miscellaneous 
Fees 

Pre-submittal Consultation (consultation of projects 
prior to the submittal of a land use application, 
requiring more than 2 hours of staff time or on-call 
consultant services) None 

Deposit of $500 
(Applicant pays 100% of 
actual expenses including 
staff time, if an application is 
submitted these fees will be 
credited against the plan 

review fees) 

Section 9: Planning 

F) Other Fees Publication/distribution of Notice Type 2 $165 $284 

Publication/distribution of Notice Type 3 & 4 $265 $466 

Home Occupation Review of renewal application 
(Class A) 

$50 $25 for renewals 

J) Signage Banner Signs - Consecutive one month period None $150 

Temporary 
Portable Sign 
Violations 

First Offense $50 per sign 
No fine- Sign collected and 

marked  

Second Offense $100 $50 per sign 

Third Offense None $100 per sign 

Section 10: Building 

T) Appeal 
Process 

Amended Senate Bill 915 $250 Delete Fee 

 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests adoption of Resolution 2013-028 adopting the Fee Schedule, 

effective July 1, 2013. 

42



  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 The City of Sherwood, Oregon 

Master Fees and Charges 

 
 

 
Exhibit A 

Resolution: 2013- 

  
 Adopted: 06/04/2013 

 Effective: 07/01/2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Also available online at  

www.sherwoodoregon.gov  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 1 of 34
43

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 2 of 34 

 

SECTION 1: GENERAL ........................................................................................................................... 4 

A) STAFF RATES: ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
B) BUSINESS LICENSE: .............................................................................................................................. 4 
C) LIQUOR LICENSE: ................................................................................................................................. 4 
D) FRANCHISE FEES, PRIVILEGE TAXES, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED FEES ............................................................... 5 
E) PUBLIC RECORD FEES: ........................................................................................................................ 56 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY ............................................................................................................................ 7 

A) GENERAL FEES: ................................................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 3: POLICE ............................................................................................................................... 8 

(A) ALARM PERMIT FEES:........................................................................................................................... 8 
(B) ALARM SYSTEM CODE VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................. 8 
(C) POLICE REPORTS: ................................................................................................................................ 8 
(D) VEHICLE IMPOUND: ............................................................................................................................. 8 
(E) PARKING VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................................... 9 
(F) MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES: ............................................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT .......................................................................................................... 10 

A) COURT FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 10 
B) DOG FEES: ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION ..................................................................................................... 11 

A) PLAYER FEES:.................................................................................................................................... 11 
B) ATHLETIC FIELD USER CHARGES: .......................................................................................................... 11 
C) ROBIN HOOD THEATER SIGN: .............................................................................................................. 12 
D) PICNIC SHELTER: ............................................................................................................................... 12 
E) AMPHITHEATER RENTAL: .................................................................................................................... 12 
F) CANNERY SQUARE PLAZA – SPECIAL EVENTS:.......................................................................................... 12 
G) FIELD HOUSE FEES: ............................................................................................................................ 12 
H) SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT ...................................................................................................................... 12 
I) FILM PERMIT .................................................................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE ....................................................................................... 13 

A) RESIDENTIAL AND MULTI-FAMILY RATES: ............................................................................................... 13 
B) COMMERCIAL RATES: ......................................................................................................................... 14 
C) FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE: ................................................................................................................. 14 
D) HYDRANT RENTALS: ........................................................................................................................... 14 
E) ACCOUNT ACTIVATION AND DE-ACTIVATION: ......................................................................................... 15 
F) ADDITIONAL CHARGES, IF NECESSARY, TO ENFORCE: ............................................................................... 15 
G) OTHER ADDITIONAL CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 15 
H) TESTING WATER METERS AT CUSTOMER/OWNER’S REQUEST: ..................................................................... 15 
I) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TEST FEE: ............................................................................................ 16 
J) WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION SERVICES: ................................................................................... 16 
K) UN-AUTHORIZED WATER HOOK UP: ..................................................................................................... 16 
L) RE-INSPECTION FEES (SANITARY, STREET, STORM AND WATER): ................................................................ 16 
M) USAGE OF METER KEY ........................................................................................................................ 16 
N) WATER USE RESTRICTION – PENALTIES.................................................................................................. 16 
O) SANITARY RATES: .............................................................................................................................. 16 
P) STORM RATES: ................................................................................................................................. 17 
Q) STREET FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 17 
R) SIDEWALK REPAIR ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: ............................................................................................. 17 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 2 of 34
44



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 3 of 34 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES................................................................................... 18 

A) WATER SDC: ................................................................................................................................... 18 
B) SEWER SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 18 
C) STORM SDC: ................................................................................................................................ 1918 
D) PARKS SDC: ..................................................................................................................................... 19 
E) STREET SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 19 
F) CITY OF SHERWOOD STREET SDC: ........................................................................................................ 20 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ......................................................................... 2423 

A) PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ................................................. 2423 
B) NO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ............................................ 2423 
C) MISCELLANEOUS FEES: ................................................................................................................... 2423 
D) VACATIONS (PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS): ........................................................................ 2423 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE .............................................................................. 2524 

A) ANNEXATIONS: ............................................................................................................................. 2524 
B) APPEALS: ..................................................................................................................................... 2524 
C) CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: ............................................................................................................. 2524 
D) LAND DIVISIONS/ADJUSTMENTS: ...................................................................................................... 2524 
E) MISCELLANEOUS ACTIONS: ............................................................................................................. 2524 
F) OTHER FEES: ................................................................................................................................ 2524 
G) TREES: ........................................................................................................................................ 2625 
H) PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD): ............................................................................................. 2625 
I) REFUNDS: .................................................................................................................................... 2625 
J) SIGNAGE: ..................................................................................................................................... 2625 
K) SITE PLAN REVIEW:........................................................................................................................ 2625 
L) TEMPORARY USES: ........................................................................................................................ 2726 
M) TIME EXTENSION TO APPROVAL: ...................................................................................................... 2726 
N)  VARIANCE: ................................................................................................................................... 2726 
O) ZONE AMENDMENTS: .................................................................................................................... 2726 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ........................................................................... 2827 

A. BUILDING PERMITS ........................................................................................................................ 2827 
B. DEMOLITION PERMITS .................................................................................................................... 2928 
C. PRESCRIPTIVE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM INSTALLATION – STRUCTURAL ONLY .................................... 2928 
D. PLAN REVIEW FEES – BUILDING PERMIT ............................................................................................ 2928 
E. PHASED PERMIT - PLAN REVIEW (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ....................................... 2928 
F. DEFERRED SUBMITTALS (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ................................................... 2928 
G. RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM FEES ......................................................................................... 2928 
H. ELECTRICAL PERMITS – ISSUED AND INSPECTED BY WASHINGTON COUNTY ............................................... 3029 
I. MECHANICAL PERMITS - RESIDENTIAL ............................................................................................... 3029 
J. MECHANICAL PERMITS - COMMERCIAL .............................................................................................. 3130 
K. PLUMBING PERMITS – NEW ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS ............................................................ 3130 
L. PLUMBING PERMITS – ONE AND TWO FAMILY AND MANUFACTURED DWELLING FOR ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS 

AND REPAIRS ........................................................................................................................................... 3130 
M. PLUMBING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................ 3231 
N. MEDICAL GAS PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ............................................................................................ 3231 
O. GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL FEES (PRIVATE PROPERTY ONLY) ....................................................... 3231 
P. OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING AND EROSION) ....... 3332 
Q. REFUNDS (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING/EROSION) ......................................... 3332 
R. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY ........................................................................................................... 3432 
S. CHANGE OF USE/OCCUPANCY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FEE ................................................................ 3433 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 3 of 34
45



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 4 of 34 

SECTION 1: GENERAL 

A) Staff Rates: 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the services of City Staff. 

 

1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule. 

 200% of the hourly rate for the position at step 1.   

B) Business License: 
 

 Persons conducting business with the City of Sherwood and who are subject to being licensed 

under the provisions of sections 5.04 shall pay a business license fee. 

 

1. Business - Inside the City of Sherwood 
$75 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

2. Business - Outside the City of Sherwood 
$107.50 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

3. Temporary license 

$112.50 plus an additional 50% of inside the City of 

Sherwood fee. For 30 days or less annually. Fee is the 

same as a regular business license. 

4. Late fee for renewals $5 per month or portion of a month late. 

5. Violation of  provision Up to $250 per violation 

C) Liquor License: 
 

 The Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) solicits the city’s recommendation on 

applications for new, renewed, or changed liquor licenses. (ORS 471.164- 471.168) 

 

1. Original application $100 

2. Change in ownership $75 

3. Change in location $75 

4. Change in privilege $75 

5. Renewal of license $35 

6. Temporary license $100 

 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 4 of 34
46



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 5 of 34 

 

D) Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees 
 

D.1. Franchise Fees (as set by franchise agreements): 

 

1.) Electricity 

Portland General Electric 

3.5% of defined gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 92-951 

Expires June 30, 2013 

2.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Frontier 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 2007-008 

Expires August 21, 2015 

3.) Natural Gas 

Northwest Natural Gas 

5% of gross revenue collected 

Ordinance No. 2006-016 

Expires November 16, 2016 

4.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Comcast 

5% of gross revenue 

Resolution No. 2000-857 

Expires January 31, 2015 

5.) Garbage/Solid Waste 

Pride Disposal 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 98-1049 

Expires November 1, 2012 Need updated 

exp date 

 

D.2. Privilege Taxes and Associated Fees: 

 

Note:  Privilege tax payments shall be reduced by any franchise fee payments received by the City,  but in 

no case will be less than $0.00. 

 

1.) Telecommunications Utilities (as defined in ORS 759.005) 

      Privilege tax: 7% of gross revenues as defined in ORS 221.515. 

 

2.) Utility Operators Privilege Tax(as defined in SMC 12.16.050) Not Listed Above 

           Privilege tax: 5% of gross revenues. 

 

3) License application fee $50  

 

E) Public Record Fees: 
 

1.)  Copies of Finance documents     

  Budget $40 per copy 

  Audit Reports $25  per copy 

2.)  Copies of planning documents     

  Community development plan $25 per copy 

  Local wetland inventory $25  per copy 

  Master plans  $25  per copy 

3.)  Copies of Maps     

  8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 

  8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 

  11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 

  Small size color 11 x17 $10 per copy 

  Quarter section aerial $125  per copy 

  Full size color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 5 of 34
47



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 6 of 34 

    

4.)  General Service Copies     

  Copying $.15  per single side 

  Copying $.25  per double side 

  24 x 36 large format plotter $4  per sheet 

5.)  Audio and video tape copies     

 (City Council meeting tapes can be viewed onsite at no charge – contact City Recorder’s office) 

  Audio $25  each 

  Video $25   each 

  Data disk $25  each 

6.)  Document Research     

  Billed in 15 minute increments (see Section 1A)     

  Plus the cost of copying     

7.)   Faxing $2  plus $1 per page 

8.)   Lien search fee $10  per lot 

9.)   NSF check charges $25  per occurrence 

10.)   Notary fee $10 per signature 

 
   

 
The following fees shall be charged for the services of the City Attorney’s Office of the City. 

 

A) Outside consultant fees Actual cost plus 10% 

B) Legal counsel fees Actual cost plus 10% 

C) Miscellaneous fees Actual cost plus 10% 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 6 of 34
48



SECTION 2: LIBRARY 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 7 of 34 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Library Department activities of the City: 

 

A) General Fees: 
 

1. Damaged/lost  material   
based on extent/$5 

processing fee 

2. Overdue DVD/Blu-ray $1.00   per day  

3. All other materials $0.15   per day  

4. Lost cultural pass    varies  

5. Non-resident card  $100 annually 

6. Overdue cultural pass $10 daily 

7. Internet printing $0.10 per page 

8. Replacement library card $1.00 per card 

9. General copies on the public copier $0.10 per page 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 7 of 34
49



SECTION 3: POLICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 8 of 34 

SECTION 3: POLICE 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Police Department activities of the City: 

(A) Alarm Permit Fees: 

 

1. Every alarm user shall register their alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.020 

2. Initial alarm permit (Permit Waived if over 65 years of age) $100 

3. Annual renewal (Renewal waived if over 65 years of age) $25 

4 
Failure to obtain an initial permit or renewal within 90 days of invoicing will result in an inactive 

alarm permit 

(B) Alarm System Code Violation Fees: 
 

 Any alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.070, that has a false alarm(s) within any calendar 

year shall be subject to the following fees or actions: 

 

1. First false alarm per calendar year No Fee per false alarm  

2. Second false alarm  $50 per false alarm  

3. Third false alarm $100 per false alarm 

4. Fourth false alarm  $200 per false alarm 

5. Fifth and subsequent false alarms  $500 per false alarm 

6. False Alarm – No Permit $500 Per false alarm 

(C) Police Reports: 

 

1. Copies of report $20 per report 

2. Audio tapes $25  per tape 

3. Video tapes $30  per tape 

(D) Vehicle Impound: 
 

 Whereas, state law and Sherwood municipal codes, as defined in SMC 8.04.060, that authorizes 

police officers to impound an abandoned vehicle or a vehicle that is disabled, discarded, or 

hazardously located. 

 

1. Police impounded vehicle fees $125 per vehicle 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 8 of 34
50



SECTION 3: POLICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 9 of 34 

 

(E) Parking Violation Fees: 

 

1. No parking (anytime) zone $20 

2. Obstructing streets or sidewalks $20  

3. Double parking $20  

4. Blocking driveway $20 

5. Parking in bus zone $20 

6. Parking in loading zone $20 

7. Parking on wrong side of street $20 

8. Parking along yellow curb or in crosswalk $20 

9. Parking over space line $20 

10. Parking over time limit $20 

(F) Miscellaneous Police Fees: 
 

1. Copies of photographs (12 exposure) $15 plus processing costs 

2. Copies of digital photographs/photo files $20 per disc 

3. Fingerprinting $25 per card 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 9 of 34
51



SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 10 of 34 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City: 

A) Court Fees: 

 

1.)    Failure to appear – arraignments $50  

2.)    Failure to appear – trials $150  

3.)    Failure to comply $20  

4.)    
Turned over to collection agency  

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

5.)   
Set-up fee for citation time payment plan 

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

6.)    Vehicle compliance program – administrative fee $25  

7.)    License reinstatement fee $50  

8.)    No Operators License 
 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of valid license $100  

9.)    Driving While Suspended 
 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of valid license $200  

10.) Expired Registration/Tags (expiration less than or equal to 30 days) 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of current registration Vehicle Compliance 

11.) Expired Registration/Tags (expiration greater than 30 days ) 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of current registration $40  

12.) Failure to Carry Registration 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of registration Vehicle Compliance 

13.) Seatbelt Diversion Program $40  

14.) Traffic School Diversion Programs 
 

 
Class A $285  

 
Class B $155  

 
Class C $80  

 
Class D $45  

15.) Driving Uninsured  
 

 
Administrative Fee if proof of insurance is provided at or before the 

arraignment
$100  

16.) Suspension fee $70  

17.) Fireworks Diversion Program 

 
Firework Diversion Fee  $100  

B) Dog Fees: 
 

 Any person violating the provisions of SMC section 6.04 shall pay the following fees. 

1. Animal noise disturbance  $250 

2. Animal waste on public or another’s private property  $250 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 10 of 34
52



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 11 of 34 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Parks & Recreation activities of the City: 

 

A) Player Fees: Resident Non-Resident 

 Sherwood youth  $15  $20 

 Adult leagues  $15  $20 

a) All fees are per player and per season 

b. Youth fees include SFPA, SJBO, SBO, SYSC, SVB, SYLC, SYTC, and SYFA 

 

B) Athletic Field User Charges:   

Natural Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm)  Peak (3pm – dark) 

 Group reservations-Non profit $25/hour $45/hour 

 Group reservations-For profit $35/hour $55/hour 

 Private reservations-resident $15/hour $20/hour 

 Private reservations-non-resident $20/hour $25/hour 

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

Artificial Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm) Peak (3pm – dark) 

 Commercial/for profit-Resident $5065/hour $8985/hour 

 Commercial/for profit-Non-resident $7075/hour $100/hour 

 Non-profit-Resident $40/hour $65/hour 

 Non-profit-Non-Resident $45/hour $65/hour 

 Private reservation-Resident $2550/hour (Mon-Fri) $3065/hour (Sat-Sun) 

 Private reservation-Non-Resident $4565/hour (Mon-Fri) $6580/hour (Sat-Sun) 

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 
High School Stadium/Turf Resident Non Resident  

 Practice time - youth $20/hour $40/hour 

 Practice time - all others $50/hour $75/hour 

 Games – youth $25/game $50/game 

 Games - all others $60/game $80/game 

 Light fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 Open/close facility $30/hour (1 hr. min) $30/hour (1 hr. min) 

Snyder Park Tennis Court – Camp/Tournament $25/hour $2535/hour 

 

Tournament fee  

 Resident Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Non-resident $80/Hour 

 Sherwood youth league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Sherwood adult league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Light Fee $25/hour 

 

Gym Fees Resident Non Resident 

 Drop in gym programs $23/per person $46/per person 

 Commercial – for profit $60/hour $80/hour 

 Non-profit groups $2030/hour $50/hour 

 Private reservations $40/hour $60/hour 

 Opening/Closing of Facility $30/Hour (1 hr Min) $30/Hour (1 hr Min) 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 11 of 34
53



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 12 of 34 

 

 

C) Robin Hood Theater Sign: $15/per day ($60 Minimum) 

D) Picnic Shelter: Resident Non Resident 

 Rentals $45/4 hour or $90 day $65/4hour or $135/day 

E) Amphitheater Rental: $75/4hour or $150/day $100/4hour or $200/day 

When reserving the Amphitheater you must also reserve the picnic shelter 

 

F) Cannery Square Plaza – Special Events: 

 Open to the public-no sales, no entry fee $150/day 

 Open to the public-sales, donations, entry fees for event $250/day 

 Exclusive event-closed to the public $500/day 

 Sound System $75/day 

 Load in/Load out (if not completed in an 8 hr period) $20/hr 

A day is defined as an 8 hour period. Fees do not include staff or use of the sound system. 

  

G) Field House Fees:   

Team Fees   

 Adult team 
$400 450 plus a $50 late fee if not paid by the due 

date 

 Youth team 
$400 450 plus a $25 late fee if not paid by the due 

date 

Player Cards   

 Adult player cards $10 

 Youth player cards $7 

Rental Fees   

 Day time fees (7 a.m. – 3 p.m.) $35/hour  

 Evening fees (3 p.m. – midnight) $75/hour  

Open Play Fees  

 Pre-school play fees $3/per child 

   

 10 play punch card $25 

 Adult open play fees $4/per person 

Birthday Parties 

 Birthday party fees $110 

Party Room Rental 

 Party room rental fees $25/hour 

  

Concessions and Merchandise 

 Concessions and Merchandise Varies 

H) Special Event Permit Resident  Non Resident 

 Non-Profit Fee $75 $125 

 For-Profit Fee $150 $200 

I) Film Permit   

Small productions (no street closures, staging, city services, or park closures) $250 per day 

Large production (requires street closure, city services, staging, etc.) $1,000 per day 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 12 of 34
54



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 13 of 34 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 

Water Utility Rates 
 
RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY, AND COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICE 

 

Applicable to all residential, multi-family, and commercial customers receiving water service within the 

Sherwood city limits. 

 

A residential customer is defined as a customer whose meter service serves only one-single family dwelling 

unit.  All dwelling units served by individual meters shall be charged the residential rate for service.  For 

example, the residential rate shall apply where separate water meters provide service to each side of the duplex. 

 

Multi-family customers are defined as customers whose meter services more than one dwelling unit.  For the 

purposes of this rate resolution, dwelling unit shall be defined as any place of human habitation designed for 

occupancy based upon separate leases, rental agreements, or other written instruments. 

 

Commercial customers are defined as customers whose meter is for any use other than residential and Multi-

family.  Some examples of commercial uses include, but are not limited to: schools, hospitals, restaurants, 

dedicated irrigation service, and service stations. 

A) Residential and Multi-Family Rates: 
 

Customer 

Class/Meter 

Size 

 
Base Charge 

($/Month)  

 Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

 
Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

5/8 - 3/4"  $18.74  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.17  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $41.18  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $59.88  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $120.49  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $205.87  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $427.38  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $791.08  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,142.39  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate  

    $0.51  $0.79 

 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 13 of 34
55



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 14 of 34 

B) Commercial Rates: 

 
Customer 

Class/Meter 

Size 

 
Base Charge 

($/Month)   
Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

 
Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

5/8 - 3/4"  $19.37  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.95  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $42.57  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $61.90  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $124.55  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $212.80  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $441.76  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $817.70  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,180.83  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate 

    $0.57  $0.57 

C) Fire Protection Service: 
The following fees shall be charged for all applicable connections for automatic sprinklers, and fire hydrants 

service for private fire protection: 

 

Customer Class/Meter Size Base Charge  

 4" and under $31.89 

 6" $53.28 

 8" $75.66 

 10" $104.08 

 Water service connection in ROW Actual time and materials 

D) Hydrant Rentals: 

Fire hydrant permits - mandatory for fire hydrant use  

 Three month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $55 

 Six month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $80 

 Twelve month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $130 

 Penalty for unauthorized hydrant use $500 

 Penalty for using non-approved (un-inspected tank) $950 

 Failure to report water usage (per day for period not reported) $15 

 Hydrant meter - refundable deposit $745 

 Hydrant meter – daily rental (plus water usage at current rate) $20 

 Hydrant meter read – monthly reads $50 

 Hydrant meter setup – Initial setup of meter on hydrant $50 

 Flow testing of fire hydrants $160 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 14 of 34
56



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 15 of 34 

E) Account Activation and De-Activation: 

Water Service on or off water at customer’s request  

 Deposit for application of service (Prior Collection Customers) $100 

 New account fee  $15 

 First call – during office hours, Monday-Friday, except snowbird turnoffs No Charge  

 Activation after office hours and weekends $60 

 Leaks or emergencies beyond customer control during office hours or 

after hours or weekends 
No Charge 

 Second call  $30 

 Non-leak or emergency turn offs after office hours or weekends $50 

 All snowbird/vacant turn offs $25 

Water Service off and on for non-payment/Non-Compliance  

 Turn on water during office hours, Monday through Friday  $60 

 After hours or weekends, an additional $50 

 Meter tampering and/or using water without authority $60 

 Broken promise turn off $60 

 Door hangers 
$10.00 per door 

hanger 

F) Additional Charges, If Necessary, To Enforce: 

 Removal of meter $80 

 Reinstallation of meter  No Charge  

 Installation or removal of locking device-first occurrence $50 

 Installation or removal of locking device-second occurrence $75 

 Installation or removal of locking device-third occurrence  
$150 and meter 

pulled 

 Repair of breakage/damage to locking mechanism (curb stops, etc) parts and labor 

 Service off water at main or reinstating service parts and labor 

G) Other Additional Charges: 

 Decreasing or increasing size of meter parts and labor 

 Removal of meter during construction   $150 

 Loss of meter (replacement cost)   $190-$425 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of 

all commercial premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service 

assemblies and fire line services assemblies.  All subsequent tests are 

the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually be a State 

Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. 

  $100 

 Backflow assembly test/repair (Contract services) parts and labor 

 Damage or Repair to Water Utility actual time and material 

 

H) Testing water meters at customer/owner’s request: 

 Testing on premises (5/8”x 3/4”, ¾”, 1") $80 

 Removal of meter for testing (5/8”x  3/4”, 1”) $250 

 Testing of meters larger than 1” parts and labor 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 15 of 34
57



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 16 of 34 

 

I) Backflow Prevention Device Test Fee: 
 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all commercial 

premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and fire line services 

assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually 

be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. 

                               

$100 

 Service on and off for non-compliance of annual testing and reporting, see Section E.  

J) Water Service/Meter Installation Services: 
Meter Size Drop-In Service Dig-In Service 

5/8” – ¾” $360 $2,095 

1” $730 $2,465 

1.5” $1,830 $4,280 

2” $3,050 $5,500 

3” $6,100 n/a 

4” $7,930 n/a 

Definitions: 

Drop-In 

Service 

An existing condition where developers of a residential subdivision or commercial complex has 

installed water service to each serviceable and buildable lot in accordance with City 

specifications. 

Dig-In 

Service 

Condition where the City or its contractor must physically tap into a mainline to extend water 

service to the property.  Meter installation over 2” will be installed at a time and materials rate 

by city staff or city authorized contractors. 

K) Un-Authorized Water Hook up: 

 Un-authorized water hook up $150  (Plus water use charges billed at current rate) 

L) Re-Inspection Fees (Sanitary, Street, Storm and Water): 

 First re-inspection $50/each 

 Re-inspection fee after the first $100/each 

 All subsequent re-inspection fees $150/each 

*Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Program – FOG*  

M) Usage of Meter Key 

 Deposit refundable with key return $25 

N) Water Use Restriction – Penalties 

 First notice of violation $100 

 Second notice of violation $300 

 Third notice of violation $500 

O) Sanitary Rates: 

The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $20.36 97 

 CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.3640 

 Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.6577 

 Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.2627 

 Damage or Repair to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 16 of 34
58



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 17 of 34 

 Illegal Discharge to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

P) Storm Rates: 
The monthly storm utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional storm water utility user rate per ESU    $1.4456 

 Sherwood storm water utility user rate per ESU   $11.83$12.21 

 Damage or Repair to Storm Utility 
actual time and 

material 

Q) Street Fees: 
Street Maintenance Fee  

 Single family residential $2/monthly per account 

 Multi Family $2 monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $2/monthly per ESU 

Street Light Fee  

 Single family residential $2.32/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $2.32/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.67/monthly per ESU 

Sidewalk Repairs Fee  

 Single family residential $0.52/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.52/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.16/monthly per ESU 

Safe Sidewalks (New Sidewalks) Fee  

 Single family residential $0.69/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.69/monthly per EDU 

R) Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program: 
 

The homeowner shall be responsible for: 

1.) Shaves (50% of total cost of the contractor’s invoice) 

2.) Full Panel Replacements (50% of the total cost of the work to be performed) 

 

Work may include any or all of the following: contractor’s cost to remove and replace the panel(s); arborists 

initial report of findings; tree removal; street tree permit fee.  

 

Payment arrangements will be made available to homeowners and must be paid within 12 months of the date of 

the first bill. Homeowner’s failure to pay their portion of the costs may result in a lien being placed on their 

property and all costs associated.

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 17 of 34
59



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 18 of 34 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Systems Development Charges (SDC).  SDC’s are one-time fees 

charged to new development to help pay a portion of the costs associated with building capital facilities 

infrastructure to meet needs created by growth. 

A) Water SDC: 

Meter 

Size  
Reimbursement 

Charge  
Improvement  Charge 

 

Administrative 

Charge Per 

Meter 

5/8-

3/4"  
$0  

 
$6,725.686,994.71  

 $50.0252.02 

1" 
 

$0  
 

$16,816.7717,489.44  
 

$50.0252.02 

1-1/2" 
 

$0  
 

$33,633.5434,978.88  
 

$50.0252.02 

2" 
 

$0  
 

$53,811.8155,964.28  
 

$50.0252.02 

3" 
 

$0  
 

$117,713.93122,422.49  
 

$50.0252.02 

4" 
 

$0  
 

$201,794.31209,866.08  
 

$50.0252.02 

6" 
 

$0  
 

$420,405.41437,221.63  
 

$50.0252.02 

8" 
 

$0  
 

$605,382.97629,598.29  
 

$50.0252.02 
 

Exception: There is no System Development Charge (reimbursement of improvement fee) to upgrade from  

5/8” – 3/4” to 1” when the sole purpose is a residential fire sprinkler system. 

 

 Fire flow sprinkler buildings only $3,200.503,3,28.52 

B) Sewer SDC: 

 
Sewer 

ResidentialUse Type  
Reimbursement 

Charge  
Improvement 

Charge  
Flow Count 

Single family 

residence  
$0.094 097 

 
$0.27 28  

 
535 gallons 

Two  family 

residence (duplex)  
$0.094097 

 
$0.27 28  

 
535 gallons 

Manufactured home/ 

single lot  
$0.094097 

 
$0.27 28 

 
535 gallons 

Manufactured home 

parks  
$0.094097 

 
$0.27 28  

 
based on Engineer estimate 

Multi-family 

residential  
$0.094097 

 
$0.27 28 

 
based on Engineer estimate 

Commercial 
 

$0.094097 
 

$0.27 28 
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Industrial 
 

$0.094097 
 

$0.27 28  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Institutional uses 
 

$0.094097 
 

$0.27 28  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

    CWS regional connection charge   (96% CWS, 4% City of 

Sherwood)  
$4,665 800 (Per dwelling unit 

or dwelling unit equivalent 

 
    Connections involving line taps, line extensions, etc.

 

actual labor and materials 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 18 of 34
60



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 19 of 34 

 

C) Storm SDC: 

Storm 
  

Improvement 

Charge 

A.) Water quantity per ESU   $275 

B.) Water quality per ESU   $225 
 

 Regional Storm Drainage: - per area of impervious surface. One equivalent 

service unit (ESU) equals 2,640 square feet. 
 

 City storm drainage: per area of impervious surface 
$0.046 047per 

square foot 

D) Parks SDC: 

Parks and Recreation  
Administration 

Fee 
 Improvement Fee  Total Fee 

Single family dwelling  $716.18744.83  $6,952.607,230.70  
$7,668.787,975.53 

per dwelling unit 

Multi-family dwelling  $537.96559.48  
$5,216.945,425.62 

 
 

$5,754.905,985.10 

per dwelling unit 

Manufactured home  $967.101,005.78  $7,446.297,744.14  
$8,413.398,749.92 

per dwelling unit 

Non – residential  $6.6491  $73.0675.98  
$79.7082.89 per 

employee 

 

 Filing fee to challenge expenditures of Parks SDC’s   

(Refundable if challenge is successful) 
$50 

E) Street SDC: 
The following charges are calculated by multiplying trip generation by the following 

 

 Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 
 

 Reference Washington County for fees 

 Washington County - http://www.co.washington.or.us/ 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 19 of 34
61

http://www.co.washington.or.us/
http://www.co.washington.or.us/


SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 20 of 34 

 

F) City of Sherwood Street SDC: 

Residential Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 

Single family – detached 210 
$3,011.943,13

2.42  
dwelling unit 

Apartment 220 
$2,346.682,44

0.55  
dwelling unit 

Residential condominium/townhouse 230 
$1,910.551,98

6.97  
dwelling unit 

Manufactured house  (In park) 240 
$1,672.561,73

9.46  
dwelling unit 

Assisted living 254 
$982.951022.

27  
bed 

Continuing care retirement 255 
$793.67825.4

2  
unit 

Recreation home 260 
$1,030.55107

1.77  
dwelling unit 

Recreational Transportation SDC   Type 

City park 411 
$779.28810.4

5  
acre 

County park 412 
$1,323.881,37

6.84  
acre 

Campground/RV park 416 
$3,121.533,24

6.39  
camp site 

Marina 420 
$2,174.002,26

0.96  
berth 

Golf course 430 
$27,210.4528,

298.87  
hole 

Golf driving range 430 
$6,678.08694

5.20  
tee 

Multipurpose recreation/arcade 435 
$19,484.1120,

263.47  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bowling alley 437 
$25,376.2726,

391.32  
lane 

Movie theater w/o matinee 443 
$129.98135.1

8  
screen 

Movie Theater with Matinee 444 
$118,624.801

23,369.79  
screen 

Multiplex movie theater (10+ screens) 445 
$76,644.6479,

710.43  
screen 

Casino/video poker/lottery 473 
$75,304.1578,

316.32  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Amusement/theme park 480 
$40,472.5242,

091.42  
acre 

Soccer complex 488 
$38,105.9239,

630.16  
field 

Racquet/tennis club 492 
$20,674.0521,

501.01  
court 

Health fitness club 492 
$17,592.3718,

296.06  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Recreation/community center 495 
$17,419.6918,

116.48  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Institutional/Medical Transportation SDC Type 

Military base 501 
$903.25939.3

8  
employee 

Elementary school (Public) 520 $190.39198.0 student 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 20 of 34
62



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 21 of 34 

1  

Middle/Junior high School (Public) 522 
$228.03237.1

5  
student 

High School (Public) 530 
$595.53619.3

5  
student 

Private School (K – 12) 536 
$965.241,003.

85  
Student 

Junior/Community College 540 
$356.43370.6

9  
employee 

University/College 550 
$774.85805.8

4  
student 

Church 560 
$2,831.522,94

4.78  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Day care center/preschool 565 $0.00  student 

Library 590 
$8,300.848,63

2.87  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Hospital 610 
$6,959.247,23

7.61  
bed 

Nursing home 620 
$1,189.951,23

7.55  
bed 

Clinic 630 
$17,652.1418,

358.23  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

 

 

 

Commercial/Services SDC Code Fee Type 

Hotel/Motel 310 
$5,846.786,0

80.65  
Room 

Building materials/lumber 812 
$9,498.539,8

78.47  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Free standing discount Superstore 

w/groceries 
813 

$12,781.671

3,292.94  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Specialty retail center 814 
$11,665.891

2,132.53  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Free standing discount center w/o 

groceries 
815 

$18,196.751

8,924.62  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Hardware/paint stores 816 
$15,110.641

5,715.07  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Nursery/garden center 817 
$9,303.719,6

75.86  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Shopping center 820 
$7,813.798,1

26.34  
thousand square ft gross leasable area 

Factory outlet 823 
$5,972.976,2

11.89  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

New car sales 841 
$7,708.638,0

16.98  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Automobile parts sales 843 
$14,603.671

5,187.82  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Tire superstore 849 
$4,566.074,7

48.71  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Supermarket 850 
$25,529.032

6,550.19  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Convenience market (24hr) 851 
$63,871.826

6,426.69  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Convenience market w/fuel Pump 853 
$38,675.984

0,223.02  
vehicle fueling position 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 21 of 34
63



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 22 of 34 

Wholesale market 860 
$151.65157.

72  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Discount club 861 
$14,314.761

4,887.35  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Home improvement superstore 862 
$4,973.425,1

72.36  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Electronics superstore 863 
$10,582.211

1,005.50  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Office supply superstore 867 
$8,351.758,6

85.82  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive thru 

window 
880 

$18,028.501

8,749.64  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Pharmacy/drugstore with drive thru 

window 
881 

$19,310.322

0,082.73  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Furniture store 860 
$882.22917.

51  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Video rental store 896 
$70,568.727

3,391.47  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bank/savings – walk in 911 
$56,884.915

9,160.31  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bank/savings – drive in 912 
$57,255.735

9,545.96  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Quality restaurant (not a chain) 931 
$23,074.972

3,997.97  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

High turnover-sit down restaurant 

(chain/standalone) 
932 

$14,590.391

5,174.01  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Fast food restaurant (no drive- thru) 933 
$96,929.051

00,806.21  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Fast food restaurant (with drive-

thru) 
934 

$65,225.596

7,834.61  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Drinking place/bar 936 
$10,040.921

0,442.56  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

Quick lubrication vehicle Shop 941 
$8,722.5790

71.47  
service stall 

Automobile care center 942 
$8,750.259,1

00.26  
thousand square ft gross leasable area 

Gasoline/service station (no 

market/car wash 
944 

$17,529.271

8,230.44  
vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with 

convenience market) 
945 

$11,155.601

1,601.82  
vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with 

market and car wash) 
946 

$10,088.521

0,492.06  
vehicle fueling position 

 

Office SDC Code Fee Type 

General office building 710 $4,499.654,679.64  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Corporate headquarters building 714 $3,266.543,397.20  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Single tenant office building 715 $5,460.465,678.88  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Medical/dental office building 720 $14,227.3214,796.41  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Government office building 730 $26,282.8427,334.15  thousand square ft gross floor area 

State Motor Vehicles Department 731 
$97,666.27101,572.9

2  
thousand square ft gross floor area 

US Post Office 732 $34,934.5736,331.95  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Office park 750 $4,750.924,940.96  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Research and development center 760 $3,556.553,698.81  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 22 of 34
64



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 23 of 34 

Business park 770 $4,943.535,141.27  thousand square ft gross floor area 

    
Port/Industrial Code   Type 

Truck terminals 30 $3,638.463,784.00  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Park and ride lot with bus service 90 $1,102.501,146.60  parking space 

Light rail transit station w/parking 93 $626.52651.58  parking space 

General light industrial 110 $2,576.922,680.00  thousand square ft gross floor area 

General heavy industrial 120 $554.57576.75  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Industrial park 130 $2,570.282,673.09  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Manufacturing 140 $1,404.691,460.88  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Warehouse 150 $1,852.991,927.11  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Mini-warehouse 151 $897.72933,63  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Utilities 170 $2,020.142,100.95  thousand square ft gross floor area 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 23 of 34
65



SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 24 of 34 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Engineering Division activities of the City. 

A) Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review – 4% of Construction Costs ($500 due at submittal with the balance, if any, payable at 

the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) Includes review of the following: 

 Water  Street  Grading 

 Sewer  Storm  Erosion Control 

 

 Inspections – 5% of Construction Costs (payable at the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) 

Includes inspection of the following for which permits were obtained: 

 Water  Street  Grading 

 Sewer  Storm  Erosion Control 

B) No Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review Fee Time and Materials 

 Inspection Fee Time and Materials 

 Television Line Service Time and Materials 

C) Miscellaneous Fees: 
1)  Addressing Fee  

  Single - five (5) digit address $65/lot 

  0 to 10 - Suite Numbers $25 per suite 

  11 to 20 -Suite Numbers $15 per suite 

  21 and up Suite Numbers  $10 per suite 

2)  Plans and Specifications for capital projects varies with project 

3)  
Traffic and street signs (Includes post, sign, 

hardware, and labor to install) 
$250/per sign 

4)  Street Trees $200/per tree 

5)  

Pre-submittal Consultation (consultation of 

projects prior to the submittal of a land use 

application, requiring more than 2 hours of staff 

time or on-call consultant services) 

Deposit of $500 

(Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including 

staff time, if an application is submitted these fees 

will be credited against the plan review fees) 

6)  In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $10 linear foot 

7)  Right of Way Permit  

 
 Performance bond on projects greater 

than or equal to $5,000 
125% of estimated costs 

 
 Maintenance bond - $1000 or 50% of project estimate, whichever is greater. 

(A single bond may be provided for multiple projects of the same person provided the bond 

exceeds the aggregate project total) 

  Administration fee $150 per permit 

  Inspection fee  $150 or 4% of project estimate, whichever is greater 

8)  Design and construction standards $50 on paper 

7) Design and construction standards $25 per CD 

8) As-Built Requests $25 per subdivision 

9) As-Built Requests electronic media $25 per CD 

D) Vacations (Public right-of-way and easements): 
 Deposit plus staff time (See Section 1) $4,000 

         (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time)

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 24 of 34
66



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 25 of 34 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Planning Department activities of the City. 

A) Annexations: 
 Deposit $7,500 

  (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time) 

 Applicant will sign an agreement with the City that the balance of all costs will be paid to the City 

within 30 days of the date in the final annexation invoice. 

B) Appeals: 
 Type I or II actions (ORS 227.175) 10 (b)  $250 

 Type III or IV actions 50% of original fee(s) 

C) Conditional Use Permit: 
Conditional use permit without concurrent type III or IV application $4,145 

Conditional use permit with concurrent type III or IV application $2,072 

D) Land Divisions/Adjustments: 
 Lot line adjustment $743  

 Minor land partition $2,488   

 Expedited minor partition $550   

 (Added to the cost of the application) 

 Final plat processing (minor land partition) $550   

 Subdivision $6,222  plus$20 per lot 

 Expedited subdivision $2,205   

  (Added to the cost of the application) 

 Final plat processing (Subdivision) $1,102   

E) Miscellaneous Actions: 
 Consultant as needed actual costs 

F) Other Fees: 

 Community Development Code Plan Check 
(payable at time of building 

permit submittal 

1) Residential permits $105 

2) ADUs Accessory Dwelling Units $105  

3) Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family Permits $661  

                           (Final Site Plan Review fee, if a final site plan review is not required this fee is not charged) 

 Design review team consultations/recommendations staff time (see section 1) 

 Detailed site analysis letter $150 

 Interpretive decisions by the Director $330  

 Non-conforming use modification $1,000 

 Modification to application in review $500 

(If modified after the application is deemed complete and the modification is needed to adequately review the 

application) 

 Other land use action  

1) Administrative $276  

2) Hearing required and/or use of Hearings Officer $2,425  

 Planning Re-inspection fee $60 each after 1
st
 

 Postponement/continuance hearings $300 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 25 of 34
67



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 26 of 34 

  

(If applicant request is after notice has been published and/or staff report prepared) 

 Pre-application conference $400 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 2 $165284 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 3 & 4 $265466 

 Home Occupation Review of initial application (Class A)  $50 

 Home Occupation Review of renewal application (Class A) $50$25 

G) Trees: 
 Tree mitigation inspection $60 each after 1

st
 

 Zone verification letter $50 

 Street Tree Removal Permit $25 - 1
st
 tree, $10 each additional tree 

 Removal of more than 6 trees or 10% on private property $107 

H) Planned Unit Development (PUD): 
 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  Preliminary 

             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) 
$2,205 

 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  - Final 
             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) 

See Site Plan Review Fee 

I) Refunds: 
 75% refund if application is withdrawn prior to 30 day completeness 

 50% refund if withdrawn prior to public notice 

 25% refund if withdrawn prior to staff report 

J) Signage: 
 Permanent signs on private property $150 

      (First 32 sq. ft. plus $1 each additional sq. ft, of sign face)  (Excludes Home Occupation Signage) 

 Banner signs -– Consecutive one month period $150 

 Temporary portable sign violation fines  

1) First offense 
$50 per signNo fine; collected 

and marked 

2) Second offense $100 50 per sign 

3) Third offense $100 per sign 

K) Site Plan Review: 
 Type III and IV  

(Additional $100 for every 10,000 sq. ft. or portion thereof over the first 

15,000 sq. ft.)(Including Town-Homes, excluding projects in Old Town) 

$6,222  

 Final site plan review (Type III and IV)  (Due at the time of Building 

Permit Submittal) 
$661  

 Fast track site plan review (Type II) $2,025  

 Minor modification to approved Site Plan $276 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type II $1,010 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type III or IV $2,425 

 Old Town overlay review $250 added to application 

 (All uses excluding Single-Family detached dwellings) (Application fee for Old Town projects is the application  

 fee applicable based on size of the project plus the Old Town Overlay review fee.  Fee is applicable for all uses  

 excluding Single-Family detached dwellings.) 

 

 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 26 of 34
68



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 27 of 34 

 

L) Temporary Uses: 

 Administrative $335 

M) Time Extension to Approval: 

 No hearing required $150 

N)  Variance: 

 Class A Variance $4,145 

 Adjustment  $50 

 Class B Variance $1,102 

 (Per lot and per standard to be varied) 

O) Zone Amendments: 

 Text amendment $5,330 

 Map amendment $5,330 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 27 of 34
69



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 28 of 34 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Building Department activities of the City. 

A. Building Permits 
Values are determined by the applicants total estimated value of the work which includes labor and materials, 

and/or are based on the most current Building Valuation Data, without state-specific modifiers, as published by 

the International Code Council and in compliance with OAR 918-050-0100 to 918-050-0110. Final building 

permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 

 

1. Single Family and Two-Family Dwelling Based on Total Valuation 

$1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000  

 
$60 for the first $500 (Plus $1.00 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up to 

and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 

 
$75 for the first $2,000 (Plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to 

and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000  

 
$259 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.25 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 

up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000  
415.25 for the first $25,000 (Plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up 

to and including $100,000) 

$100,001 and up 
$615.25 for the first $100,000 (Plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof over $100,000$100,001 and up) 

 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 

School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 
0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 
 

2. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Based on Total Valuation 

 $1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000 
$60 for the first $500 ($1.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof up 

to and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 
$82.50 for the first $2,000 ($8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 

up to and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000 
$266.50 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.75 for each additional $1,000 or 

fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000 
$435.25 for the first $50,000 (plus $5 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof, up to and including $100,00) 

$100,001 and up 
$685.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 

fraction thereof over $100,00) 
 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 
School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

School CET Commercial 
Non- Residential $.52 per square foot maximum of $25,925 or current School 

District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 
0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 

 

 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 28 of 34
70



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 29 of 34 

 

3. Manufactured Dwelling Installation Permits 

Includes prescriptive foundation system, plumbing and crossover connections, 30 lineal feet of sanitary sewer, 

storm and water lines, 12% state surcharge and the $30 Cabana fee (unless state rates are modified) In 

Compliance with OAR.918.050.0130  

 

 Manufactured home set up and installation fee $322.66 

 Plan Review  $90/hour (Minimum Charge = 1/2/hour 

 Site Plan Review Residential Rate per Section 10.(F) 

 School CET $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

B. Demolition Permits 
 Residential  $192.12 

 Commercial $282.12 

C. Prescriptive Solar Photovoltaic System Installation – Structural Only 

*Electrical permits are also required through Washington County 

Fees for installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) system installation 

that comply with the prescriptive path described in the Oregon Solar 

Installation Specialty Code. 

$122.79 

For Plans that do not meet the prescriptive path, typical structural fee 

calculations and processes will apply. 
Typical Structural Fees will apply 

D. Plan Review Fees – Building Permit 
 Plan review Fee 85% of building permit fee 

 Fire and life safety plan review fee (when required) 40% of building permit fee 

E. Phased Permit - Plan Review (When approved by the Building Official) 
The Plan review fee for a phased project is based on a minimum phasing fee, plus 10% of the total project 

building permit fee, not to exceed $1,500 for each phase pursuant to the authority of OAR 918-050-0160 

 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $100 Minimum Fee  

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $50 Minimum Fee  

F. Deferred Submittals (When approved by the Building Official) 
The fee for processing deferred submittals and reviewing deferred plan submittals shall be an amount equal to 

65% of the permit fee calculated according to OAR 918-050-0110(2) and (3) using  the value of the particular 

deferred portion or portions of the project, with a set minimum fee.  This fee is in addition to the project plan 

review fee based on the total project value. 

 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $150 Minimum Fee 

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $75 Minimum Fees  

 

G. Residential Fire Sprinkler System Fees 
 Total Square Footage (including Garage) 

0 to 2000 $100 includes plan review 

2,001 to 3,600 $150 includes plan review 

3,601 to 7,200 $250 includes plan review 

7,201 and greater $300 includes plan review 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 29 of 34
71



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 30 of 34 

H. Electrical Permits – Issued and Inspected by Washington County 
Contact Washington County Building Division (503) 846-3470 

I. Mechanical Permits - Residential 
Mechanical permits for Single Family Dwelling, Two-Family dwellings and Manufactured Dwellings for new 

construction, additions, alterations and repairs.  Fees are based on the number of appliances and related 

equipment with a set minimum fee. 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee  ** (or current state rate) 

1. Air Handling 

 Air Handling Unit ≤ 10,000 CFMs $14.63 includes ductwork 

 Air Handling Unit > 10,000 CFMs $24.68 includes ductwork 

 Air Conditioning Unit $19.50 Site Plan Required 

 

2. Boilers/Compressors 

 ≤100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50 includes ductwork 

 >100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 includes ductwork 

 >500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75 includes ductwork 

 >1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 includes ductwork 

 >1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 includes ductwork 

 

3. Fire/Smoke Dampers/Duct Smoke Detectors $14.65 

 

4. Heat Pump $19.50 Site plan required 

 

5. Install/Replace Furnace/Burner 

 Furnace ≤ 100,000 BTUs $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Furnace ≥ 100,000 BTUs $35.75 includes ductwork and vents 

 Install/Replace/Relocate Heaters  (Suspended, wall or floor 

mounted) 
$19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Vent for appliance other than furnace $9.75 includes ductwork 

 

6. Refrigeration Units (includes installation of controls) 

 ≤ 100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50  

 > 100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 

 > 500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75  

 > 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 

 >  1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 

 Appliance vent $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Dryer exhaust $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust fan with single duct $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Hoods $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust system apart from heating or air conditioning $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Fuel piping and distribution (up to four outlets) $6.50 

 Fuel piping and distribution (over four outlets) $1.65 per outlet 

 Insert, decorative fireplace or wood/pellet stoves $19.50 includes vent 

 Gas fired water heater $19.50 includes ductwork and vent 

 Install/relocate domestic type incinerator $24.35 

 Install/relocate commercial type incinerator $97.50 

 Other   (see most current Oregon One and Two Family Dwelling Specialty Code) 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 30 of 34
72



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 31 of 34 

J. Mechanical Permits - Commercial 
Based on the total value of mechanical materials, equipment, installation, overhead and profit as applied to the 

following fee matrix 

 

 Plan review fee – Commercial 30% of Mechanical permit fee 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee ** (or Current state Rate) 

 Mechanical Permit Fee Based on total valuation 

$0 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$60 for the first $500 (plus $2.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up 

to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$172.50 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, 

up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $100,000 
$322.50 for the first $10,000 (Plus$8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,042.50 for the first $100,000 (plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof over $100,000 

K. Plumbing Permits – New one and Two Family Dwellings 
Includes one kitchen, 100 feet of sanitary sewer, storm and water lines, standard plumbing fixtures and 

appurtenances, and are based on the number of bathrooms, from one to three on a graduated scale. 

 

 One Bathroom $255 

 Two Bathrooms $315 

 Three Bathrooms $375 

 Additional Kitchen or Bathroom $155 each 

 Additional Fixture or Item $15 each 

 Additional 100 feet of each utility line $27.50 each 

L. Plumbing Permits – One and Two Family and Manufactured Dwelling for Additions, 

Alterations and Repairs 
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 

 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 New and/or Additional fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Manufactured Dwelling Utility Connection $30 each 

  (Charged only when connections are not concurrent with new set-up and installation) 

1. Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 31 of 34
73



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 32 of 34 

 

M. Plumbing Permits – Commercial  
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 

 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of plumbing permit fee (when required) 

 State surcharge 12% of plumbing permit fee **(Or current State rate) 

 Minimum fee $60 

 New and/or additional fixture, item $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 
 

1. Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

N. Medical Gas Permits – Commercial 
Based on the total value of installation costs and system equipment as applied to the following fee matrix. 

 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of Plumbing Permit Fee 

 State surcharge 12% of Plumbing Permit Fee ** (or Current state Rate) 

 Plumbing Permit Fee Based on valuation 

 $0 to $500 $100 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$100 for the first $500 (plus $2 for each additional $100 or 

fraction thereof, up to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$190 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or 

fraction thereof, up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $50,000  
$340 for the first $10,000 (plus $9.50 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$50,000.01 to $100,000 
$720 for the first $50,000 (Plus $11 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,270 for the first 100,000 (plus $7 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,000) 

 

O. Grading and Erosion Control Fees (Private Property Only) 
Permits issued by the City of Sherwood.  Grading is inspected by the Building Department and erosion control is 

inspected by Clean Water Services or the City of Sherwood. 

 

Erosion Control Fees 
Activities which require a grading and/or erosion control permit and are not included in a building permit.  

Permit is based upon the total acreage of the site. 

 

For projects less than 5 acres: 

 Erosion Control Plan Review Fee 65% of the erosion control inspection fee  

 Erosion Control Inspection Fee Based on Total Area 

0 to 1 Acre $200 

1 Acre and up $200 (plus $50 per acre or fraction thereof over 1 acre) 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 32 of 34
74



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 33 of 34 

1.) Total Valuation 

$0 to $50,000 $60 

$50,000.01 to $100,000 $80 

$100,000.01 and up $80 (plus $25 per every $100,000 or fraction thereof of over $100,000) 

 

For projects greater than or equal to 5 acres: 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C administration fee $150 per application 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C plan review fee $350 per application 

 

Grading Fees 

 

 Grading permit fee  Based on Cubic Yards 

   0 to 100  $60 minimum fee  

   101 to 1,000  $60 first 100 yards (plus $11 for each additional 100 yards or fraction thereof) 

   1,001 to 10,000  $159 first 1,000 yard (plus $15 for each additional 1,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

   10,001 to 100,000  $294 first 10,000 yards (plus $75 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

   100,001  +  $969 first 100,000 (plus $36.50 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

 Grading plan review fee 85% of the grading permit fee 

 

P. Other Inspections and Fees (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading and 

Erosion) 

 
 Re-inspection fee (Minimum charge = 1 

hour) 
$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State Rate 

 Inspections outside normal business hours 

(when approved by the Building Official) 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State Rate 

(Minimum charge = 2 hours)  

 Inspection for which no fee is specifically 

indicated 

$70 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State Rate 

(Minimum charge = ½ hour)  

 Investigation fee 100% of required permit fee for working without a permit 

 Additional plan review required 
$90 per hour or actual time (For changes, additions or 

revisions) (Minimum charge = ½ hour) 

 Re-stamp of lost, stolen or damaged plans $55 per plan set 

 Application/Permit extensions   $50 

(Renewal of an application or permit where an extension has been requested in writing, and approval 

granted by the Building Official, prior to the original expiration date, provided no changes have been 

made in the original plans and specifications for such work) 

 Permit reinstatement fee 
50% of amount required for a new permit or a percentage as determined by 

the Building Official based on the remaining inspections required. 

(This fee is for reinstatement of a permit, where a reinstatement request has been made in writing, and 

approval granted by the Building Official, provided no changes have been made in the original plans and 

specifications for such work.) 

Q. Refunds (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading/Erosion) 

 Permit refunds 75% of original permit Fee; Provided the permit is still valid 

 Plan review refunds 75% of original plan review fee provided no plan review was started  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 33 of 34
75



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 34 of 34 

R. Certificate of Occupancy 

 Temporary residential $50 per request 

 Temporary commercial $300 maximum per request 

(All as determined by the Building Official) 

S. Change of Use/Occupancy Certificate Application Fee 
 Similar use (Minor code review) $60  

 Dissimilar Use, or Change in Occupancy 

(Extensive Code Review 

$125 minimum fee (Includes 1 hour code review time, review 

time greater than 1 hour will be charged at the hourly rate of $90 

T. Appeal Process 
 Amended Senate Bill 915 $250 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit to Staff Report 

June 4, 2013, Page 34 of 34
76



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-028 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (29 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-028 
 

ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF FEES AS AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY ZONING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE, ESTABLISHING FEES FOR MISCELLANEOUS CITY 

SERVICES AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Municipal Code authorizes certain administrative fees and charges to be 
established by Resolution of the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City performs and offers certain services, the cost of which are most reasonably 
borne by the recipient, as opposed to paying for said services from general City funds; and  
 
WHEREAS the City Manager has developed a set of administrative fees and charges for the 
Council and City to use when assessing general fees for permits, applications, and services, and 
recovering general costs of performing actions requiring oversight and administration by City staff; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is most appropriate and fiscally responsible that fees and 
charges for all services be set by the City Council, and at a level whereby reasonable costs are 
recovered; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has met the requirement for providing an opportunity for public comment prior 
to the adoption of this fee resolution as required by ORS 294.160. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Adoption: The City of Sherwood Rates and Fees Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, is hereby approved and adopted, and supersedes all prior development fee and charges 
schedules and miscellaneous fee schedules. 
 
Section 2.  Effective Date:  This Resolution shall become effective July 1, 2013. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of June 2013. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
Attest:         

 
        
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder   
 

77



  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 The City of Sherwood, Oregon 

Master Fees and Charges 

 
 

 
Exhibit A 

Resolution: 2013-028 

  
 Adopted: 06/04/2013 

 Effective: 07/01/2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Also available online at  

www.sherwoodoregon.gov  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 1 of 29

78

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 2 of 29 

 

SECTION 1: GENERAL ........................................................................................................................... 4 

A) STAFF RATES: ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
B) BUSINESS LICENSE: .............................................................................................................................. 4 
C) LIQUOR LICENSE: ................................................................................................................................. 4 
D) FRANCHISE FEES, PRIVILEGE TAXES, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED FEES ............................................................... 4 
E) PUBLIC RECORD FEES: .......................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY ............................................................................................................................ 6 

A) GENERAL FEES: ................................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 3: POLICE ............................................................................................................................... 7 

(A) ALARM PERMIT FEES:........................................................................................................................... 7 
(B) ALARM SYSTEM CODE VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................. 7 
(C) POLICE REPORTS: ................................................................................................................................ 7 
(D) VEHICLE IMPOUND: ............................................................................................................................. 7 
(E) PARKING VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................................... 7 
(F) MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES: ............................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT ............................................................................................................ 8 

A) COURT FEES: ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
B) DOG FEES: ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION ....................................................................................................... 9 

A) PLAYER FEES:...................................................................................................................................... 9 
B) ATHLETIC FIELD USER CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 9 
C) ROBIN HOOD THEATER SIGN: .............................................................................................................. 10 
D) PICNIC SHELTER: ............................................................................................................................... 10 
E) AMPHITHEATER RENTAL: .................................................................................................................... 10 
F) CANNERY SQUARE PLAZA – SPECIAL EVENTS:.......................................................................................... 10 
G) FIELD HOUSE FEES: ............................................................................................................................ 10 
H) SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT ...................................................................................................................... 10 
I) FILM PERMIT .................................................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE ....................................................................................... 11 

A) RESIDENTIAL AND MULTI-FAMILY RATES: ............................................................................................... 11 
B) COMMERCIAL RATES: ......................................................................................................................... 12 
C) FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE: ................................................................................................................. 12 
D) HYDRANT RENTALS: ........................................................................................................................... 12 
E) ACCOUNT ACTIVATION AND DE-ACTIVATION: ......................................................................................... 13 
F) ADDITIONAL CHARGES, IF NECESSARY, TO ENFORCE: ............................................................................... 13 
G) OTHER ADDITIONAL CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 13 
H) TESTING WATER METERS AT CUSTOMER/OWNER’S REQUEST: ..................................................................... 13 
I) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TEST FEE: ............................................................................................ 14 
J) WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION SERVICES: ................................................................................... 14 
K) UN-AUTHORIZED WATER HOOK UP: ..................................................................................................... 14 
L) RE-INSPECTION FEES (SANITARY, STREET, STORM AND WATER): ................................................................ 14 
M) USAGE OF METER KEY ........................................................................................................................ 14 
N) WATER USE RESTRICTION – PENALTIES.................................................................................................. 14 
O) SANITARY RATES: .............................................................................................................................. 14 
P) STORM RATES: ................................................................................................................................. 15 
Q) STREET FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 15 
R) SIDEWALK REPAIR ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: ............................................................................................. 15 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 2 of 29

79



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 3 of 29 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES................................................................................... 16 

A) WATER SDC: ................................................................................................................................... 16 
B) SEWER SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 16 
C) STORM SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 16 
D) PARKS SDC: ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
E) STREET SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 17 
F) CITY OF SHERWOOD STREET SDC: ........................................................................................................ 17 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ............................................................................. 20 

A) PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ..................................................... 20 
B) NO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ................................................ 20 
C) MISCELLANEOUS FEES: ....................................................................................................................... 20 
D) VACATIONS (PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS): ............................................................................ 20 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE .................................................................................. 21 

A) ANNEXATIONS: ................................................................................................................................. 21 
B) APPEALS: ......................................................................................................................................... 21 
C) CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: ................................................................................................................. 21 
D) LAND DIVISIONS/ADJUSTMENTS: .......................................................................................................... 21 
E) MISCELLANEOUS ACTIONS: ................................................................................................................. 21 
F) OTHER FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 21 
G) TREES: ............................................................................................................................................ 22 
H) PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD): ................................................................................................. 22 
I) REFUNDS: ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
J) SIGNAGE: ......................................................................................................................................... 22 
K) SITE PLAN REVIEW:............................................................................................................................ 22 
L) TEMPORARY USES: ............................................................................................................................ 22 
M) TIME EXTENSION TO APPROVAL: .......................................................................................................... 23 
N)  VARIANCE: ....................................................................................................................................... 23 
O) ZONE AMENDMENTS: ........................................................................................................................ 23 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ............................................................................... 24 

A. BUILDING PERMITS ............................................................................................................................ 24 
B. DEMOLITION PERMITS ........................................................................................................................ 25 
C. PRESCRIPTIVE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM INSTALLATION – STRUCTURAL ONLY ........................................ 25 
D. PLAN REVIEW FEES – BUILDING PERMIT ................................................................................................ 25 
E. PHASED PERMIT - PLAN REVIEW (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ........................................... 25 
F. DEFERRED SUBMITTALS (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ....................................................... 25 
G. RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM FEES ............................................................................................. 25 
H. ELECTRICAL PERMITS – ISSUED AND INSPECTED BY WASHINGTON COUNTY ................................................... 26 
I. MECHANICAL PERMITS - RESIDENTIAL ................................................................................................... 26 
J. MECHANICAL PERMITS - COMMERCIAL .................................................................................................. 27 
K. PLUMBING PERMITS – NEW ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS ................................................................ 27 
L. PLUMBING PERMITS – ONE AND TWO FAMILY AND MANUFACTURED DWELLING FOR ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS 

AND REPAIRS ............................................................................................................................................... 27 
M. PLUMBING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL .................................................................................................... 28 
N. MEDICAL GAS PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................ 28 
O. GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL FEES (PRIVATE PROPERTY ONLY) ........................................................... 28 
P. OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING AND EROSION) ........... 29 
Q. REFUNDS (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING/EROSION) ............................................. 29 
R. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY  (ALL AS DETERMINED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ............................................ 29 
S. CHANGE OF USE/OCCUPANCY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FEE .................................................................... 29 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 3 of 29

80



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 4 of 29 

SECTION 1: GENERAL 

A) Staff Rates: 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the services of City Staff. 

 

1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule. 

 200% of the hourly rate for the position at step 1.   

B) Business License: 
 

Persons conducting business with the City of Sherwood and who are subject to being licensed under the 

provisions of sections 5.04 shall pay a business license fee. 

1. Business - Inside the City of Sherwood 
$75 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

2. Business - Outside the City of Sherwood 
$107.50 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

3. Temporary license  Fee is the same as a regular business license. 

4. Late fee for renewals $5 per month or portion of a month late. 

5. Violation of  provision Up to $250 per violation 

C) Liquor License: 
 

The Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) solicits the city’s recommendation on applications for 

new, renewed, or changed liquor licenses. (ORS 471.164- 471.168) 

1. Original application $100 

2. Change in ownership $75 

3. Change in location $75 

4. Change in privilege $75 

5. Renewal of license $35 

6. Temporary license $100 

 

D) Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees 
 

D.1. Franchise Fees (as set by franchise agreements): 
1.) Electricity 

Portland General Electric 

3.5% of defined gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 92-951 Exp. 6/30/13 

2.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Frontier 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 2007-008  Exp. 8/21/15 

3.) Natural Gas 

Northwest Natural Gas 

5% of gross revenue collected 

Ordinance No. 2006-016  Exp. 11/16/16 

4.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Comcast 

5% of gross revenue 

Resolution No. 2000-857  Exp. 1/31/15 

5.) Garbage/Solid Waste 

Pride Disposal 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 98-1049  Exp. 11/1/12 

 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 4 of 29

81



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 5 of 29 

 

D.2. Privilege Taxes and Associated Fees: 
 

Privilege tax payments shall be reduced by any franchise fee payments received by the City,  but in no case 

will be less than $0.00. 

 

1) License application fee $50  

2) 
Telecommunications Utilities (as defined in ORS 759.005)  

Privilege tax: 7% of gross revenues as defined in ORS 221.515. 

3) 
Utility Operators Privilege Tax(as defined in SMC 12.16.050) Not Listed Above 

  Privilege tax: 5% of gross revenues. 

 

E) Public Record Fees: 

1.)  Copies of Finance documents     

  Budget $40 per copy 

  Audit Reports $25  per copy 

2.)  Copies of planning documents     

  Community development plan $25 per copy 

  Local wetland inventory $25  per copy 

  Master plans  $25  per copy 

3.)  Copies of Maps     

  8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 

  8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 

  11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 

  Small size color 11 x17 $10 per copy 

  Quarter section aerial $125  per copy 

  Full size color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 

4.)  General Service Copies     

  Copying $.15  per single side 

  Copying $.25  per double side 

  24 x 36 large format plotter $4  per sheet 

5.)  Audio and video tape copies     

 (City Council meeting tapes can be viewed onsite at no charge – contact City Recorder’s office) 

  Audio $25  each 

  Video $25   each 

  Data disk $25  each 

6.)  Document Research     

  Billed in 15 minute increments (see Section 1A)     

  Plus the cost of copying     

7.)  Faxing $2  plus $1 per page 

8.)  Lien search fee $10  per lot 

9.)  NSF check charges $25  per occurrence 

10.)  Notary fee $10 per signature 

11.) Fees charged for the services of the City Attorney’s Office of the City. 

 
 Outside consultant fees Actual cost plus 10% 

 
 Legal counsel fees Actual cost plus 10% 

 
 Miscellaneous fees Actual cost plus 10% 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 5 of 29

82



SECTION 2: LIBRARY 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 6 of 29 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Library Department activities of the City: 

 

A) General Fees: 
 

1. Damaged/lost  material   
based on extent/$5 

processing fee 

2. Overdue DVD/Blu-ray $1.00   per day  

3. All other materials $0.15   per day  

4. Lost cultural pass    varies  

5. Non-resident card  $100 annually 

6. Overdue cultural pass $10 daily 

7. Internet printing $0.10 per page 

8. Replacement library card $1.00 per card 

9. General copies on the public copier $0.10 per page 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 6 of 29

83



SECTION 3: POLICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 7 of 29 

SECTION 3: POLICE 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Police Department activities of the City: 

(A) Alarm Permit Fees: 
1. Every alarm user shall register their alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.020 

2. Initial alarm permit (Permit Waived if over 65 years of age) $100 

3. Annual renewal (Renewal waived if over 65 years of age) $25 

4 Failure to obtain an initial permit or renew within 90 days of invoice will result in an inactive permit 

(B) Alarm System Code Violation Fees: 
Any alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.070, that has a false alarm(s) within any calendar year shall be 

subject to the following fees or actions: 

1. First false alarm per calendar year No Fee per false alarm  

2. Second false alarm  $50 per false alarm  

3. Third false alarm $100 per false alarm 

4. Fourth false alarm  $200 per false alarm 

5. Fifth and subsequent false alarms  $500 per false alarm 

6. False Alarm – No Permit $500 Per false alarm 

(C) Police Reports: 

1. Copies of report $20 per report 

2. Audio tapes $25  per tape 

3. Video tapes $30  per tape 

(D) Vehicle Impound: 
Whereas, state law and Sherwood municipal codes, as defined in SMC 8.04.060, that authorizes police 

officers to impound an abandoned vehicle or a vehicle that is disabled, discarded, or hazardously located. 

1. Police impounded vehicle fees $125 per vehicle 

 

(E) Parking Violation Fees: 

1. No parking (anytime) zone $20 

2. Obstructing streets or sidewalks $20  

3. Double parking $20  

4. Blocking driveway $20 

5. Parking in bus zone $20 

6. Parking in loading zone $20 

7. Parking on wrong side of street $20 

8. Parking along yellow curb or in crosswalk $20 

9. Parking over space line $20 

10. Parking over time limit $20 

(F) Miscellaneous Police Fees: 

1. Copies of photographs (12 exposure) $15 plus processing costs 

2. Copies of digital photographs/photo files $20 per disc 

3. Fingerprinting $25 per card 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 7 of 29

84



SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 8 of 29 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City: 

A) Court Fees: 

 

1.)    Failure to appear – arraignments $50  

2.)    Failure to appear – trials $150  

3.)    Failure to comply $20  

4.)    
Turned over to collection agency  

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

5.)   
Set-up fee for citation time payment plan 

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

6.)    Vehicle compliance program – administrative fee $25  

7.)    License reinstatement fee $50  

8.)    No Operators License 
 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of valid license $100  

9.)    Driving While Suspended 
 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of valid license $200  

10.) Expired Registration/Tags (expiration less than or equal to 30 days) 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of current registration Vehicle Compliance 

11.) Expired Registration/Tags (expiration greater than 30 days ) 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of current registration $40  

12.) Failure to Carry Registration 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of registration Vehicle Compliance 

13.) Seatbelt Diversion Program $40  

14.) Traffic School Diversion Programs 
 

 
Class A $285  

 
Class B $155  

 
Class C $80  

 
Class D $45  

15.) Driving Uninsured  
 

 
Administrative Fee if proof of insurance is provided at or before the 

arraignment
$100  

16.) Suspension fee $70  

17.) Fireworks Diversion Program 

 
Firework Diversion Fee  $100  

B) Dog Fees: 
 

 Any person violating the provisions of SMC section 6.04 shall pay the following fees. 

1. Animal noise disturbance  $250 

2. Animal waste on public or another’s private property  $250 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 8 of 29

85



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 9 of 29 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Parks & Recreation activities of the City: 

 

A) Player Fees: Resident Non-Resident 

 Sherwood youth  $15  $20 

 Adult leagues  $15  $20 

a) All fees are per player and per season 

b. Youth fees include SFPA, SJBO, SBO, SYSC, SVB, SYLC, SYTC, and SYFA 

 

B) Athletic Field User Charges:   

Natural Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm)  Peak (3pm – dark) 

 Group reservations-Non profit $25/hour $45/hour 

 Group reservations-For profit $35/hour $55/hour 

 Private reservations-resident $15/hour $20/hour 

 Private reservations-non-resident $20/hour $25/hour 

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

Artificial Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm) Peak (3pm – dark) 

 Commercial/for profit-Resident $65/hour $85/hour 

 Commercial/for profit-Non-resident $75/hour $100/hour 

 Non-profit-Resident $40/hour $65/hour 

 Non-profit-Non-Resident $45/hour $65/hour 

 Private reservation-Resident $50/hour  $65/hour  

 Private reservation-Non-Resident $65/hour  $80/hour  

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 
High School Stadium/Turf Resident Non Resident  

 Practice time - youth $20/hour $40/hour 

 Practice time - all others $50/hour $75/hour 

 Games – youth $25/game $50/game 

 Games - all others $60/game $80/game 

 Light fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 Open/close facility $30/hour (1 hr. min) $30/hour (1 hr. min) 

Snyder Park Tennis Court – Camp/Tournament $25/hour $35/hour 

 

Tournament fee  

 Resident Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Non-resident $80/Hour 

 Sherwood youth league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Sherwood adult league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Light Fee $25/hour 

 

Gym Fees Resident Non Resident 

 Drop in gym programs $3/per person $6/per person 

 Commercial – for profit $60/hour $80/hour 

 Non-profit groups $30/hour $50/hour 

 Private reservations $40/hour $60/hour 

 Opening/Closing of Facility $30/Hour (1 hr Min) $30/Hour (1 hr Min) 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 9 of 29

86



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 10 of 29 

 

C) Robin Hood Theater Sign: $15/per day ($60 Minimum) 

D) Picnic Shelter: Resident Non Resident 

 Rentals $45/4 hour or $90 day $65/4hour or $135/day 

E) Amphitheater Rental: $75/4hour or $150/day $100/4hour or $200/day 

When reserving the Amphitheater you must also reserve the picnic shelter 

 

F) Cannery Square Plaza – Special Events: 

 Open to the public-no sales, no entry fee $150/day 

 Open to the public-sales, donations, entry fees for event $250/day 

 Exclusive event-closed to the public $500/day 

 Sound System $75/day 

 Load in/Load out (if not completed in an 8 hr period) $20/hr 

A day is defined as an 8 hour period. Fees do not include staff or use of the sound system. 

  

G) Field House Fees:   

Team Fees   

 Adult team $450 plus a $50 late fee if not paid by the due date 

 Youth team $450 plus a $25 late fee if not paid by the due date 

Player Cards   

 Adult player cards $10 

 Youth player cards $7 

Rental Fees   

 Day time fees (7 a.m. – 3 p.m.) $35/hour  

 Evening fees (3 p.m. – midnight) $75/hour  

Open Play Fees  

 Pre-school play fees $3/per child 

   

 10 play punch card $25 

 Adult open play fees $4/per person 

Birthday Parties 

 Birthday party fees $110 

Party Room Rental 

 Party room rental fees $25/hour 

Concessions and Merchandise 

 Concessions and Merchandise Varies 

   

H) Special Event Permit Resident  Non Resident 

 Non-Profit Fee $75 $125 

 For-Profit Fee $150 $200 

   

I) Film Permit   

 Small productions (no street closures, staging, city services, or park closures) $250 per day 

 Large production (requires street closure, city services, staging, etc.) $1,000 per day 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 10 of 29

87



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 11 of 29 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 

Water Utility Rates 
 
RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY, AND COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICE 

 

Applicable to all residential, multi-family, and commercial customers receiving water service within the 

Sherwood city limits. 

 

A residential customer is defined as a customer whose meter service serves only one-single family dwelling 

unit.  All dwelling units served by individual meters shall be charged the residential rate for service.  For 

example, the residential rate shall apply where separate water meters provide service to each side of the duplex. 

 

Multi-family customers are defined as customers whose meter services more than one dwelling unit.  For the 

purposes of this rate resolution, dwelling unit shall be defined as any place of human habitation designed for 

occupancy based upon separate leases, rental agreements, or other written instruments. 

 

Commercial customers are defined as customers whose meter is for any use other than residential and Multi-

family.  Some examples of commercial uses include, but are not limited to: schools, hospitals, restaurants, 

dedicated irrigation service, and service stations. 

A) Residential and Multi-Family Rates: 
 

Customer 

Class/Meter 

Size 

 
Base Charge 

($/Month)  

 Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

 
Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

5/8 - 3/4"  $18.74  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.17  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $41.18  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $59.88  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $120.49  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $205.87  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $427.38  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $791.08  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,142.39  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate  

    $0.51  $0.79 

 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 11 of 29

88



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 12 of 29 

 

B) Commercial Rates: 

 
Customer 

Class/Meter 

Size 

 
Base Charge 

($/Month)   
Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

 
Consumption 

Charge  

($/100 gallons) 

5/8 - 3/4"  $19.37  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.95  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $42.57  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $61.90  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $124.55  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $212.80  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $441.76  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $817.70  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,180.83  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate 

    $0.57  $0.57 

C) Fire Protection Service: 
The following fees shall be charged for all applicable connections for automatic sprinklers, and fire hydrants 

service for private fire protection: 

 

Customer Class/Meter Size Base Charge  

 4" and under $31.89 

 6" $53.28 

 8" $75.66 

 10" $104.08 

 Water service connection in ROW Actual time and materials 

D) Hydrant Rentals: 

Fire hydrant permits - mandatory for fire hydrant use  

 Three month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $55 

 Six month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $80 

 Twelve month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $130 

 Penalty for unauthorized hydrant use $500 

 Penalty for using non-approved (un-inspected tank) $950 

 Failure to report water usage (per day for period not reported) $15 

 Hydrant meter - refundable deposit $745 

 Hydrant meter – daily rental (plus water usage at current rate) $20 

 Hydrant meter read – monthly reads $50 

 Hydrant meter setup – Initial setup of meter on hydrant $50 

 Flow testing of fire hydrants $160 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 12 of 29

89



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 13 of 29 

 

E) Account Activation and De-Activation: 

Water Service on or off water at customer’s request  

 Deposit for application of service (Prior Collection Customers) $100 

 New account fee  $15 

 First call – during office hours, Monday-Friday, except snowbird turnoffs No Charge  

 Activation after office hours and weekends $60 

 Leaks or emergencies beyond customer control during office hours or 

after hours or weekends 
No Charge 

 Second call  $30 

 Non-leak or emergency turn offs after office hours or weekends $50 

 All snowbird/vacant turn offs $25 

Water Service off and on for non-payment/Non-Compliance  

 Turn on water during office hours, Monday through Friday  $60 

 After hours or weekends, an additional $50 

 Meter tampering and/or using water without authority $60 

 Broken promise turn off $60 

 Door hangers 
$10.00 per door 

hanger 

F) Additional Charges, If Necessary, To Enforce: 

 Removal of meter $80 

 Reinstallation of meter  No Charge  

 Installation or removal of locking device-first occurrence $50 

 Installation or removal of locking device-second occurrence $75 

 Installation or removal of locking device-third occurrence  $150 and meter pulled 

 Repair of breakage/damage to locking mechanism (curb stops, etc) parts and labor 

 Service off water at main or reinstating service parts and labor 

G) Other Additional Charges: 

 Decreasing or increasing size of meter parts and labor 

 Removal of meter during construction   $150 

 Loss of meter (replacement cost)   $190-$425 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of 

all commercial premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service 

assemblies and fire line services assemblies.  All subsequent tests are 

the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually be a State Certified 

Backflow Tester of their choice. 

  $100 

 Backflow assembly test/repair (Contract services) parts and labor 

 Damage or Repair to Water Utility actual time and material 

 

H) Testing water meters at customer/owner’s request: 

 Testing on premises (5/8”x 3/4”, ¾”, 1") $80 

 Removal of meter for testing (5/8”x  3/4”, 1”) $250 

 Testing of meters larger than 1” parts and labor 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 13 of 29

90



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 14 of 29 

 

I) Backflow Prevention Device Test Fee: 
 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all commercial 

premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and fire line services 

assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually 

be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. 

                               

$100 

 Service on and off for non-compliance of annual testing and reporting, see Section E.  

J) Water Service/Meter Installation Services: 
Meter Size Drop-In Service Dig-In Service 

5/8” – ¾” $360 $2,095 

1” $730 $2,465 

1.5” $1,830 $4,280 

2” $3,050 $5,500 

3” $6,100 n/a 

4” $7,930 n/a 

Definitions: 

Drop-In 

Service 

An existing condition where developers of a residential subdivision or commercial complex has 

installed water service to each serviceable and buildable lot in accordance with City specifications. 

Dig-In 

Service 

Condition where the City or its contractor must physically tap into a mainline to extend water 

service to the property.  Meter installation over 2” will be installed at a time and materials rate by 

city staff or city authorized contractors. 

K) Un-Authorized Water Hook up: 

 Un-authorized water hook up $150  (Plus water use charges billed at current rate) 

L) Re-Inspection Fees (Sanitary, Street, Storm and Water): 

 First re-inspection $50/each 

 Re-inspection fee after the first $100/each 

 All subsequent re-inspection fees $150/each 

*Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Program – FOG*  

M) Usage of Meter Key 

 Deposit refundable with key return $25 

N) Water Use Restriction – Penalties 

 First notice of violation $100 

 Second notice of violation $300 

 Third notice of violation $500 

O) Sanitary Rates: 

The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $20.97 

 CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.40 

 Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.77 

 Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.27 

 Damage or Repair to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

 Illegal Discharge to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 14 of 29

91



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 15 of 29 

 

P) Storm Rates: 
The monthly storm utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional storm water utility user rate per ESU    $1.56 

 Sherwood storm water utility user rate per ESU   $12.21 

 Damage or Repair to Storm Utility 
actual time and 

material 

Q) Street Fees: 
Street Maintenance Fee  

 Single family residential $2/monthly per account 

 Multi Family $2 monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $2/monthly per ESU 

Street Light Fee  

 Single family residential $2.32/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $2.32/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.67/monthly per ESU 

Sidewalk Repairs Fee  

 Single family residential $0.52/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.52/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.16/monthly per ESU 

Safe Sidewalks (New Sidewalks) Fee  

 Single family residential $0.69/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.69/monthly per EDU 

R) Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program: 
 

The homeowner shall be responsible for: 

1.) Shaves (50% of total cost of the contractor’s invoice) 

2.) Full Panel Replacements (50% of the total cost of the work to be performed) 

 

Work may include any or all of the following: contractor’s cost to remove and replace the panel(s); arborists 

initial report of findings; tree removal; street tree permit fee.  

 

Payment arrangements will be made available to homeowners and must be paid within 12 months of the date of 

the first bill. Homeowner’s failure to pay their portion of the costs may result in a lien being placed on their 

property and all costs associated.

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 15 of 29

92



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 16 of 29 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Systems Development Charges (SDC).  SDC’s are one-time fees 

charged to new development to help pay a portion of the costs associated with building  infrastructure to meet 

needs created by growth. 

A) Water SDC: 

Meter 

Size  
Reimbursement 

Charge  
Improvement  

Charge  

Administrative 

Charge Per 

Meter 

5/8-3/4" 
 

$0  
 

$6,994.71  
 

$52.02 

1" 
 

$0  
 

$17,489.44  
 

$52.02 
1-1/2" 

 
$0  

 
$34,978.88  

 
$52.02 

2" 
 

$0  
 

$55,964.28  
 

$52.02 

3" 
 

$0  
 

$122,422.49  
 

$52.02 

4" 
 

$0  
 

$209,866.08  
 

$52.02 

6" 
 

$0  
 

$437,221.63  
 

$52.02 

8" 
 

$0  
 

$629,598.29  
 

$52.02 
 

Exception: There is no System Development Charge (reimbursement of improvement fee) to upgrade from  

5/8” – 3/4” to 1” when the sole purpose is a residential fire sprinkler system. 

 

 Fire flow sprinkler buildings only $3,328.52 

B) Sewer SDC: 

 

Use Type 
Reimbursement 

Charge  
Improvement 

Charge  
Flow Count 

Single family residence $0.097 
 

$0.28  
 

535 gallons 

Two  family residence (duplex) $0.097 
 

$0.28  
 

535 gallons 

Manufactured home/ single lot $0.097 
 

$0.28 
 

535 gallons 

Manufactured home parks $0.097 
 

$0.28  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Multi-family residential $0.097 
 

$0.28 
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Commercial $0.097 
 

$0.28 
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Industrial $0.097 
 

$0.28  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Institutional uses $0.097 
 

$0.28  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

    CWS regional connection charge   (96% CWS, 4% City of Sherwood)

 

$4,800 (Per dwelling unit or 

dwelling unit equivalent 

 

C) Storm SDC: 

Storm   Improvement Charge 

A.) Water quantity per ESU   $275 

B) Water quality per ESU   $225 

Regional Storm Drainage: - per area of impervious surface. One equivalent service unit (ESU) equals 2,640 

square feet. 

 City storm drainage: per area of impervious surface $0.047per square foot 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 16 of 29

93



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 17 of 29 

 

D) Parks SDC: 

Parks and Recreation  
Administration 

Fee 
 

Improvement 

Fee 
 Total Fee 

Single family dwelling  $744.83  $7,230.70  $7,975.53 per dwelling unit 

Multi-family dwelling  $559.48  
$5,425.62 

 
 $5,985.10 per dwelling unit 

Manufactured home  $1,005.78  $7,744.14  $8,749.92 per dwelling unit 

Non – residential  $6.91  $75.98  $82.89 per employee 

 

Filing fee to challenge expenditures of Parks SDC’s  (Refundable if challenge is successful) $50 

E) Street SDC: 
The following charges are calculated by multiplying trip generation by the following 

 

 Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 
 

Reference Washington County for fees - http://www.co.washington.or.us/ 

 

F) City of Sherwood Street SDC: 

Residential Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 

Single family – detached 210 $3,132.42  dwelling unit 

Apartment 220 $2,440.55  dwelling unit 

Residential condominium/townhouse 230 $1,986.97  dwelling unit 

Manufactured house  (In park) 240 $1,739.46  dwelling unit 

Assisted living 254 $1,022.27  bed 

Continuing care retirement 255 $825.42  unit 

Recreation home 260 $1,071.77  dwelling unit 

Recreational Transportation SDC   
 

City park 411 $810.45  acre 

County park 412 $1,376.84  acre 

Campground/RV park 416 $3,246.39  camp site 

Marina 420 $2,260.96  berth 

Golf course 430 $28,298.87  hole 

Golf driving range 430 $6945.20  tee 

Multipurpose recreation/arcade 435 $20,263.47  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bowling alley 437 $26,391.32  lane 

Movie theater w/o matinee 443 $135.18  screen 

Movie Theater with Matinee 444 $123,369.79  screen 

Multiplex movie theater (10+ screens) 445 $79,710.43  screen 

Casino/video poker/lottery 473 $78,316.32  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Amusement/theme park 480 $42,091.42  acre 

Soccer complex 488 $39,630.16  field 

Racquet/tennis club 492 $21,501.01  court 

Health fitness club 492 $18,296.06  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Recreation/community center 495 $18,116.48  thousand square ft gross floor area 

    

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 17 of 29

94

http://www.co.washington.or.us/


SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 18 of 29 

    

Institutional/Medical Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 

Military base 501 $939.38  employee 

Elementary school (Public) 520 $198.01  student 

Middle/Junior high School (Public) 522 $237.15  student 

High School (Public) 530 $619.35  student 

Private School (K – 12) 536 $1,003.85  Student 

Junior/Community College 540 $370.69  employee 

University/College 550 $805.84  student 

Church 560 $2,944.78  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Day care center/preschool 565 $0.00  student 

Library 590 $8,632.87  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Hospital 610 $7,237.61  bed 

Nursing home 620 $1,237.55  bed 

Clinic 630 $18,358.23  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Commercial/Services SDC   
 

Hotel/Motel 310 $6,080.65  Room 

Building materials/lumber 812 $9,878.47  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Free standing discount Superstore w/groceries 813 $13,292.94  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Specialty retail center 814 $12,132.53  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Free standing discount center w/o groceries 815 $18,924.62  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Hardware/paint stores 816 $15,715.07  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Nursery/garden center 817 $9,675.86  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Shopping center 820 $8,126.34  thousand square ft gross leasable area 

Factory outlet 823 $6,211.89  thousand square ft gross floor area 

New car sales 841 $8,016.98  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Automobile parts sales 843 $15,187.82  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Tire superstore 849 $4,748.71  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Supermarket 850 $26,550.19  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Convenience market (24hr) 851 $66,426.69  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Convenience market w/fuel Pump 853 $40,223.02  vehicle fueling position 

Wholesale market 860 $157.72  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Discount club 861 $14,887.35  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Home improvement superstore 862 $5,172.36  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Electronics superstore 863 $11,005.50  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Office supply superstore 867 $8,685.82  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive thru window 880 $18,749.64  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Pharmacy/drugstore with drive thru window 881 $20,082.73  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Furniture store 860 $917.51  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Video rental store 896 $73,391.47  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bank/savings – walk in 911 $59,160.31  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bank/savings – drive in 912 $59,545.96  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Quality restaurant (not a chain) 931 $23,997.97  thousand square ft gross floor area 

    

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 18 of 29

95



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 19 of 29 

    

Commercial/Services SDC (continued) Code Fee Type 

High turnover-sit down restaurant 

(chain/standalone) 
932 $15,174.01  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Fast food restaurant (no drive- thru) 933 $100,806.21  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Fast food restaurant (with drive-thru) 934 $67,834.61  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Drinking place/bar 936 $10,442.56  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Quick lubrication vehicle Shop 941 $9071.47  service stall 

Automobile care center 942 $9,100.26  thousand square ft gross leasable area 

Gasoline/service station (no market/car wash) 944 $18,230.44  vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with convenience 

market) 
945 $11,601.82  vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with market and car 

wash) 
946 $10,492.06  vehicle fueling position 

Office SDC    

General office building 710 $4,679.64  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Corporate headquarters building 714 $3,397.20  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Single tenant office building 715 $5,678.88  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Medical/dental office building 720 $14,796.41  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Government office building 730 $27,334.15  thousand square ft gross floor area 

State Motor Vehicles Department 731 $101,572.92  thousand square ft gross floor area 

US Post Office 732 $36,331.95  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Office park 750 $4,940.96  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Research and development center 760 $3,698.81  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Business park 770 $5,141.27  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Port/Industrial    

Truck terminals 30 $3,784.00  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Park and ride lot with bus service 90 $1,146.60  parking space 

Light rail transit station w/parking 93 $651.58  parking space 

General light industrial 110 $2,680.00  thousand square ft gross floor area 

General heavy industrial 120 $576.75  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Industrial park 130 $2,673.09  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Manufacturing 140 $1,460.88  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Warehouse 150 $1,927.11  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Mini-warehouse 151 $933,63  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Utilities 170 $2,100.95  thousand square ft gross floor area 

  

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 19 of 29

96



SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 20 of 29 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Engineering Division activities of the City. 

A) Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 

 Plan Review – 4% of Construction Costs ($500 due at submittal with the balance, if any, payable at 

the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) Includes review of the following: 

Water Street Grading 

Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

 

 Inspections – 5% of Construction Costs (payable at the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) 

Includes inspection of the following for which permits were obtained: 

Water Street Grading 

Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

B) No Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review Fee Time and Materials 

 Inspection Fee Time and Materials 

 Television Line Service Time and Materials 

C) Miscellaneous Fees: 
1)  Addressing Fee  

  Single - five (5) digit address $65/lot 

  0 to 10 - Suite Numbers $25 per suite 

  11 to 20 -Suite Numbers $15 per suite 

  21 and up Suite Numbers  $10 per suite 

2)  Plans and Specifications for capital projects varies with project 

3)  
Traffic and street signs (Includes post, sign, 

hardware, and labor to install) 
$250/per sign 

4)  Street Trees $200/per tree 

5)  

Pre-submittal Consultation (consultation of 

projects prior to the submittal of a land use 

application, requiring more than 2 hours of staff 

time or on-call consultant services) 

Deposit of $500 

(Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including 

staff time, if an application is submitted these fees 

will be credited against the plan review fees) 

6)  In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $10 linear foot 

7)  Right of Way Permit  

 
 Performance bond on projects greater 

than or equal to $5,000 
125% of estimated costs 

 
 Maintenance bond - $1000 or 50% of project estimate, whichever is greater. 

(A single bond may be provided for multiple projects of the same person provided the bond 

exceeds the aggregate project total) 

  Administration fee $150 per permit 

  Inspection fee  $150 or 4% of project estimate, whichever is greater 

8)  Design and construction standards $50 on paper 

7) Design and construction standards $25 per CD 

8) As-Built Requests $25 per subdivision 

9) As-Built Requests electronic media $25 per CD 

D) Vacations (Public right-of-way and easements): 
 Deposit plus staff time (See Section 1) $4,000 

         (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time)

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 20 of 29

97



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 21 of 29 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Planning Department activities of the City. 

A) Annexations: 
 Deposit $7,500 

  (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time) 

 Applicant will sign an agreement with the City that the balance of all costs will be paid to the City 

within 30 days of the date in the final annexation invoice. 

B) Appeals: 
 Type I or II actions (ORS 227.175) 10 (b)  $250 

 Type III or IV actions 50% of original fee(s) 

C) Conditional Use Permit: 
Conditional use permit without concurrent type III or IV application $4,145 

Conditional use permit with concurrent type III or IV application $2,072 

D) Land Divisions/Adjustments: 
 Lot line adjustment $743  

 Minor land partition $2,488   

 Expedited minor partition $550   

 (Added to the cost of the application) 

 Final plat processing (minor land partition) $550   

 Subdivision $6,222  plus$20 per lot 

 Expedited subdivision $2,205   

  (Added to the cost of the application) 

 Final plat processing (Subdivision) $1,102   

E) Miscellaneous Actions: 
 Consultant as needed actual costs 

F) Other Fees: 

 Community Development Code Plan Check 
(payable at time of building 

permit submittal 

1) Residential permits $105 

2) ADUs Accessory Dwelling Units $105  

3) Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family Permits $661  

                           (Final Site Plan Review fee, if a final site plan review is not required this fee is not charged) 

 Design review team consultations/recommendations staff time (see section 1) 

 Detailed site analysis letter $150 

 Interpretive decisions by the Director $330  

 Non-conforming use modification $1,000 

 Modification to application in review $500 

(If modified after the application is deemed complete and the modification is needed to adequately review the 

application) 

 Other land use action  

1) Administrative $276  

2) Hearing required and/or use of Hearings Officer $2,425  

 Planning Re-inspection fee $60 each after 1
st
 

 Postponement/continuance hearings $300 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 21 of 29

98



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 22 of 29 

  

(If applicant request is after notice has been published and/or staff report prepared) 

 Pre-application conference $400 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 2 $284 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 3 & 4 $466 

 Home Occupation Review of initial application (Class A)  $50 

 Home Occupation Review of renewal application (Class A) $25 

G) Trees: 
 Tree mitigation inspection $60 each after 1

st
 

 Zone verification letter $50 

 Street Tree Removal Permit $25 - 1
st
 tree, $10 each additional tree 

 Removal of more than 6 trees or 10% on private property $107 

H) Planned Unit Development (PUD): 
 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  Preliminary 

             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) 
$2,205 

 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  - Final 
             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) 

See Site Plan Review Fee 

I) Refunds: 
 75% refund if application is withdrawn prior to 30 day completeness 

 50% refund if withdrawn prior to public notice 

 25% refund if withdrawn prior to staff report 

J) Signage: 
 Permanent signs on private property $150 

      (First 32 sq. ft. plus $1 each additional sq. ft, of sign face)  (Excludes Home Occupation Signage) 

 Banner signs – Consecutive one month period $150 

 Temporary portable sign violation fines  

1) First offense No fine; collected and marked 

2) Second offense $50 per sign 

3) Third offense $100 per sign 

K) Site Plan Review: 
 Type III and IV  

(Additional $100 for every 10,000 sq. ft. or portion thereof over the first 

15,000 sq. ft.)(Including Town-Homes, excluding projects in Old Town) 

$6,222  

 Final site plan review (Type III and IV)  (Due at the time of Building 

Permit Submittal) 
$661  

 Fast track site plan review (Type II) $2,025  

 Minor modification to approved Site Plan $276 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type II $1,010 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type III or IV $2,425 

 Old Town overlay review $250 added to application 

 (All uses excluding Single-Family detached dwellings) (Application fee for Old Town projects is the application  

 fee applicable based on size of the project plus the Old Town Overlay review fee.  Fee is applicable for all uses  

 excluding Single-Family detached dwellings.) 

 

L) Temporary Uses: 

 Administrative $335 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 22 of 29

99



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 23 of 29 

 

M) Time Extension to Approval: 

 No hearing required $150 

N)  Variance: 

 Class A Variance $4,145 

 Adjustment  $50 

 Class B Variance $1,102 

 (Per lot and per standard to be varied) 

O) Zone Amendments: 

 Text amendment $5,330 

 Map amendment $5,330 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 23 of 29

100



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 24 of 29 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Building Department activities of the City. 

A. Building Permits 
Values are determined by the applicants total estimated value of the work which includes labor and materials, 

and/or are based on the most current Building Valuation Data, without state-specific modifiers, as published by 

the International Code Council and in compliance with OAR 918-050-0100 to 918-050-0110. Final building 

permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 

 

1. Single Family and Two-Family Dwelling Based on Total Valuation 

$1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000  

 
$60 for the first $500 (Plus $1.00 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up to 

and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 

 
$75 for the first $2,000 (Plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to 

and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000  

 
$259 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.25 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 

up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000  
415.25 for the first $25,000 (Plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up 

to and including $100,000) 

$100,001 and up 
$615.25 for the first $100,000 (Plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof over $100,000$100,001 and up) 

 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 

School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 
0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 
 

2. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Based on Total Valuation 

 $1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000 
$60 for the first $500 ($1.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof up 

to and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 
$82.50 for the first $2,000 ($8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 

up to and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000 
$266.50 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.75 for each additional $1,000 or 

fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000 
$435.25 for the first $50,000 (plus $5 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof, up to and including $100,00) 

$100,001 and up 
$685.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 

fraction thereof over $100,00) 
 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 
School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

School CET Commercial 
Non- Residential $.52 per square foot maximum of $25,925 or current School 

District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 
0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 

 

 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 24 of 29

101



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 25 of 29 

 

3. Manufactured Dwelling Installation Permits 

Includes prescriptive foundation system, plumbing and crossover connections, 30 lineal feet of sanitary sewer, 

storm and water lines, 12% state surcharge and the $30 Cabana fee (unless state rates are modified) In 

Compliance with OAR.918.050.0130  

 

 Manufactured home set up and installation fee $322.66 

 Plan Review  $90/hour (Minimum Charge = 1/2/hour 

 Site Plan Review Residential Rate per Section 10.(F) 

 School CET $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

B. Demolition Permits 
 Residential  $192.12 

 Commercial $282.12 

C. Prescriptive Solar Photovoltaic System Installation – Structural Only 

*Electrical permits are also required through Washington County 

Fees for installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) system installation 

that comply with the prescriptive path described in the Oregon Solar 

Installation Specialty Code. 

$122.79 

For Plans that do not meet the prescriptive path, typical structural fee 

calculations and processes will apply. 
Typical Structural Fees will apply 

D. Plan Review Fees – Building Permit 
 Plan review Fee 85% of building permit fee 

 Fire and life safety plan review fee (when required) 40% of building permit fee 

E. Phased Permit - Plan Review (When approved by the Building Official) 
The Plan review fee for a phased project is based on a minimum phasing fee, plus 10% of the total project 

building permit fee, not to exceed $1,500 for each phase pursuant to the authority of OAR 918-050-0160 

 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $100 Minimum Fee  

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $50 Minimum Fee  

F. Deferred Submittals (When approved by the Building Official) 
The fee for processing deferred submittals and reviewing deferred plan submittals shall be an amount equal to 

65% of the permit fee calculated according to OAR 918-050-0110(2) and (3) using  the value of the particular 

deferred portion or portions of the project, with a set minimum fee.  This fee is in addition to the project plan 

review fee based on the total project value. 

 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $150 Minimum Fee 

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $75 Minimum Fees  

 

G. Residential Fire Sprinkler System Fees 
 Total Square Footage (including Garage) 

0 to 2000 $100 includes plan review 

2,001 to 3,600 $150 includes plan review 

3,601 to 7,200 $250 includes plan review 

7,201 and greater $300 includes plan review 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 25 of 29

102



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 26 of 29 

H. Electrical Permits – Issued and Inspected by Washington County 
Contact Washington County Building Division (503) 846-3470 

I. Mechanical Permits - Residential 
Mechanical permits for Single Family Dwelling, Two-Family dwellings and Manufactured Dwellings for new 

construction, additions, alterations and repairs.  Fees are based on the number of appliances and related 

equipment with a set minimum fee. 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee  ** (or current state rate) 

1. Air Handling 

 Air Handling Unit ≤ 10,000 CFMs $14.63 includes ductwork 

 Air Handling Unit > 10,000 CFMs $24.68 includes ductwork 

 Air Conditioning Unit $19.50 Site Plan Required 

 

2. Boilers/Compressors 

 ≤100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50 includes ductwork 

 >100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 includes ductwork 

 >500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75 includes ductwork 

 >1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 includes ductwork 

 >1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 includes ductwork 

 

3. Fire/Smoke Dampers/Duct Smoke Detectors $14.65 

 

4. Heat Pump $19.50 Site plan required 

 

5. Install/Replace Furnace/Burner 

 Furnace ≤ 100,000 BTUs $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Furnace ≥ 100,000 BTUs $35.75 includes ductwork and vents 

 Install/Replace/Relocate Heaters  (Suspended, wall or floor 

mounted) 
$19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Vent for appliance other than furnace $9.75 includes ductwork 

 

6. Refrigeration Units (includes installation of controls) 

 ≤ 100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50  

 > 100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 

 > 500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75  

 > 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 

 >  1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 

 Appliance vent $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Dryer exhaust $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust fan with single duct $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Hoods $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust system apart from heating or air conditioning $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Fuel piping and distribution (up to four outlets) $6.50 

 Fuel piping and distribution (over four outlets) $1.65 per outlet 

 Insert, decorative fireplace or wood/pellet stoves $19.50 includes vent 

 Gas fired water heater $19.50 includes ductwork and vent 

 Install/relocate domestic type incinerator $24.35 

 Install/relocate commercial type incinerator $97.50 

 Other   (see most current Oregon One and Two Family Dwelling Specialty Code) 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 26 of 29

103



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 27 of 29 

J. Mechanical Permits - Commercial 
Based on the total value of mechanical materials, equipment, installation, overhead and profit as applied to the 

following fee matrix 

 

 Plan review fee – Commercial 30% of Mechanical permit fee 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee ** (or Current state Rate) 

 Mechanical Permit Fee Based on total valuation 

$0 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$60 for the first $500 (plus $2.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up 

to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$172.50 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, 

up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $100,000 
$322.50 for the first $10,000 (Plus$8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,042.50 for the first $100,000 (plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof over $100,000 

K. Plumbing Permits – New one and Two Family Dwellings 
Includes one kitchen, 100 feet of sanitary sewer, storm and water lines, standard plumbing fixtures and 

appurtenances, and are based on the number of bathrooms, from one to three on a graduated scale. 

 

 One Bathroom $255 

 Two Bathrooms $315 

 Three Bathrooms $375 

 Additional Kitchen or Bathroom $155 each 

 Additional Fixture or Item $15 each 

 Additional 100 feet of each utility line $27.50 each 

L. Plumbing Permits – One and Two Family and Manufactured Dwelling for Additions, 

Alterations and Repairs 
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 

 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 New and/or Additional fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Manufactured Dwelling Utility Connection $30 each 

  (Charged only when connections are not concurrent with new set-up and installation) 

1. Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 27 of 29

104



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 28 of 29 

 

M. Plumbing Permits – Commercial  
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 

 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of plumbing permit fee (when required) 

 State surcharge 12% of plumbing permit fee **(Or current State rate) 

 Minimum fee $60 

 New and/or additional fixture, item $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

N. Medical Gas Permits – Commercial 
Based on the total value of installation costs and system equipment as applied to the following fee matrix. 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of Plumbing Permit Fee 

 State surcharge 12% of Plumbing Permit Fee ** (or Current state Rate) 

 Plumbing Permit Fee Based on valuation 

 $0 to $500 $100 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$100 for the first $500 (plus $2 for each additional $100 or 

fraction thereof, up to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$190 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or 

fraction thereof, up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $50,000  
$340 for the first $10,000 (plus $9.50 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$50,000.01 to $100,000 
$720 for the first $50,000 (Plus $11 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,270 for the first 100,000 (plus $7 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,000) 

 

O. Grading and Erosion Control Fees (Private Property Only) 
Permits issued by the City of Sherwood.  Grading is inspected by the Building Department and erosion control is 

inspected by Clean Water Services or the City of Sherwood. 

 

Erosion Control Fees 
Activities which require a grading and/or erosion control permit and are not included in a building permit.  

Permit is based upon the total acreage of the site. 

 

For projects less than 5 acres: 

 Erosion Control Plan Review Fee 65% of the erosion control inspection fee  

 Erosion Control Inspection Fee Based on Total Area 

0 to 1 Acre $200 

1 Acre and up $200 (plus $50 per acre or fraction thereof over 1 acre) 

For projects greater than or equal to 5 acres: 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C administration fee $150 per application 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C plan review fee $350 per application 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 28 of 29

105



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 29 of 29 

 

Grading Fees 

 

 Grading permit fee  Based on Cubic Yards 

   0 to 100  $60 minimum fee  

   101 to 1,000  $60 first 100 yards (plus $11 for each additional 100 yards or fraction thereof) 

   1,001 to 10,000  $159 first 1,000 yard (plus $15 for each additional 1,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

   10,001 to 100,000  $294 first 10,000 yards (plus $75 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

   100,001  +  $969 first 100,000 (plus $36.50 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

 Grading plan review fee 85% of the grading permit fee 

 

P. Other Inspections and Fees (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading and 

Erosion) 

 Re-inspection fee (Minimum charge = 1 hour) 
$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate 

 Inspections outside normal business hours 

(when approved by the Building Official) 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate (Minimum charge = 2 hours)  

 Inspection for which no fee is specifically 

indicated 

$70 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate (Minimum charge = ½ hour)  

 Investigation fee 100% of required permit fee for working without a permit 

 Additional plan review required 
$90 per hour or actual time (For changes, additions or 

revisions) (Minimum charge = ½ hour) 

 Re-stamp of lost, stolen or damaged plans $55 per plan set 

 Application/Permit extensions   $50 

(Renewal of an application or permit where an extension has been requested in writing, and approval granted by 

the Building Official, prior to the original expiration date, provided no changes have been made in the original 

plans and specifications for such work) 

 Permit reinstatement fee 
50% of amount required for a new permit or a percentage as determined by 

the Building Official based on the remaining inspections required. 

(This fee is for reinstatement of a permit, where a reinstatement request has been made in writing, and approval 

granted by the Building Official, provided no changes have been made in the original plans and specifications for 

such work.) 

Q. Refunds (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading/Erosion) 

 Permit refunds 75% of original permit Fee; Provided the permit is still valid 

 Plan review refunds 75% of original plan review fee provided no plan review was started  

R. Certificate of Occupancy  (All as determined by the Building Official) 

 Temporary residential $50 per request 

 Temporary commercial $300 maximum per request 

S. Change of Use/Occupancy Certificate Application Fee 
 Similar use (Minor code review) $60  

 Dissimilar Use, or Change in Occupancy 

(Extensive Code Review 

$125 minimum fee (Includes 1 hour code review time, review 

time greater than 1 hour will be charged at the hourly rate of $90 

 

Resolution 2013-028, Exhibit A 

June 4, 2013, Page 29 of 29

106



Resolution 2013-029, Staff Report 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 4, 2013 
 

 Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Gibons, Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2013-029 - Adopting the FY2013-14 City of Sherwood Budget 
 

 

Issue: 

As the next step in the budget process, the Sherwood City Council needs to consider 

adoption of the FY2013-14 City of Sherwood Budget as approved by the Sherwood Budget 

Committee. 

 

Background: 

On April 22, 2013, the Sherwood Budget Committee received the budget message and 

heard public comment. On the following Monday, April 29, 2013, the Budget Committee 

approved the proposed budget with no changes, resulting in the Approved Budget for FY 

2013-14. Notice of the approved budget has been published in accordance with Oregon 

Local Budget Law. The final steps of the budget process are for City Council to hold a 

public hearing per ORS 294.453 and then adopt the FY2013-14 budget. The budget is 

available for review at the City Hall reception desk and in the library. A copy of the budget 

can also be found on the City’s website under the Finance Department section. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests adoption of Resolution 2013-029 adopting the FY13-14 City of 

Sherwood budget. 

107



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-029 
June 4, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 with one Exhibit (Budget Document) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-029 
 

ADOPTING THE FY2013-14 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF SHERWOOD, MAKING 
APPROPRIATIONS, IMPOSING AND CATEGORIZING TAXES, AND AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO TAKE SUCH ACTION NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE 
ADOPTED BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee has reviewed and acted on the proposed City 
budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee approved and recommended a balanced 
budget to the City Council on April 29, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, the Sherwood City Council has held a public 
hearing on the budget as approved and recommended by the Sherwood Budget Committee; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee approved the budget with no changes to be 
presented to the City Council for adoption; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the approved budget and carry out the 
programs identified in the budget. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1: Adoption of the FY2013-14 Budget.  The City Council of the City of Sherwood, 
Oregon hereby adopts the budget for FY2013-14 in the sum of $40,919,336, now on file at 
City Hall. 

108



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-029 
June 4, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 with one Exhibit (Budget Document) 

Section 2: Making Appropriations.  The amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and for the purposes shown 
below are hereby appropriated as follows: 

 

  General Debt Street Street     

 General Construction Service Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom 

          

Administration 2,466,258         

Comm. Development 984,885         

Public Safety 3,522,377         

Community Services 1,254,051         

PW Operations 1,604,713         

Enterprise Operations      4,873,661 558,614 1,615,503  

Enterprise Capital      620,244 1,221,143 750,000  

Personal Services  47,493  322,706 1,075    44,055 

Materials and Services  22,219  682,856 435    155,512 

Capital Outlay  1,064,116  7,000 38,490     

Debt Service  48,104 891,968      150,000 

Transfers Out     155,000     

Ending Fund Balance          

Contingency 2,629,580 539,226 6,647 1,774,213 2,729,788 6,558,216 2,756,259 769,896 53,034 

Total 12,461,864 1,721,158 898,615 2,786,775 2,924,788 12,052,121 4,536,016 3,135,399 402,601 

 

Total Budget for FY13-14     $40,919,336 

109



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-029 
June 4, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 with one Exhibit (Budget Document) 

Section 3: Imposing and Categorizing Taxes.  The City Council of the City of 
Sherwood hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the adopted budget at the 
City’s permanent rate of $3.2975 per thousand of assessed value for operations 
and in the amount of $892,000 for bonded debt; and that these taxes are hereby 
imposed for tax year 2013-14 upon the assessed value of all taxable property 
within the district. 

The City of Sherwood hereby categorizes the taxes as follows: 

 

 General Government Excluded from Limitation 
General Fund $3.2975 per $1,000  
Debt Service Fund  $     892,000 

 

Section 4: Filing. The Budget Officer shall certify to the County Clerk and 
County Assessor of Washington County and the Oregon State Department of 
Revenue the tax levy made by this resolution and shall file with them a copy of 
the budget as finally adopted. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of June 2013. 
 
 
 
 _____________________ 
 Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

110


	01  City Council Packet Cover 06.04.13
	02  City Council Agenda 06.04.13
	04 Resolution 2013-024 Certification of Provisions of Services-STAFF REPORT 06.04.13
	05  Resolution 2013-024 Certification of Provision of Services-DRAFT 06.04.13
	06  Resolution 2013-025 Adopt FY14 CIP-STAFF REPORT 06.04.13
	07  Resolution 2013-025 Adopt FY14 CIP-DRAFT 06.04.13
	08  Resolution 2013-025 Adopt FY14 CIP-EXH A 06.04.13
	09  Resolution 2013-026 Appropriations Transfer 2013-13-STAFF REPORT 06.04.13
	10  Resolution 2013-026 Appropriations Transfer 2012-13-DRAFT 06.04.13
	11  Resolution 2013-027 Election to receive State Shared Revenue-STAFF REPORT 06.04.13
	12  Resolution 2013-027 Election to receive State Shared Revenues-DRAFT 06.04.13
	13  Resolution 2013-028 Adopting FY 2013-14 Fee Schedule-STAFF REPORT 06.04.13
	14  Resolution 2013-028 Adopting FY2013-14 Fee Schedule-Exh to Staff Report 06.04.13
	15  Resolution 2013-028 Adopting FY2013-14 Fee Schedule-DRAFT 06.04.13
	15.1 Resolution 2013-028 Adopting FY2013-14 Fee Schedule-EXH A 06.04.13
	16  Resolution 2013-029 Adopt FY14 COS Budget-STAFF REPORT 06.04.13
	17  Resolution 2013-029 Adopt FY14 COS Budget-DRAFT 06.04.13



